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1. 9R=™
1.1 IS 1T 6 BT IRTY

MR 3§ (1.8 §%) U oo faxia
T © g U= S & SrfSfae Je
IS 3T §h M, 1987 (1987 &1 Dol
I~ . 53) & T8d 99 1988 ¥ §g © | M3MdH
TR Bl AR AT doIT 39T HeRIdT U
B B o7 Teb UHRT ol & w0 H B HRAT S |
13T 9% WRA™ RSd 9@ & qof @rfiar= &
2 | X137, b 1 AU BRI BRAT & — SMaRT foT
Ut @fa®.) @1 fafgas vd odgeror, fa<
qIYoT oI HaelF iR I | T3mdd Femrd
T IR ORISR Tl $I 9¢TaT <d 8¢ <91 H
AT AT UoTTell &I Asiqd &3+ 3R I
TET PR B Ul aoeg © |

fas=

STaT™T AT SITR 4 wIIfIcq gad wH1ael 13w
Pl G@Tar 7 |

e

[T O 7eg9 377 1976 U SIIN Gl §Y SIeIa] &
T4 @l BT STATHIT STTeIHAS Bl Gid & [Ty

STSTIN ETHAT3TT I TTToTT UG [9beId &vT |
e

RT3, 9 P XATIAT 3MMaTe] & T I & fold Th
AR TA=T ToTTelT T fawRid B 3R marT fa<T
YOIl ! A fORiT UoTTell W FHg B & ford

(X

P TS B | N3 I BT AN T FRA B
Sead BT faeRid d B ey ff Jid 7€ @
arfes 9 A= &=t oiR fafi=1 e el @1 yara
I AEIAT IR AD | T &9 D (1 AR Bl
JIH g TAT I8 3N & o7 Aalrgsl B
2g ¥l RTFIER 2 | 31, §& I 0T & 31
PR 3R o ameHdl & foy g a9 2g
AT B NIIMdH BT WA 3mSR
JRafem 1987 & TEd Foa fAFrme iR
QI WSROl & R YR SY1are fa wuf=
P! Tfafafert o1 faf i e & Rl & arer &

UER

M3 6 B AT T BIAl & ATI—1
ferefaRad Sevat &) uiftd & fory &Y 77 & —

o JEEl & |l I b R Up Ygs, TR,
FHY, SR fHHrdT smard fa<d womeft &t
famRId BT 3R 3MaT<T fa<T Jomedy & T
TR fO=ITT ToTTelt | g HRAT;

o wafdT SN fod WMl & Hcdd @l
IR =1 a1fes 7 |t & A= &3 @ik
T BT g wY F FETIAT B b,

o IMATE & A =g O Uvr ud o ATl
DI GITH FAMT TAT FT Td gEAR DI
A o,

o QAT & AR 9T BT fARTe SRexal Bl =T
HA B foIu AR fog & ¢ ST A9
g faHRId BT

o TN Ud JgUET UOiRTAl & A1 AIEERI U4
TR & gRT $oll g8l U add erifaferar

BT FOTC 2019 7 P1 T HIVUT & SR, XL TG 4 STETTIH 1987 H S1qe9% FINET FeTT1ad a5 T of | [ 09.
08.2019 B1 SIERTTTT 6. G.311.2902 (3) H fa1F Gard 13777, faT #1619 7 09.08.2019 STfErgfara fasm forer fafer ¥ far (W.2)
IR, 2019 T STEAT VI @1 91T VI @& HIGel ol 817 | T&geI, 09.08.2019 ¥, 1A%, T [AfH7 SNdsng &l

EVTTaRT 331 TIT 8/



(X

@ IUART 3 YATERTT el ATART & AedH
Fad yATaTd Ud ey <7 yometl & ey
Tq SUYAT ITATaRYT AR HRAT |

Cap]

3. 9% 3 el @ uiftd @ oy
TG Sl A fAFET wd wddeor, fad
qryor g Gadd vd fdera & dgd fafie=
UHR & YHT Bl 2 | A o pufrai
@enfa®) @ v faf e & dR W, end®
BT YR H I a7 B BRIER BT 3R B
Td STRI X & AP, DI USHIhROT JHTOTIH
SR R DT eI AT T8 8 | Rrelld v
R R, IR @ T 31
faffamael & I Iy & qeEd 9 IS
I b gRT 3.4 P, BT Tideror fhar STrem
2| fa dwor & A W, wendd smard fad
®UAl TG dbl Alzd URIHE  Furerdr
ARIEl (WITRME) BT 39D §RT dATddD] Bl
fay S arel emarT F Ol B YAfad dErmar
Uq BT B THIOT TG IR &= H
SYRGAR, = oM vd Mu=Re M
SYRGAIAT d Urdpfid 3Tuarell & gwrfad
fgal o1 fQau 7v e ol vq Rarh
R W yAGT yeM fBar T 7| wende
AAo-e YOI Ud Adeie ol
TEIar  sarsal dr W SHBT IfE™
gRATSHRT & oy aRarer faa wsrar
UeTE &Rl ® | MRMdd I Hagd vd e
Tfafaferat @1 <ea e fa< &3 & gRare
IR BT AT BT & ATRI—HATT 7Y IAQ
TG §ToTR 3[TERTT BT fABRIT BT 2 | &
& PIfTeD] T UIRIETT Ud &HdT (107 BT ey

e Baé 2018-19

B AR BT TR 9T T8 2 Mg
gAD AT JEaR A TR W 2 | MDA
D5 Ud B Al B 15T A Ud qIiard
Nt o 99§ FA2ANT ve™ fHar g oiR
& Tl & A 7Y ARDBRI IS8 b
PHTAIT H DAl Arsd Yoidl T AT 11
RETT |

J3MdF  Hor  omRd AfedST AT
(AIveTags), ST CUETEEHA AT AToTeT
—Aqa fory SmarT (3rE) I feem—face
BT TR SUNT B, TAT ARA WIBR & 2022 TH
Ag® forq Jmard fAe @ dgd ITHIoT SMaT
7T AfS AT (SIRTANETHH) &G Uh
D1 Ao Yo |

=1 3 aaTd =g Ul Wigd TRET Y
I (ARIRSIUBEIUAMSUA) Bl 1 A, 2012
T SYTARIT UG e BT HATAT, YRT IRBR

ERT MU fhar TTam o arfe oferd &l
(SS<YYH / UASMSSl  SHRBAT) DI STxall
B R PR B o TR &= H A Bg
HINTT 3R0T BT d8cR yaTe GHred fhar
A | R BT YG&I 13AdD §IRT fbar ST R&T

=

1.2 fFEmafae =T

PRURS IR BT AR dd U6+ &
STdH WR W 9o, UReRfar eiR
STETaQAdT BT geTdr o1 3R JgReTor H fAfgd
BIdT 2 | PRUNC JAfyemas # ufshamel iRk
JER UGl & UP He gRI GHARad o
21dT 2 & ed & Braf &1 Iarad 39 UhR

BT FOTC 2019 7 P1 T HIVUT & AR, XL AT 4 STETTIH 1987 H S1qe9% G FeTiad a5 7Y of | [ 09.
08.2019 @1 SIERTTTT 6. U.311.2902 (3) H a1 Gard 13971, farT #1619 = 09.08.2019 STfergfara fasam forer fafer & far (W.2)

IR, 2019 T STEAT VI @1 W17 VI @& HIGel ol 817 | T&gel, 09.08.2019 ¥, SLIA.%. @I [AfHT Svdsng &l
EYATART 137 717 & |



=g

TerarT oy PR ga i3 SR SRER S
T FEATH W g BIAT B S99 gt
ET| UAIH A9 RG] T R e N
3R AT SR WR sIerd Ud Sfaracdr &
RIgT=l ®I STedTel Tb AT IR T |

1.2.1 9IS &I AT

JMIMTF & BRER S BT BT AHEI
Jrefleror, fee @ik ydyH Qe Hed H
fafeg € < Wduiee fed & Hdyw #
FqaTe Rigial R &rf oxar 2 | FHeere
Sl BT TS+ LY AT db A9, 1987
@ WU & AR AT S g1 9 @
JETLAT STl TSl SN, TR Afad, 9Rd
RBR, I Farera, fa<ig [ard foqmT gRT &
g o ST 27 S[A, 2019 & Yaig dd 3D
DI yay Feerd vd 930 BRG] AfBRT 6
IR TR AWl g5 o | deuegard 9Rd
RBR, faT Famery, fa<ig Jart favrr @ 27
SF, 2019 @ JAfgA  H.  F-No-
24/10/2018&IF-I1 & JAJAR, 51 TRET HAR
BIAT F 27 S, 2019 ¥ I AR I (7317,
d%) @ ey ewe (@) & ©U H 9euR
T fhaT 2 |

qY 2018—19 B SR NIMdH & F9TH Fea

B Gea H FeferRad Rad 8w

%1 3RET HAR BT Pl 27—06—2019 A I3,
d& & gay f1eere & wy H g far 7 |

dF B BT 9IS, T 07—03—18 I RIS
AT e9Td & wU H ISR T fhaT |

3 PAATGYR dgdad Sl Jd BRIUTAD
feer®  SSIdeTS  dd, 06—04—2017 Bl
W d feerd @ ®U H SR T80T fahar |

(X

s =T g, A o d @ B anfie ®
TN WEEY , ARG e TR S as
e, 06—05—2017 0 Wad Masid © 7Y
H geR T8 o |

1.3 e 9rs ded

AT 30—06—2019 @I, ISR I[N dd
S, 1987 @1 aRT 6(1) () B Ted IR
WRBR GRI F1YTh JMATIH & a8l (asd &
AfIR<h, e H F=IfeiRad EREAT & AR
BISECREEEREIDS

ffH & aRT 6(1) (W) B TE8d Bg IRBR
ERI I U IR—aRIeRI faers

AT B ORT 6(1) (1) & TBA DG ARBR
R Fgeh U IR— SriaR) e

rferfras @ aRT 6(1) (8) & T8d WRa Rerd
g6 grRT ARd YR Rod 98 & A9
Hedl 9 UHh Feerd

NAFTTH B ORT 6(1) (8) B TBA DS TRBR
ERT gt ds AR & AHIRAT 4 aT
IRCNGCIN

JNARH B ORT 6(1) (A) B T8A DG IRBR
SR F1gh 59 WRBR & ARl § 4 a1
IRENED

1.3.1 9IS gRT fsa afafaan

rs o A Afafaat o1 e fear 7 arfe .
M. §F B BRIGATI IR J8dx &7 I &7 fear
ST <, T

(i) el o BriuTes afafa (G96),
(ii) aTS @ orRa et |fafer (TRii),




H,
(

(i) Freernt o gierfaaT |k (),

(iv) 1S B A T HART (THaT),

(v) dr @ fafame afafa,

(vi) 9IS DT wigel A, T

(vii) ¥ B IR—FEPNI IURGBARI I
SRTT ghavdiall U= AHIET AR

ge @ Afy= ol @& sl &1 W
RG] B TS | 9IS /IR B S
ferafira sfdRTel W Smafid & S & |

Iy 2018—19 & GRM, 4l HI A 98& gs,
e @ ol e Affa @ 9R 9@ iR
HUTAd A, #Ea A afa o
TH—9 98 1d 98 @1 fafame affa
AT BT ST I3 AT §8 |

JeIT 22 /08 /2019 b AT BT ifa+ vd
I & "cs fr=ifaled &

3. 8 D FSIP Hed &l GE-T

sfi va.®. gidr

g&eT fQerd, IS 3ar 4
sft HefeeR A S
JHIAD IR —BHRIHRI (D
St =R g

BT IR — HRAGRI D
Sf U1 AR AIEdl

= 19 <19 Hrom

IR AfTd, TR RPN,
SICINERGIN NN P ID)

arf§e Ralc 2018-19

=t g1 o1
T A, AN HIDIY,
I yETd HAR

IR A, YR TP,

TTHYOT ST, TTHIOT fAmT=T AT,
YT (BT HATA

S ) sriurars afifa

(i) #11 va.. B, vdy feers,

(ii) Sf. =RoT {48, Haw

(iii) 31 PAATH LR Y. S, HE

(iv) I BAR, A

9IS 31 @ udar |t

(i) 5T UehoT oI, 31ede

(ii) &7 37 g1 Hor, A

(iii) 31 PAATH LR Y. S, A

(iv) 1 U PR,

qIS @1 919q Sare afifa
(i) 11 T4, &. B, el

(ii) N DHATH AR Al S, A

(iii) # 9T HAR, A

(iv) 2 Rrg <14 Hiom, wewy




TR=y

S o wAaelt afifa
(i) # 7. . BT, See

(ii) ST, =TT HAR A, G

(iii) =T. =RT 48, Haw

(iv) 21 Ul SIF, Fa
(v) 3 9T BHER, e

IR-—WgaRl SuURGdIs U4 Gdd
godatan R aifier afafa

(i) 11 T4, &. B, el

(ii) Sf. =RT 8, Aa

(iii) 21 HHATD LR 1. S, FE
(iv) 1 Rrg <14 4ion, ¥ewy
qis @1 uRafern afifa

(i) ST. TG~ HHR Hgdl, 3egel

(ii) =1 et S, Haw

(iii) ST. =R g, Haw

(iv) 51 PHAATHAR A1 S, Fa=I

X
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ffroare@arn

2. fasuredar fagiva g
2.1 yRaTa fagivan
AR Yoft

RT_AT.d% D AT AR Yol 1,450 BRIS . B
g Silfds YRA ABR §RT Yoich: e & |

fafras= vd wideor

o Y & IRM, AL AT I 314, 1987
DI GRT 29% & q&d 7 AN T HUfRIT B
GSTTehROT JHTOTYS T 7T | JeIT 30 S, 2019
DI M. AT I A USiigpa rard fad waf-ar
@ ol T 101 BT TS |

faaryor

e ¥ & TR 25177 HRIe DU &I YAfded
AfaaRor fasar Tar |

o UAMGT UEDl B Al H A9 smarg I
HUFTAT AT BT TTE |

o AU ooft # T oA feelt W 9@ &
AT 0.43 RIS B, DI 3fAGID AR
A E |

e IR TATAUNY (Fae 3fFsidh SMTRE) eI
&I Rerfay 9910 X TE |

GECERCACEaL]
o TAUHE VOl — 3T oI Abih Id

qY 2017—18 B MR IY B AT fIATET faRTd
UR 50 YERI B YHIRIT BT ST |

o arfdfs ®U W HHOIR I/ ey aif
(SSRIUE / TN Sll) B [Ty G+ STTaTd
IIoHE— RO meRd Afedsr  ArerT
(AUATarE—HITaged) @& d8d  2,77,614
IRART BT 6,620 BIIS 5. TAT HIH 3T I
(THaTSSh) & foru roHTars—dueaedey &
TEd 1,49,207 URARI Bl 3,155 BRIS B. Bl
1ol e GiaaRd &1 s |

(X

o fIff= wiafde ZRorerdr GRemHl ® 437 9
3fferes YfaTRTT T PHer DR BT o WR H 12
Uf3TeToT BRIHY AT fhT Y |

IR MIRSE]

o IERY AU W AEe™ |ifa dur el
T R TS Aff & FHer SuRerd gar |

9T 2.1 - GO afifaal & gaer sufkerfa

99 & SR, 037, §6 FEfaRad Fac afafa
& NTHET SUReIT ga:

e feHi®d 17.01.2019 P BexiEre H aref=wer
faem= & G IfRfd &1 sreua= SN |

o fedi® 17.01.2019 & 22.01.2019 T ,
PITHTAT, UIe lIN 3R fAeRao=9 o 9rgd)
g IR TR Ffafa &1 gy ST |

« f3AI® 28.02.2019 ¥ 03.03.2019 TP Fag 3R
2eNETe & forg ot e R e |affd
BT AT ST |

YREDIR U GHITH

© RIATID P Y8 UFABT A R T a9
2017—18 B faeell TR ISHNT BT
Affy et | v R¥BR uTa T |

o AERT URAl T 99 2017—18 B WRAI RSid
% A I T GREBR 9T BT |
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22 @ dfgaw

Jo—ua Afgaw

sfaawor EA RIS DL IBCE
(@8 w.H) (s w.H) (s w.H)
201819 —— 25,177 2018-19 e ——— 69,805 201819 — 3,501
2017-18  — 24,921 2017-18  — 57,684 2017-18 e 3,615
2016-17  p— 22,759 2016-17  [— 54,385 2016-17  — 1,528
2015-16  — 21,687 2015-16 —— 53,573 2015-16  — 2,009
2014-15 — 21,347 2014-15 — 44,737 2014-15 —— 2,951
Gl SUR gl ARG ERRCECIDERCILE NIy
(P ®©H) (@S ®H) (% #)
2018-19  — 63,489 2018-19 —— 75,598 2018-19 1 0.01
2017-18  [— 52,686 2017-18  —— 63,273 201718 i 0.01
2016-17 — 48,437 2016-17 —— 58,251 2016-17 @@ 0.06
2015-16 [— 50,674 2015-16 —— 59,262 2015-16 (= 0.09
2014-15  [— 43,859 2014-15 — 50,285 2014-15  —— (.50
ot U4 et dAfgaw
el 3 IRETe g P AT AT
(@8 w.H) (s w.H) (@8 w.H)

2018-19 s 0,276 2018-19 s 3465 201819 s 733
2017-18 . [ —— 4430 201718 — 3103 | | 2017-18 o — 751
201617 [— 4518 | | 201617 [ — 2957 201617 | —— 815

2015-16  [— 4,213 2015-16  —— 2,399 2015-16 [ — 792
2014-15  [— 3,860 2014-15  [— 2,688 2014-15 [ — 747
<gar Afeaa

HRTAR Fifar @ e ufd &4l & yzard @™

(%) (s ©HA)

2018-19 el 16 2018-19 o 109 2018-19  — 6.72
2017-18 o — 19 2017-18 | —— 110 2017-18 - — 048
2016-17  [— 17 20161 e 117 2016-17  i— 725
2015-16  ———r 19 2015-16  [— 106 015-16  —— 747
2014-15 |l 16 2014-15 [ 101 2014-15  — /.39

N
~ o
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ATy ygia &1 fagmadie

3. Jrfga=zeT &1 fagadi e
ARdT uRg™

¥ 3R THY WASHhIgHEITDG HI  fauid
gRRIRIT & RO 99 2017—18 H Adhel Bl
IATE Bl gfg TR 7.2% I °ITHY a¥ 2018—19 H
6.8% N&1 & dav[E, YRd g1 H Ha- ol |

Tl U 3ffeqaweati § 9 Ueh o |

IRA IRae referawensii &1 a1 fRwr & s
e # v 2019’ # RRTaE &7 1AM =18l 2 | a
2014—15 3 2017—18 T WRA Bl A1 gfg R 7
Dad A9 W Aed off dfcd o WY yg
SFfIERATAT (HIS[GT SHRBI TR Tl UR Sirerd!
& W9 H AU Q) DI I H 95 D off | IHRA
IR UG fadmraeiiel srefaravernsii suasrs iR
foreq areleyeRert & ST H WIRAR Feieyawelr &
arTe sl B auf # FROR 9gdT 381 8 | U
TP A HH HY H, SUASTS B SISl H AR Bl

(X

JRTETT ST 1.3% 9¢T © 3R df¥qe 3reieawer
H T 0.7% 99T &1 99 2018 | SUASIS DI
SIS § 9RA &1 RGN 8% BT | Seedgall &
AR, 3T 2019 H ¥R IR I &1 gfg 3R
IR¥gd IrTTaReT § 5B ded JNTEH b BRI
IMaw srpfagaRen @ gfg iR wugd BFf |
TRl W8 H 9 3R WRd e & uga@
AT & | df¥adh FfTaRT—grRIdR IR df3dd
anfdfer weTfar U HAaretds, I § SRiged ®
RT® BHROT 9IRA &1 HDT gl oIl I8l 2 | S+1d
RfaRerRll IR SWRd 9Nk U4 fasrasiie
feferaReral (FUASIS) B 2019 &I dqeh affdiew
gfg T dfad 3.1 # fem g |

(qfe 3.1— ARa® TR’

o I SISIR |9 HHRIHSD T VE;

\

I 2019 & foTq 3.2 T o ) & IRa® e gie 1 SITA T 147 & T 99 2020 H FERAY
3.5 UFRTd 81 @l W1 & | a9 2020 # SIFAIFT gfg Aeaqul a¥ie W B SRS W R &=l &

o IR IS H FRAR FARTae, @RIAR &R - &3 ¥;
*  FHB AT SR ORIl Sid i sficHT 3iR eavt § wIige; 3R
o I 3R I oIl 31y Jreferaserati # #f ol ¥ FRTae | =19 |

Ty 2019 BT T H 2020 T IRTH g AFA H TGN BT I 70 TRIRT TAGURT Sreferaeernai #
WIS AT GIR TR R T 2 | STafh, I HRS 3Taret aRad i T IR 1R &%l € 5 giier
HRAT 2 b DR b1 BT Fbra iR A 7 UIcHTs =il Bl A7 iRe a9ma 3 gie iR sregarerfa
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4.3.2.

4.3.3.

4.3.4.

Tt T ST E |
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GRUFIT & Ty eTRa’ 1ol & 1l a2l Pl STUEr & JTd WR A4 Sl &, Sid T (b I8
3ifhd Hea | 3ffde 81 8l, [T AMel H JAd o™ @ IMMER W AY YRYFIAT BT Fdey TR WA
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37afer & GINTT YAITTT 13597 717 19727 31 377 Ffagfef (a1 #1g &) enfier 78t avar & )

¢ 0.011 BRI TN 2018 P TEIH §G TII¥ [5aT ST 11 & | 37 A9 H SIVHYHT & STgAIGT PI Hlerm

&)

TUE—18 & "“Hag UeT UHeIdRul’ & 31ef & SR i deb I i SeM €, o Iy FRifa semi
@ T g 3MR U FEMI & A1 ol BT RART T8 QAT TATE |

el

~

N
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21. ANDT
i aui(yarg) 200304 W 200010 B (200708 T gD AFHL EF AT 1961 O 9
3601 )(viii) T 950 5 T 719 3N U 21 F UREd 99 130,58 THe TaHL [O9FT 5T & end®
BIIdTel Yo DI T AT | db 7 MYV & qHET HefeId YD & e H 34Tl 1A Dl 3R
31 PR & [T H ST ITY BRI BT YA (BT | §HD SATREAT JAMSSIVST 7 ITIDR AR, 1961
DI GRT 36(1) (viii) @ d8d faTid 20 /02 /2017 & 397 MR §RT & <10 & Hael H fHeriRor
3BT §IRT qd H MY Y 3pefes Bl el 7T & | I8 A1 faoell Sea <Ry & qHeT aifae
B | frTT 9 S35 oyl & favg foell Soa ~amaTerd # ordiel SRR @ | fieell Soa =mrery  fid
28.08.2018 P 31U AT H TSIHD HRIATS] BT S B AT |
IO 99 2003—04 Bq, T 15045 RIS & ATAR HIC BT IRAIGIT & Hael ¥, IS 7 I
fReRor Ry B RER R & 2| Jad: o qaifed 89 W T v 2017—18 H Hedid
SITABRT FIRT B BT FATK (BT TAT 3R MY B [I5g 37T DI IR Yh, 3T (T3S )
(@) & FAeT TRR fhar T, S S 31.12.2018 & AT ARMSS! (T) §RT S9& MM H 96 B
freg T far a1 € | §6 F 9 SMEEIUCT & AHeT b JMeY & faeg 1UTel Bl WIfidar <1 8
ST 3 Y A 7 | 39 SIfRa, aRT 271 (1) (71) & Sfala <refcs Ufthar Uk @l TE I Hedid
IEABRT & FHeT AfI B |
feIiRor 99 2010—11 & 2016—17 (FEROT G 2015—2016 BT BISHR) &Y, MR TGN ERT HB
SRR BI TS © | 39 MR aul & o7y, SMEIgeT & Uy (FeIiRor 99 2012—13 9 2014—15 Th
Td RSt (T) & wwet kot af 2016—17 2q Mdd dfad 2 | smEEgeT 7 feriRor af 201011
3R 2011—12 B ATl ATQY Y& AT 2 | b 7 T BRI DT YT B AT & oI S 13 Bl
Ifeal § IR\ B & wU § ST AT B | TS 59 Gt H bls UTGUTT BT AP 8] THId]
=

22,  JIreAfd Hx
AT 30 T[F, 2019 BI, dF 7 T 42860 TS DI fact JIRAMT IR @l (SEWe) Tof Bl 2|
IR PR ATRAT SR TIATRM BT FEAT -1 T TS ©

ais I A

P9 | faavor 30 {9, 2019 | 30 S, 2018
ITEANTT B STRAAT: '

1 AT HHATRAT BT b Ferdr & forg uraer 0.42 0.38

2 JAHTY AGAIDBRUT & U UTaelT= 2.30 1.84

3 YT & oIy raem= 253 2.38

4 FHTY ATAT R & oy graer 0.74 0.63

5 GRATNT ANTET UITE TSIl 0.02 0.03
Pl RN PR ATRAAT () 6.01 5.26
JIMRAAId HR QIATY:

1 HIe™ 7.65 8.28
JMIHR IMfAFTIH, 1961 DT &RT 36(1)(viil) D 3l 426.96 337.58
EREESINESRRIE]

@l JRANTT B I () 434.61 345.86
fae RAfRTa & <uar (@) 428.60 340.60
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23. IS U Al JiHI
231  VHATdE ZT G w3 H AT 1 TeTs, 1988 IS ST &Il A1 (TIUaAyUH) WHH B 175 27 3R
S AT depl 3R AT fIed Sul=l & Jegq | y=rierd (a1 A7 o | Tauayed & 01
AT, 2004 X FHIT HR ST TS © |
232  RI3ALdD GRTUTK AT & ATHR Sl /31115, ERT TAUSAYUH & T8 X 0.06 BRIS D!l STAT AT
TR & 3R S BT Jorv U= # gavwT ufafte & IR R oiar ar ¥ |
233 TS0 &3 | U AT fa ol Sf$a1 2o g4 Us saeude faffics, il Tauauyd & 3fefl=
ST IRRNT S & ol Uil SmaTe e wul (311.f3..) H 51 U oI, T IHS §IRT AT B T8
TR i IRl & HRUT fS71d 01.10.1994 ¥ M_MdH §RT TAUEUUE & i 3 @rd =181
GIeT /5 ST R WIHR &1 B DT Ged (AT AT | AT & e 1.37M.d% & Y 8 &
PR T8 WIARD] DI b IHIIT DI YA HR DI addl [T B D ol qeg o7 | db +
TIUATTH & el MSUATHS! B AATYH AT TMAERT B fdog T 0.49 PRIS DI URTDH <IAT BT
fRreriRor faam aiR av 2004 — 05 H HAM AR BT YTaeT b | srgeifad Ufshar & AR, fa=ia 30
SI, 2019 T X 0.27 BRIS & & YT & AT DT YIAT AT AT 3R Y X 0.22 HRIS Bl AT IH
AR &1 For RIf <Iar & &y 4 Hig[g ofig
24, I Y
S 3R BT o H UelRid 31 &g & afids F=TgaR e
s T H
faazor 2018—19 2017—18
1. AR 3R 37eReETT 3.23 3.23
2 IITHET 3R T 0.03 0.49
3. 9T Td Hdl PR I 1.56 1.54
4, qred Y 0.50 0.47
5. ITIATRID Yob 1.14 1.09
6. AT Y 0.21 0.60
7. 3fcred ey * 0.010.00
8. AT Ui |aell damei ) Y 3.01 2.30
9. qre} ¥ ol g Wil & oy g 2.50 4.83
10. &1 Har 2y 1.28 1.38
1. 6.95 7.49
R 20.41 2342
*12. BIART AHSD SIRIE 2.00 2.00

* BTcTifh TIUHR I Bl T TG BT IRgT § 3T Ufdd Ag & U | W 137 2, I8 317 0T BT o

Jﬁm e

.



.‘

i fotE 20158-19

25. AW SaR—agTa aTRiER A @
i FRIET @ Ty FHesr gidmiferaT © avii e Heard- & Yoty © [y [Gaagn AasT 9
IR R4 db & Taem Fael & ogaR, el av 7 9! avf &) Iuderd § eug ™ & @l §
TN ST ST AT 8, S ¥ Gd BIF @i & =14 a1 ST =1feq vd qaged M7 (R
&1 g srerar a3 SAR—aed Rfera M QMEUHheR) @ § Sudel Y S ¥l HF 81 S
e SaR—=reTe SRferd e wrd & o T B1f+ @i § iR fbar Sre | 9! avf gq Sucre
# HeUE @ SR g9 T UNfTS yraem H R af § srfera wifyr 9 «ifde o o € @
SifaRad IR AT Td BT @I | ST @1 STl & Yd GRged [T (@RI &1 (Hadt, af 31 7) &
Fraer SaR—arera srRferd 18 @ d # AR>S &A1 S 2 | 99 & SR 3MSUHRAR Bl AT 6T
RITIARTT &1 fa3T T TAT 30 S, 2019 T I 20.08 RIS BT AY IHRAT T |
26. IRl @1 81
U BT I H, AGIh AP 28—3ATRAT DI B B JJAR db DI (2T AR yRAUTT BT BT
TEIgS ¢ |
27. yafafr@q
271 9¥ & SRM, 9 1 FHIRId & BRoT aIRT gfe uiaftedt &1 ao7s 3 94 1afd &1 Uaid X 0.24 IS
R 1 311 & w9 H ffed @ |
IS T H
faaxo I wud A
df~s R < &9 ¥ Uik gfg ufaftea 12,737.26
3IARCISH / HHATRAT BT T 20,250.00
HIE™ ¥ U4 g H gRIARUI 1,399.00
9% gMR 1,874.00
@ UH PIgcll S QEINIUCH & TJHI0A Bq ofdl URIeTd Pl IIdr 4,000.00
QRS /AT d [det /30 Bl Yiar 14,613.40
T A & forg yara 23,70,351.01
o 24,25,224.67
272 A4 & IRM, 9% 7 I 7 I WU W AA STH & G H TSl HIGET 3 GRae BR o & HIROT g4

3Tafey 3T BT TR H 20.05 BRI DI I BT M & w7 H fafed &1 2 |
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o5 frEw o1 T

251 o aftfa & e o e @ o e, faest @ forr 9o o uRuggar © ferr atie
IR # Fepriomy = @ SN eRfige fimeT o 2 -

faaer Braer 30 S[d, 2019 | 30 S, 2018

@1 A 31 gorr Rerfa|dr wem Reafa
IRYgEdT & foly eRd (TEEIvH) | &) ART WRBR & faAifha ufesfa™i|  93.15 0.00
@) T §fve 0.00 0.00
U Wis 93.15 0.00
fIehl & foly SUeteT (TUHTH) | &) HRT ARBGR &I Taifda uferfer 0.00 100.05
) SEINIRRE] 2676.78 2785.26
) 3MaT faw Wl & IR 5.10 40.43
) 3T ARl & IR: 726.04 726.04
) ¥a- AHUl Hu 0.53 0.53
) G B 0.00 0.00
SU Wie 3408.45 3652.32
MR & foly IRT (TIUHSY) | ) RA ARBR DI [aifdya wfcryfan 0.00 0.00
dAdbd a9 3501.60 3652.32
T I 0.53 7.51
faa faawr 3501.07 3644.80

#arrarer [T el @ SRIRT H [AG9T HHE Q1 19.03.2019 SiI¥ 26.04.2019 BT 1BV TV HaT g
FUT SV ARGT Wl BISNIT BIgav folfBcs # X 2.11 &g 3V X 3322 &g IfHer &/
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B D I
TETHA AFH TUH — 20 H FAYER HTHHS GO0 ¥ He—ag HEaR e

IS T H
faaxor 30 9, 2019 30 S, 2018
01 JTg Bl JATRATT YRS o 96.81 4848
AT & IR gig 48.14 48.33
AT & IR A 0.00 0.00
JAT 30 S P 3ifad oUW 144.95 96.81
T Srary fHfer

qY 2008—09 B foTT FoTe UL BRI THY HEHT I 2 §RT UTHI0T 1mar<d A & 787 &) &yon &
SR, TTHIT AT <1 b1 iU fobarm 1 | g fHife) arforioaes depl gTRT S+ Urerf¥eser &131 3=l
IRIAT DI YT el B U B FEANT & AR TR RAIIT DI T8 | ISR AN b gRT ATHT A
&3 ¥ gHD YA YTl ®f 1 @ forg ffer &7 718+ fham a1 | 30 S, 2019 T@ d& = 39 FfY
@ T Gl T 31,278.18 BRIS DI I UTK DI & TAT $H BIY B T JAT 30 T, 2019 Tb IHTAT
Y T 22,500.00 FRIS & | Ja DT SJTLA—V (FHTG) H “ITHIT 3777 18 & i dpl & SN &
Y F AT TATE |

9183t Jrrary fafer

Y 2013—14 & SR, AR RS 4 & AT & AR T 2,000 BRIS DI AR B A1 AT
RIS ddbl & ANTETH H IS 3MATH db & 1T 3AqD FAEAT H Jig B Gd 0] IuAerdl H
IR A & oy 2rev) aimard (i wenfud &) i off | 39 sifciRe, vy Rerd 9 & sfeed &
AR, IY 2014—15 & foT7 T 4,000 BRIS BT W& ey (e FeiRa @1 7% | g=: 9k d& ardes
DI Al B AR, TY 2016—17 TG T 4,500 BRIE DI B AT e iR @1 715 off | 3 i
PER] AT S & forg gafde vl &1 9g H Ferdd SR a7 28l &3l H I8 dTcl B M
el WU H AT dTel AR & folg IH®T AR SRevdd T H3e1 H A T8 B8 | 30 S[, 2019 T,
d@® 9 T 10,500 PRIS TUY DI M UTG DI & Yd JAT 30 S, 2019 DI IHAT Y T 10,500.00 HRIS
ST 7 | I Pl ST —V —(SH0) H 21 arard (Y & ofasid dof 3 S & wu H =iian
T e

fopwraedY amarT fAfer

2018—19 BT B Tolc H AR Dard fad F3l1, 1 HRAW], 2018 BT A H IURIT g, F5aH =M
RIS H b FAGT [ ard (e &1 RITIAT H1 "yon &I, S IR ARBR §IRT HTierhd
T T &5 # 0T @ Bl SR goia: Afdd afe & faw it € | 9o & SN, 4 ST,
2018 BT AR RO % 10,000 BRIS & HIUA & AT YATH b AT BT GaT o T |
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33.

34.

35.

P\

TUTUH BHH 6 G0 TRIHTKT We &5 751,/ JU—asd] T SYAT § A1 alel THAE! G
TRTG T ToT QT | QUOys © Seed UTHIIT 3N S &7 A ST B &= = T anard @ foy
TS T AT Tl 1 JAH TSR | 98 201620 T g, T serd i (qu=gs)
T Ted 10,000 TS F I AT B T & 30 T, 2019 P TUIUH & TEd U1 Foel 79 ¥
7,500 TRIS & | I BT G- V (ST # fHmrd omara Ay & dga daf | sl & wg o
femmar T g |

SIRT U= divs

I 2008—09 H, 4% 7 T 453.390 IS & dccl I HAled T 1,050 RIS & 3ifhd oI & I (SIRI)
WW(@@@@)Wmﬁlﬁmwﬁaﬁm@WmWﬁl g~ Pl
ST fa¥aR, 2018 31R ATE 2019 H X 750 BRIS IR T 300 PRIS DI I GAHT fear |

0T Uq IAFIH

3 69,192.20 IRIS (A1) & fel BT F N AR AT H H X 27,922.67 HRIS M & F0T TF 3fIH
FOT 9241 TR TR, TGN TR, 9 TR, e IREURTAT IR A1fgd d99d, adf IREURIAT &7
gftedyd 3R da SHIRIl TR FRUME®R & §RT Uicfadhd & | I 41,269.53 RIS RIRM & T U4
31T raferforand & fOTaH 3 ¥ 22,343.22 FRIS AHRIHD TRVMIBR & I 2 |

B ad dIvS

RT3 §b o DR Jod 408 STRI DR, IH R YIHTH BT FCTHR T 4,640.13 PRIS (2012—13 H T
640.13 BRIS 3R 2013—14 H T 4,000 BRIG) DI ol RN FURT I 2 | U dIUS N3M.dh & AR g€
FOI OR FEITf AT JIReR Yo UNR & i | GfeR{faiehd © | 30 SfF, 2019 @1 J27 Rerfd &
ITTAR R 9ad 4108 7 UfHfa & w9 H 3T gficayas MRl o1 7ed T 4,969.37 RIS o |

Y B SR PR Gib dive IR NHIH BT IRENE [JaR01 §9 TR &

(e T W)

CIRS] 2017—18 | 2018—19 |<ITH U4 BIf<T &l gxaidRd

R3ATdH PR qeb divs W WA 46.36 41.72 4.64

JorT ffSr 30.06.2019 BT IM3TdH B Hoh TSl YA W H SR IR IAR—aR < IfeaalRad 2 |
AP AR, MMTH 7 e AT I IR 1T & oY 6.26 @R 3iR 0.14 oG ®UY & 3Mda I W
SraRfed et R |

@
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(@ T H)
Gkl EHEINES G ER IR
2014 I
2015 5 59
2016 7.85
2017 22.81
2018 17.47
2019 15.86
ol qTaRfEd i 70.58
36. fauiy giof yrafiie daer qdive
QST da, HRT S Td e it S0SAT 71 X 564 HRIS (JAT 30 S, 2019 DI THIAT AT T 162.90
RIS B) B I gRT oI fawry Sof) §fvs &l Aedshigd fhar 2 | 3 fa9y oyoft §fve aer: af 2022 w4
2025 T BHATE! faedl § 4FTa AT ¢ |
37.  QEUGdl qivgy
THUFE) dvgd / fedeRt & forfae g1 AR Sufed axar @ R o1E o e anfiet =81 2 1 3 o,
R e feen—Fewl & srgaR SR g S & e siufenfiad Uefd & & | a9 2018—19 & SR,
d% =1 9 /07 & 3TN 5,987.10 BRI B. @ 1Y 4108 TIRI fhyY 3R 99 & SR 1,950.00 IRIS %,
AT @& dfvs gadar By Y| JAT 30 I, 2019 DI sH AN & d8d
6,037.10 RIS IHIATE |
38 IS UITYH SR

Q1T 5 e, 2018 | b 71 Zrg—UIC] XUT (SIARUIVH) GIAeT & ATH ¥ JHR <1 3R B (T
2 forad Auidaiad SUR ofF—< el ¥ (Aduaa) &I SUR wiehiH | fceenfid &=
fear |

QT 24 SJelTs, 2018 B AR RSTd db B AL & AR, A QU 7Y YHEIHROT BT db
g1 fopar ST 2 (ar= T H)

af & ek | ad @ ek | TP SN | e fifr 30
< gRT | oftrwad ger| S0P SN | oo oy e
IHTAT
Ul & ded 991 AT
aferyforn **
i AR gferyfera 24.95 2863.92 2111.48 2655.23
(EremEdive SeR)
ii ®RANT o7 gferfer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii &g =g uferfaar 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ul 3 ded @¥al =l
gfergfor—n **
i AR wferyfera 5.45 108.86 27.03 0.00
(ElRIREUIVH JYUR)
ii ®RURE o7 gl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii ®I$ 317 wferyfera 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3%

ST B 3T H SUGTET TH<) HaT8 W Aeblold 2 SEIN 31V Jad FT &
3Bl Bl SOV b BT B WreT BIT AP [T TIT 8/ @
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39. SERET Ry gy e

SRR G SR gl B AeT HafE S| © W H | 56 W H, T8 g T o 2 o
&I 30 S, 2019 D FHIGT 7afT & SR, TEARfET Gifer iR gt B & sifady arafer s &

Hed # T 7.95 RIS THRAT Y |

gffer sifoea |rafdr s <R &1 faavor

faii adf X ¥ o i X H <arat il I H @d Al
7,12 50,000 12,119 62,119
.13 6,07,968 123,418 7,31,386
14 50,000 29,973 79,973
.15 60,000 29,151 89,151
7,16 12,00,000 4,842 12,04,842
A7 16,37,832 170,285 18,08,117
.18 4,50,000 28,985 4,78,985
.19 2,62,86,900 49,50,968 3,12,37,868
ES] 3,03,42,700 53,49,741 3,56,92,441
gafg o g9a o1 AR <R &1 faavor

fa<ia ad A Hau afdn X H &re afd A g ~fdr
S,12 0 0 0
.13 0 0 0
I, 14 6,85,000 275,313 9,60,313
.15 1,70,000 82,635 252,635
7,16 2,60,000 112,468 3,72,468
17 7,80,000 3,74,605 11,54,605
7,18 24,70,000 8,86,606 33,56,606
7,19 2,81,90,292 95,13,205 3,77,03,497
E| 3,25,55,292 1,12,44,832 4,38,00,124

el
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AR THI—SARET IR i 1 f3awo

ol T e Hifs
R % qa ufd) R ¥ ga ufd)
2008—2009 1,208 853
2009—2010 64,196 13,096
2010—2011 79,064 39,332
2011—2012 11,386 26,697
2012—2013 26,907 36,160
2014—2015 74,220 74,594
2015—2016 58,067 74,488
2016—2017 68,296 87,788
2017—2018 1,32,582 74,002
2018—2019 95,080 1,67,643
2019—2020 68,186 1,97,645
Gl 6.79,192 7,92,298

314,03,774 1 11 1 JAT Arafer ST IR UR <7 =79 03 BT Yol ST R <3 1ol 4§ fagrar 1
ofT | SRITARYT HfAfte 39 99 BT 715 & AR S TR A RUIE B T8 & | Herwawny, G Fraell s iR <3

=TS T11,20,60,279 & 3R G Arafd sl & e H I8 Jo1 ffer 30.06.2019 &I X 3,46,63,388 ¢ |
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40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

P\

AR s TH 1 BT

AT Ad o @ 04 3T, 2018 UGS & AR od SN e@ih Hi6 faae mmmf
TR & el € 3R Fafid wu 9 fafame o axqa o= e 2 | wkar Rerd d@ 1 festia 15 w8,
2019 & 3 U5 & gRT GfAd fhar g & siRae YR i FRerr=all (TIMSuhang) gRT wRdA™
ORAT A & HTITAT BT ITAT AT T IR R I TAT % |

AR GRBR & AARETRAT BT SEITART AR IASE My ' rferfaH, 1987 § Gene=
IRA RBR F o195 ARGAAT [T YA.2M.2198(8) a7 31 A8, 2018 §RT S IMATH dh
rfAferH, 1987 # WA 3T 3iR ITH DI 5[, 2018 & oI a1 | ywrdl fHar @ |

D AfARTH, YR ARDR = 19 HTd, 2019 B T 1,450 DS YR RSTd deb I g&qidRd by 3R
29 3TV, 2019 BT ST IJTEGAAT HEAT THAM660 (§),5 AR fbam b #7e, 2019 & 19 d a7
A JTd], RAR RSTd 9@ BI Aeashiges Yol @ 3ifdhd Jod & YA R dbg IRHR § qRAI Rord
9% GRT I 3N §6 & Udh BoIR IR Al TaTH BRI ST Bl HeHAhTSd Bl T3 Yol SwidNeg
3R e 2 |

sfaadl fder a1 fasl

de = {31 19 AT, 2019 BT X 4.62 BRIS IR HAT JE VT TAUHUS H T 2.11 BRIS Dl AR & 17.64
ARG et WART @1 =T qUieTRa T faferaer fo |

g o fedTd 26 MV, 2019 DI T 286.78 BRIS TR HARGET ®xdl BSRIT Brg-d fofies #
% 33.22 PRI P M BT 118.92 TRI gidac] TART BT (YT YUt &TRAT b7 fafvrarer fowa |

y1aem_ foaa! Amazaedr T8l

o a 2017—18 aToids IMRTAT =] ATRET UTae=ii gd dI “graem Sa! aeadwar &1 4
3faRa fpam T 8% BiclTd I8 facd av 2018—19 W HAIG &R fea1 TAT B |

Rfera fafer

foT 99 2018—19 =Y FaeT & # I I 71 T 178.74 DRI DI ATARAY b S7RfET A1y # AR fobar
TATE |



6‘

. i fotE 20158-19

45 WO ia H g+

Tt 7=l 9 (YIa0H) O¥ 9d | @ g AN B U7 3 U § "W |@iE] 9 0e &6 ®
g few@ran 737 o | greife, are fad a9 & SR, 39 Wit W Ued WY S / Wi o
Ye HUe ® wd H Y AN fdar T € | AHugla § aRade B Bleex, 1 d ddie Tgid |
R BIAT & 3R 9 &1 981 # SHPT Y91d Bl ¢ |

46. a1 SR Bz ¥ fafics (Svavwya)

eI 01.07.2019 BT SITAUBUS A T 134.16 HRIS DI AR IH1AT 1, 5 AP, & A1 |
T ST 2 | 39 Hag # WA Red d@ & Aioar fRenfder & 9R, 05.07.2019 6l FHI
AE B 9 & WU ¥ U8 HIRMRIMSUASTS Ul RUTe H e foha Ty o |

Hhed ATSTT & ATAR YA ﬁv_ﬂTGITQTHWW-ﬁ SURETATS §RT FATG (BT ST | §F Heer
H M3MAdD 7 29 AR, 2019 B TR @ face R E¥aER f&U € S 5 JeTE, 2019 @
JMR—ER FHI & R &, Sl SITAUHUA gRT U<l GrAemedi & Haeg § Hbed Ao &
HTATIIT BT FRAT R |

47. 20T 31X 3T W =1 o1 fgarer.

foT af 2018—19 @ SR, I 7 F 0T 3R 7RH W AT & T H T 4740.51 RIS DI AR H DI & |
1 TR & Feoli 1R IR | et =areT 1 faRor S fean @

.. faazor s T H

1, g WR AT &ret 4,731.91

2, el faT WR IIfSid = 7.68

3. HHANT 0T YR IR =TT 0.85

4. g fad R g5« 0.07
o 4,740.51

48. wifafre oram uwdar ea &1 faavor

IR Rod d6 o QA6 05 FdaR, 2018 & 30 UF HHId SI.41UH.TSRTHH. /2380 /
08:15:008 /2018—19 & §RI rad fhar & & #9991 IR HIs TaAvardl =8 feell & a9
2018—19 B T AT I B WAl oiar uierd & v # fFrye fhar mar @ ik fAfde gea
BT A YA < © | fO7T 99 2018—19 & QR, X 4.05 ARG BT AR BT YA fHIT 74T o7 3R
IS & AT HRA & UTGRIT & HARH 99 7 1T 7] 778 2 |

23



aififes o D ‘
F: ki B R o T H
A wifafE® e olen o WiffT 99 e w5 9.00
2, PR oG] WE Ioh 2.00
3. SIUEE] of@l IRIEl Yo 1.50
4, A gRT MaeTdH YA 3R SIfAReh gHom= R & 1.25
@l 13.75
49. o+ u= faf¥yr & 919 g4 arell gy

50.

o1 fafr @1 faa iffm & s VIS 9T VIIL & wreaee or] g, 9 fafY & o TReR A
a1 9 IR, 2019 & ST JAFRTSAAT HRT TH.3M. 2902 (3) H 9 IR, 2019 & AAId &7 & fraa
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ReE B iR S IR Rod § gRT 37 2 |

T R Tl & AT BT 219 Urewae SR IR @1 ST & |

(ii) HTATH®D Ybhc: IR T RIS A
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4, MY, IIATY 3R HTFIT:
112.09 (i) 3meR & forg uraem 123.09
0.81 (ii) w6 aR¥Fufrl & fog graems 0.71
18.29 (iii) 3mg P rfaf, 1961 @ &RT 36(1)(Viid) 20.14
(1) & 3refie ey Foll & forg uraem
50.00 iv) e= 50.00 193.94
752 5. SRIATT B IIATY 7.93
637.71 ExS| 668.87
ard IR B |
frear ad Cp| qre], a
0.08 1. AS MRl & forg uraem (0.10)
1.18 2. I B IATTIH, 1961 B gRT 36(1)(Viih) 1.85
(M) & e ey iR Afewy Fol & fory wrae
0.78 3. IRYRTA R 0.41
7.20 4. M R B oIy uraerm 11.00
14.36 5, ST o &7 99 18.00
23.60 E] 31.16
2.02 6. M R SR, 1961 B gRT 36(1)(Viid) & AR oy sm=fara ey # sfdwor 1.59
12.34 7. T 9F BT WA AY 16.41
14.36 o 18.00
g/— g/— z/—
ARG, IRfAT mfaa s TH I 3raeefl
ey Used NEREIRRISEEET T i iy
g/— g/— g/—
ST— argat gAR Prard) TS, gl EST S
HRUTAS Feerd EECAEENEY fodora

/\éﬁﬁ-ﬁ. 22 SFTE, 2019
L2 o~

N



(X

i fotE 20158-19

30 97, 2019 i am atr sy @
A= @ anar| [FE (231 T mefz H)
fraren 99 = =T, 99
1. TP AR dF oW:
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0.01 () 5 SERIRRT R yr «are 0.01
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frear ad Cip| qre], a
11.06 1. =on 3R Al W e 7.68
12.49 2. faaen & ema 23.48
0.05 3. U9 3rd Iruferd wE 0.00
23.60 B 31.16
12.34 4. A 1S TS AN DY A9 N 16.41
2.02 5. T PR AMRIH, 1961 @1 ORT 36(i)(viii) FHeH H fawry smfara 1.59
ey ¥ 3favor
1436 el 18.00

dEr T AT B4 arell fewforr
1. a9y Y &7 gemE e e BT oiRaT ISERT o1 da (Afer il guR &R e e smar () fafva, 1993 & Sudt @ sER
AR foar T &

2. TR AT o ([l IR GuR iR 11 AT smars 1Y) Mt oirare a6 WiRes o Wo (GRI9) & Jg9R Wiked w9 9 fadl ft

fT gIRT ST @1 1€ R T 40 Uferera veRid dvar 2 | T fafy & Wer g RAIE @ aqar
3 I, e g SR 31y uRemed <, faery A4S @rd & uwiRe &t exar 2 | FHd 99 S &, Yargardl
g —

(ST. Srg¥. raaq)
WITER, AERIdl_¥. 083030

. @L










. O
€l X

PN

SReCh
I 2015—19 (1 a8 H 31 °7=) B =INH a9 9 2~ w9 9w &9 2 491 3 Jatras

NMICIE =AY

o WR-Ir dafeas sfaaver
3. AT F ol <fr qd gordal G|
Ra}is ®) DT % > wE DT %
1 2 G b 3,147 1 3,39,172 9
2 > AEG W < 5 7,315 2 3,30,726 8
3 >BAEH < 1@ A 31,331 7 7,39,178 19
4 > 310 G 9 < 25 o 1,35,048 29 14,94,375 38
5 > 325 TG 2,83,731 62 9,89,307 25
6 oA 4,60,572 100 38,92,758 100

GicT: STqIT [T HaAa vq @idifae &7 & @l d I 37arT d6 gIRT FHfed sier

s 11
99 2018—19 & QIR VIS gRT GUfFd fFraa ddE= (19a18 9 30 )
B, b e IRT B dxis H)
1 PN AT dis 5,087
2 CHNISEACE 2,955
3 3[BT T FT 4,505
4 TUIUH & dgd ol 7,500
5 e SuR 905
Bl (TH) 21,852
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. o Ralc 2018-19
-

-der 1
J20T 30.062019 F1 IHRT THEH
®. e IR R dxIs H)
1 P Had divS 4,641
2 faeIy sjgerr dfvs 163
3 goil Ay dfvs 3
4 3 dive 6,037
5 EHNINERE] 2,955
6 STHT @F TSl | 0T 0
7 BT AD T 4,505
8 TMRIF I SuR 0
9 fash SR 1,941
10 DICINESICIGREIES 22,500
11 NERCICISAGIE 10,500
12 [EARGIRSICINREICE 7,500
13 e drafer s 78
14 SCIEASIEIERSE] 22
15 [ARIRER]| 2,655
el (eTH) 63,500
I IV
99 2018—19 & ‘M YAfda Hiaaror — w3 gvfii—ar R T Bt A
. G | deaHE Hof 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
1 Imary o< swuf~ram 16,779 11,508 21,736
A aivTiRIes I 5,696 13,283 3,300
3 = 209 130 141
Bl 22,684 24,921 25,177
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HIaT V
99 2018—19 @ =H e v EiAT wfaa— giv—ar AT T BrS
®H— 9§ | e Aol frafia fomrd fpwrd ESTE Bl
3marg fafer marg fafer | =1 3ma
— 1) —rfyor 3T
1 I faa pufaai 15,118 6,074 520 24 21,736
2 S ENESIEIRISEACED 2,340 610 350 3,300
3 Iy 0 50 91 141
Bl 17,458 6,734 961 24 25177
3gser VI

99 2018—19 & IRM fHy v gafdw dfaarer— dafaas smar o1 AR—aR

P3| ART—aR A ko1 IR RIIS H) |G BT % | SHISAI D G&AT [§HdA BT %
1 32 G & 1,029 4 2,10,624 52
2 >3 A | < 57T 698 3 20,833 5
3 >BAG A< 10 A 3,306 13 53,033 13
4 > 310 I A< 15 @G 5,628 22 49,184 12
5 >335 ARG A< 20 G 6,313 25 39,109 10
6 >3320 ARG A< 25 @G 4,376 17 21,818 5
7 > 325 TG 3,827 15 13,693 3
Hd 25177 100 4,08,294 100
s VII

30 S[, 2019 d& w9l yafda wfawor
®. 9 | e AvfY R RS #) Bl BT %
1 JMard fa<a wuf~ram 1,19,834 51
2 I Ao I 1,11,636 47
3 eI ILIMICED 2,066 1
4 I (FEHIRa afd) 3,168 1
Bl 2,36,704 100

e




e Bdé 2018-19

(X

Fgae VIII
EEIESECEAL
R T IS H
. G | G Avf 30-06-2015 | 30-06-2016 | 30-06-2017 | 30-06-2018 | 30-06-2019
1 I fod wufer 34,300 29,735 40,312 38,146 50,145
2 IYfaa @i d@ 18,575 22,045 13,276 19,524 18,010
3 = 1,156 1,284 1,217 1,055 940
Bl 54,031 53,064 54,805 58,725 69,095
Igse IX
JrfioT Imar fAfer dfaaxer
P T PIs H
o ) SYArdaT
3T
amary fa<r| sgqfaa| &= J— S swrar
sufr  |arforfsae| arfior > & e
CEg CED
2008-09 1,778 1,545 0 202 15 1,761 95,577
2009-10 2,000 1,795 0 185 36 2,016 70,995
2010-11 2,000 1,688 182 134 0 2,004 42,859
2011-12 3,000 2,126 721 143 13 3,003 1,26,795
2012-13 4,000 1,940 1,802 285 0 4,027 3,56,480
2013-14 6,000 2,326 1,023 94 0 3,444 5,35,299
2014-15 8,000 2,101 2,599 220 0 4,920 2,74,924
2015-16 0 2,943 439 370 0 3,752 58,433
2016-17 4,500 3,482 918 155 0 4,556 3,36,804
2017-18 0 894 933 1 0 1,828 49,267
2018-19* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gl 31,278 20,839 8,619 | 1,789 64 31,311 19,47,433

*faT ayf 2018—19 ¥, RYAVE X JUaVE P TYIVE H [@c7d &Y 47 7T &



DS
A X
: L
AR T IS A
: Sugifrar
GLj R ICEo |
Imar fa<| srggfaa | e ar=r e sorEal
syt | arfvrfisae | arfior > .
I C
2013-14 2,000 129 744 0 0 873 18,310
2014-15 4,000 902 2,769 0 30 3,700 1,26,373
2015-16 0 94 1,256 33 0 1,383 28,251
2016-17 3,000 1,896 278 4 50 2,228 20,238
2017-18 1,500 1,649 538 79 50 2,316 21,399
2018-19* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
] 10,500 4,670 5,584 116 130 10,500 214,571
*faT qY 2018—19 ¥ SRYIAVE 3N JUAVE B YUaVFH H 9079 BY Q97 797 &
e XI
fowradt smara fAfer afaawor
IR T IS A
) Sugifrar
GLj R ICo |
s ) Sgapad | s I Bl EEIERI
syl | arforfsas | grefior & T
EEKD i
2018-19 7,500 6,594 960 91 50 7,695 1,37,176
Hd 7.500 6,594 960 91 50 7.695 1,37,176
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arffes RAé 2018-19

e XI1
g AT @ 989 i — 99-ar

I T s H
CL sfaaxer Aot dfaazor
2005—06 365 1,023
2006—07 172 1,195
2007—08 449 1,644
2008—09 35 1,679
2009—10 52 1,731
2010—11 312 2,043
2011—12 64 2,107
2012—13 93 2,200
2013—14 34 2,234
2014—15 — 2,234
2015—16 97 2,331
2016—17 75 2,406
2017—18 — 2,406
2018—19 — 2,406
e XIII

a9 2018—19 ¥ 3Imary faa wuf-rai o=l gsiiexor yamora ygE fear =&

%9 Arfa®s. ™ YSiHYoT gATOTS oIl &3 D1 fafd
1 Soll 8M Wig9 fafiics 31-JelTs-18
2. ARG 81 BIs+d urgde ferfics 31-I[TS-18
3. RIETIT BRRAT Brg=id uigde fafics 28-STTaI-19
4, dfuca sfear 8M @ fafics 07-THRaxI-19
5. ARIGRAT JTbredd BRI BIg-id foAcs 15-5-19
6. 31 BMfth Urgde fafics 15-H3-19
7. 31eH BRI WIg+id Urgde fofics 17-57-19
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e XTIV
4% g siaad) e 37 fa
®.| nfas. sfaad frae $Y Yad® Jddis Jddie
. A IRRYTRAT | & der BT A (@s wud H/)| @t fafd
1. | THSIRIRUS | 5.48% 3211 RIS gﬁgﬂ%ﬂ 34.62 20 919,
(g o
2 | THAIRTAUHUE|  11.00% | T33.22 HRIS ST s Wﬁmﬁ 7286.78 2203;??['
forfaes
(TATHUHTAT)

I XV
JAT 30 S, 2019 &I IqYfaa wrfa, sgqfaa s=onfa dum = fss ay &1 ufafafera

£ iff®dl H G fgd st ad & IRM
gy Fyfaaal & den
Weft weft g gaI=ifa gIRT # I ugfa grr
o Ol vadl A g wadl vl and o waell wadh sndiRil g
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
Jqu v 109" 13 04 29 - - - - - - - - -
CaS| 109 13 04 29 - - - - - - - - -

*fewft : v GOy SIFIBIRIT B THY 4 vAST TS HgaT, g1 3ilv H13i enfacr el &
#YTSIT D H STNETT BT Wl ¥l & [y & & U9 S Ual v SEIBRl @l sl HVe SR IR dl
STretl 8 (a9 fare)
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aEE XVI— SHI8-ATH, 2019 T 39 wR-AR TadhE @ e e

IER BT M A R &x A ﬁaﬂ“
aqrd, S, Rrd., fo, ard, SA—18 | fad—18 | fadi—18 | Ard—19 | Wrd—19
EEIk EEIE Rk I EEIE
2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 Ai—18 | G168 | Ricits | R¥i—18 | FTd—18
% qcad | % 9<ard | % dcad | % 9<ad |% dgdrd
3FASIETE 100 105 114 116 120 5.0 8.6 1.8 34 20.0
ERGEs 29 102 109 110 114 3.0 6.9 0.9 3.6 15.2
fyarsr 29 103 112 113 121 4.0 8.7 0.9 7.1 222
aTet 101 101 103 104 102 0.0 2.0 1.0 -1.9 1.0
YITIIR 100 102 105 107 111 2.0 29 1.9 3.7 11.0
faRe TR 100 102 105 108 107 2.0 29 29 -0.9 7.0
ThT 100 103 104 105 97 3.0 1.0 1.0 -7.6 -3.0
IENTe (SR 100 104 104 106 105 4.0 0.0 1.9 -0.9 5.0
ERE 100 101 101 102 105 1.0 0.0 1.0 2.9 5.0
PITY 100 101 106 110 119 1.0 5.0 3.8 8.2 19.0
<ENIGH 99 100 102 107 105 1.0 2.0 4.9 -1.9 6.1
feeer 100 29 98 98 98 -1.0 -1.0 0.0 0.0 -2.0
THRIGTETE 100 100 102 102 100 0.0 2.0 0.0 -2.0 0.0
TR 29 106 111 115 119 7.1 4.7 3.6 3.5 20.2
RIINRIEIE 29 100 101 104 108 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.8 9.1
e AT 101 102 103 104 104 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 3.0
THUTH 100 100 101 102 102 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 2.0
TATET! 100 101 103 105 112 1.0 2.0 1.9 6.7 12.0
EES 100 102 105 105 111 2.0 29 0.0 5.7 11.0
BERIETE 100 104 109 111 122 4.0 4.8 1.8 9.9 22.0
1N 100 103 106 107 111 3.0 29 0.9 3.7 11.0
SRR 100 100 101 103 104 0.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 4.0
S INBSIECER 100 102 105 108 109 2.0 29 29 0.9 9.0
BIYR 99 99 100 99 106 0.0 1.0 -1.0 7.1 7.1
Pifea 100 100 101 101 94 0.0 1.0 0.0 -6.9 -6.0
EaREanl 100 103 104 104 107 3.0 1.0 0.0 2.9 7.0
AT 100 101 103 103 103 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 3.0
RIERIE 101 100 101 103 107 -1.0 1.0 2.0 3.9 5.9
NS 100 101 104 106 107 1.0 3.0 1.9 0.9 7.0
HRT HIT=R 100 102 104 106 109 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.8 9.0
g 100 102 104 105 105 2.0 2.0 1.0 0.0 5.0
ANTYR 100 101 102 102 105 1.0 1.0 0.0 2.9 5.0
BlINED 100 103 105 105 106 3.0 1.9 0.0 1.0 6.0
REUK:GE 100 101 104 107 108 1.0 3.0 2.9 0.9 8.0
= T BIABIIT 101 105 108 110 120 4.0 29 1.9 9.1 18.8
AT 100 103 107 111 111 3.0 3.9 3.7 0.0 11.0
e 100 102 105 107 113 2.0 29 1.9 5.6 13.0
el 100 100 101 104 108 0.0 1.0 3.0 3.8 8.0
ot feraars 101 101 103 103 99 0.0 2.0 0.0 -39 -2.0
g@r 100 104 106 107 107 4.0 1.9 0.9 0.0 7.0
RAYR 100 101 103 103 109 1.0 2.0 0.0 5.8 9.0
NEEIC 100 100 102 102 101 0.0 2.0 0.0 -1.0 1.0
Nkl 99 101 103 112 117 2.0 2.0 8.7 4.5 18.2
R 100 101 103 103 106 1.0 2.0 0.0 29 6.0
BT 100 103 107 107 107 3.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 7.0
frea-agws 29 101 104 104 111 2.0 3.0 0.0 6.7 12.1
ESEl 29 102 104 104 107 3.0 2.0 0.0 2.9 8.1
ERERER 100 101 104 104 103 1.0 3.0 0.0 -1.0 3.0
IESEEIS 100 100 100 100 99 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.0 -1.0
faemRaTITTH 100 101 102 103 107 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.9 7.0
IR foHmEl ad qoa faaer
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5.. K. Hota .A‘m 52

MATIONAL

Managing Director HOUSING BANK

Letter of Transmittal

NHE [T WL 1735, 201820
Crcbober 17, 2010

The Scoretary

Government uf India

Ministey of Tinance

Drepartment of Financial Services
leevandeep Building, Parliament Street
Wew Dedli - 110000

Sir,

I accordance with The provision of sub-section {3) of Section 40 of the ~atiomsl
lonsing Bank Acl, 1987, | furward herewith a copy of the Annual Report along with the
Annual Accounts of the National Tlousing Bank foe the vear 200819,

Yours Faithfully,

%
{SUE Lota)

Encl. : Az above

A W & s TR e Batory Body vnsler ke Qovarnimsnt of Indls
W 5T T 09 3 e e 9 9E E B0 Core Sl Sk Flogs, India Hasisal Canire, Ladh Kead, Sew Dehi-110003

T £ 400110464 27E2, 2AED 3470 (Rl 4890129549030 Phona ; =04-11-2464 275, BAG0 94TD Fax ;491 14 2404 8070
TG kL aernail s mEEnhboro.in
g7 =) 4 wEn o |re e 2

. |@

N
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S. K. Hota '
Managing Directar ¥ HOUSING BANK

Letter of Transmittal

MG (MDY MDAOUTLTE 36,/ 201920
Chotorber 17, 2079

The Secroetary

Governmenl of Tndia

Iinistry of Finance

Dopartment of Economic Affalrs
Morth Block

Mew Delhi- 110001

Sir,
In accurdance with the provision of sub-scclion (3) of Scction 40 of the Natonul
Housing Bank Acl, 1987, Tlorward herewith a copy of the Annual Report along with the

Annual Accounts of the National Housing Bank for the year 2008-19.

Yours falthtully,

Ll s As abowve

e Hewit o sanfo HiltRae Faos Slalvlury Body urnsier bhe Quvwernmmnt @i dis
T 5T UET 99 Ifem T fE Ol e T ety Coee S5-A, SIhFlooer, India Habitat Cenlre, Lodhi Road, Meyw Delli-1 10003

T - #2454 FT22, B4B0 4T T ¢ 48112965037 Phoao - e8]-11-2404 FTI2, 2460 3470 Fax ; +87-11-2454 5130
THel  reldEnbhuomin a-rak ! madginhb.arg.n
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INTRODUCTION

1. Introduction
1.1 About National Housing Bank

The National Housing Bank (NHB) is a
development financial institution,
established in 1988, under an Act of
Parliament, viz. the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 (Central Actno. 53 of 1987). NHB is
to operate as a principal agency to promote
housing finance institutions and to provide
financial and other support to such
institutions. NHB performs three broad
functions - regulation' and supervision of
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs),
financing and promotion and development.
NHB is committed towards establishment of
a sound and sustainable housing finance
system in the country by way of promoting
institutional framework and market
infrastructure.

Vision

Promoting Inclusive Expansion with Stability in
Housing Finance Market.

Mission

To harness and promote the market potentials to
serve the housing needs of all segments of the
population with the focus on low and moderate
income housing.

Objectives

The NHB has been established to promote a

(X

sound, healthy, viable and cost effective
housing finance system to cater to all
segments of the population and to integrate
the housing finance system with the overall
financial system. NHB has also been
assigned the responsibility of promoting a
network of dedicated housing finance
institutions to adequately serve various
regions and different income groups. It is
also responsible to augment resources for the
sector and channelize them for housing. The
NHB is expected to make housing credit
more affordable and accessible to the
common man. The NHB has been
established with the task of regulating the
activities of Housing Finance Companies
based on regulatory and supervisory
authority derived under the NHB Act, 1987.

NHB has been established to achieve, inter
alia, the following objectives:

* To promote a sound, healthy, inclusive
and viable housing finance system to
cater to all segments of the population
and to integrate the housing finance
system with the overall national financial
system,

* To develop a network of dedicated
housing finance institutions to
adequately serve all regions and sections
in the society;

e To facilitate finance and other resources

" Pursuant to the announcement in the Union Budget 2019, necessary amendments were proposed in the National Housing Bank
Act 1987. Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide notification No. S.0.2902 (E) dated 09.08.2019 has
notified 09.08.2019, as the date from which the provisions of Part VII of Chapter VI of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 shall come
into force. Accordingly w.e.f. 09.08.2019, the requlation of HFCs stands transferred to RBI.

&
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for development of housing and create a
framework for institutions for enhancing
the quality of credit and affordability;

Toinnovate and develop new products in
housing finance to cater to the specialized
needs of different categories of the
population;

To create an appropriate environment for
the development of sustainable habitat
and housing finance system through eco-
friendly housing using energy efficiency
and sustainable practices by partnership
and collaboration with domestic and
multi-lateral agencies.

Functions

NHB performs multidimensional
activities in the pursuit of its objectives,
under three broad functions, viz.
regulation’ and supervision, financing
and promotion and development. As a
regulator of Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs), NHB is entrusted with the
responsibility of issuing Certificate of
Registration (CoR) to HFCs for
commencement and carrying on the
business of housing finance in India. The
supervision of the HFCs is done by NHB
through on-site inspection and off-site
surveillance, market intelligence and
coordination with other regulators. On
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the financing front, NHB extends
refinance assistance to primary lending
institutions (PLIs) including HFCs and
Banks for their housing loans to
individuals. Refinance is extended at
concessional rates for housing loans
given to borrowers in rural and urban
areas, low income and informal income
borrowers and persons affected by
natural calamities. NHB also extends
project finance assistance to public
agencies and public private partnership
entities for their housing projects. The
promotion and development activities of
NHB are aimed at strengthening the
operating environment of the housing
finance sector as well as development of
new products and market infrastructure.
Training and capacity building for the
personnel of the sector is carried out with
the objective of not only streamlining the
processes but also for better information
dissemination. NHB has assisted in the
formulation of the Central and State
Housing and Habitat policies of some of
the States and has also been playing the
role of Central Nodal Agency in
implementation of Government Schemes
for housing to the targeted segments.

NHB is a Central Nodal Agency (CNA)
for the Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme
(CLSS), the second vertical of the

* Pursuant to the announcement in the Union Budget 2019, necessary amendments were proposed in the National Housing Bank
Act 1987. Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide notification No. S.0.2902 (E) dated 09.08.2019 has
notified 09.08.2019, as the date from which the provisions of Part VII of Chapter V1 of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 shall come
into force. Accordingly w.e.f. 09.08.2019, the requlation of HF Cs stands transferred to RBI.
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Fradhan Mantri Awas Yojana [FIAY] -
Housing for All (Urban) Scheme
Guidelines, and the Rural Housing
Interest Subsidy Scheme (RHISS) under
the Housing for All by 2022 Mission of the
Government of India.

e The Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust for
Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH) was
setup by the MoHUA, Gol onMay 1, 2012
to ensure better flow of institutional
credit for housing in urban areas to cater
to the needs of the targeted segments
(EWS/LIG borrowers). The Trustis being
managed by NHB.

1.2 Governance Structure

The essence of Corporate Governance lies in
promoting and maintaining integrity,
transparency and accountability in the
Management’s highest levels. Corporate
Governance encompasses a set of systems
and best practices to ensure that the affairs of
the organization are being managed in a
manner which ensures compliance with the
laws and adherence to the highest standards
of transparency and business ethics. NHB
would continue to strengthen its principles
of fairness and accountability to generate
long term value for its stakeholders on
continuous and sustainable basis.

1.2.1 Composition of the Board

General superintendence, direction and
management of the affairs of the business of
the NHB are vested in the Board of Directors,
which acts on business principles with due

188
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regard to publie interest. The Board of
Directors has been constituted in accordance
with the prowisions of the INational Housing
Bank Act, 1987. The Board was chaired by
Smt. Dakshita Das, Additional Secretary to
Government of India, Ministry of Finance,
Department of Financial Services having
additional charge of MD&CEO of NHB till
forenoon of June 27, 2019; thereafter, in
pursuance to the Notification no.
F.No.24/10/2018-IF.I1 dated June 27, 2019 of
the Government of India, Ministry of
Finance, Department of Financial Services,
Shri Sarada Kumar Hota has assumed the
charge as Managing Director (MD) of
National Housing Bank (NHB), with effect
from June 27,2019.

The following changes took place in the
composition of the Board of Directors of
NHB during the year 2018-19:

* Shri Sarada Kumar Hota was appointed
as MD of NHB, with effect from 27-06-2019.

* Dr. Prasanna Kumar Mohanty, Director,
Central Board of RBI is continuing as RBI
Nominee Director with effect from 07-03-2018.

* Shri Kamalkishore Chandravadan Jani,
Former Executive Director of IDBI Bank,

is continuing as Independent Director
with effect from 06-04-2017.

* Dr. Charan Singh, Former RBI Chair
Professor of Economics, IIM Bangalore, is
continuing as Independent Director with
effect from 08-05-2017.
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1.3 Board of Directors

As on 30-06-2019, apart from Managing
Director, NHB appointed by the
Government of India under Section 6(1) (a) of
the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, there
were seven other directors on the Board, as
per the following composition:

* one non-official Director appointed by
the Central Government under Section 6
(1) (b) of the Act

* one non-official Director appointed by
the Central Government under Section 6

(1) (c) of the Act

* one Director from among the Board of
Directors of Reserve Bank of India,
nominated by the Reserve Bank of India
under Section 6 (1) (d) of the Act

* two Directors from amongst the officials
of the Central Government, appointed by
the Central Government under Section 6
(1) (e) of the Act, and

* two Directors from amongst the officials
of the State Government, appointed by
the Central Government under Section 6
(1) (f) of the Act.

1.3.1 Committees Constituted by the Board

The Board has constituted seven Committees
to enable better and focused attention on the
affairs of NHB, viz.

i) Executive Committee of Directors (EC),

ii) Audit Committee of the Board (ACB),

Annual Report 2018-19

iii) Remuneration Committee of Directors

I:RC :I-"

iv) Human Resource Committee of the
Board (HRC),

v) Regulatory Committee of the Board,
vi) Supervisory Committee of the Board, and

vii) Review Committee of the Board on Non-
Cooperative Borrowers and Willful
Defaulters of the Bank

The functions of the various Committees of
the Board are well-defined. The Board /
Committee meetings are held at regular
intervals.

During the year 2018-19, the Board met seven
times, the Audit Committee of the Board met
four times, the Executive Committee and the
Human Resource Committee met three times
each and Regulatory Committee of the Board
met two times.

The following is the composition of the

Board and reconstitution of committees as on
22/08/2019:

Composition of the Board of Directors of
NHB:

Shri S.K. Hota
Managing Director, National Housing Bank

Shri Kamalkishore C. Jani
Part-Time Non-Official Director

Dr. Charan Singh
Part-Time Non-Official Director

e
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Dr. Prasanna Kumar Mohanty
Central Board of Director
Reserve Bank of India

Shri Shiv Das Meena

Additional Secretary to the Government of
India, Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs

ShriPankaj Jain

Additional Secretary to the Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of
Financial Services

Shri Prasant Kumar

Additional Secretary to the Government of
India, Rural Housing, Department of Rural
Development, Ministry of Rural
Development

Executive Committee of the Board

i) ShriS. K. Hota, Chairman

if) Dr. Charan Singh, Member

iii) Shri Kamalkishore C. Jani, Member

iv) Shri Prasant Kumar, Member
Audit Committee of the Board

i) ShriPankajJain, Chairman

ii) Shri Shiv Das Meena, Member

iii) Shri Kamalkishore C.Jani, Member

iv) Shri Prasant Kumar, Member

&
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Human Resource Committee of the Board

i) ShriS.K. Hota, Chairman
ii) ShriKamalkishore C.Jani, Member

iii) Shri Prasant Kumar, Member

iv) ShriShiv Das Meena, Member
Supervisory Committee of the Board

i) ShriS.K. Hota, Chairman
ii) Dr.P.K.Mohanty, Member
iii) Dr. Charan Singh, Member
iv) ShriPankajJain, Member

v) ShriPrasant Kumar, Member

Review Committee of the Board for Non-
cooperative and Wilful Defaulters

i) ShriS.K. Hota, Chairman

ii) Dr. CharanSingh, Member

iii) Shri Kamalkishore C.]Jani, Member
iv) ShriShiv Das Meena, Member

Remuneration Committee

i) Dr.Prasanna Kumar Mohanty, Chairman
ii) ShriPankajJain, Member

iif) Dr. Charan Singh, Member

iv) Shri Kamalkishore C.Jani, Member
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri S. K. Hota

Dr. Charan Singh Shri Kamalkishore C. Jani Dr. Prasanna Kumar Mohanty

1 ¥
Shri Shiv Das Meena Shri Pankaj Jain Shri Prasant Kumar
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PERFORMANCE

2. Performance Highlights
2.1 Operational Highlights
Share Capital

* Equity share capital of NHB stood at
1,450 crore, which is fully subscribed to
by the Government of India.

Regulation & Supervision

* During the year, 7 HFCs have been
granted Certificates of Registration
under Section 29A of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987. As on June 30,
2019, the total number of HFCs registered
with NHB stood at101.

Financing

¢ Refinance Disbursements of 325,177 crore
were made during the year.

e Three HFCs were added to the refinance
clients list.

* Recoveries of non-performing assets
aggregating to 30.43 crore were made,
without further loan slippage into NPA
category.

* Maintained the status of ‘Nil" NNPAs
(Net Non-Performing Assets) Institution.

Promotion & Development

e NHB RESIDEX - Housing Price Indices
now being published for 50 cities at
quarterly intervals with base year as
2017-18.

* Disbursed interest subsidy of 6,620 crore
to 2,77,614 households under PMAY-
CLSS for EWS/LIG, and %3,155 crore to

e
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1,49,207 households under PMAY-CLSS
for MIG during the year.

* Conducted 12 training programmes
across India, covering more than 437
participants from various PLIs.

Governance

* Appeared before the Standing
Committee on Urban Development and
Parliamentary Committee on
Subordinate Legislation.

Box 2.1 - Appearance before the
Parliamentary Committee

During the year, NHB appeared before the
following Parliamentary Committee:

o Study Visit of the Parliamentary
Committee on Subordinate Legislation to
Hyderabad on17-01-2019.

o Study Visit of the Standing Committee on
Urban Development to Guwahati,
Kolkata, Port Blair and Visakhapatnam
from 17-01-2019 to 22-01-2019.

o Study Visit of the Standing Committee on
Urban Development to Mumbai and
Hyderabad from 28-02-2019 to 03-03-2019.

Awards & Recognition

* NHB’s in-house magazine ‘Aawas
Bharti’ received the first prize from the
Delhi Town Official Language
Implementation Committee TOLIC for
the year 2017-18.

e The ‘Aawas Bharti’ also received third
prize from Reserve Bank of India for the

year 2017-18.




2.2 Key Metrics

Balan

ce Sheet Metrics
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2018-19
2017-18
2016-17
2015-16
2014-15

Disbursements
(X in crore)

e 25,177
—— 24,921
22759
B 210687
213847

Loans & Advances
(X in crore)

201819 ——— 69,305
2017-18  —— 57,634
2016-17  — 54,385
2015-16  [— 53,573
2014-15  [— 14,737

Investments
(R in crore)

20181 e 3,501
2017-18 [ —— 3,045
2016-17  |— 1,528

2015-16  —— 2,909
2014-15  —— 2,951

Total Borrowings
(X in crore)

Total Assets
(X in crore)

GNPAs to Loans &
Advances (in %)

2018-19 [ — 63,489 2018-19 —— 75,598 2018-19 1 0.01
2017-18  — 52,686 2017-18  —— 63,273 2017-18 | 0.01
2016-17  — 48,437 2016-17 [ —— 58,254 2016-17 @ 0.06
2015-16  [— 50,074 2015-16  —— 59,262 2015-16 (= 0.09
014-15 — 43,859 2014-15 | — 50,285 2014-15 I —— 0.50
Profit & Loss Metrics

Total Income Operating Expenses Profit After Tax

(X in crore) (X in crore) (X in crore)
2018-19 | 15,276 2018-19 | 3,465 2018-19 | 733
2017-18 e — 4,430 2017-18  — 3,103 2017-18  — 751
2016-17 [ — 4518 2016-17 [ — 2,987 2016-17 [ ——— 48
2015-T0 [— 4,213 2015-16  — 2,899 2015-16  ——— 792
2014-15 [ — 3,360 2014-15 [ ——— 2,083 2014-15  — 747
Efficiency Metrics

CRAR Number of Employees PAT per Employee
(in %) (R in crore)

2018-19 e 16 2018-19 o 109 2018-19 — 6.72
2017-18  — 19 2017-18  — 116 2017-18 i — 648
2016-17  — 17 2016-17  — 117 2016-17 [ — 725
2015-16  [— 19 2015-16  [— 106 01516 —— 747
2014-15 (o 16 2014-15 | 101 2014-15 ol 739

AN
e







BALCONY...Vantage Point for Looking Around:
Facing the page Overview of Housing & Economy

CHAPTER 3:
OVERVIEW OF HOUSING
TRENDS



OVERVIEW OF HOUSING TRENDS

3. Overview of the economy
Indian Outlook

Despite moderation in its GDP growth from
7.2% in 2017-18 to 6.8% in 2018-19, owing to
global and overall macroeconomic
headwinds, India was one of the fastest
growing major economy in the world.

India forms part of global economies whose
growth is not projected to decline in 2019*
The average growth rate of India was not
only higher than China’s during 2014-15 to
2017-18 but much higher than that of other
top major economies (measured in terms of
GDP at current US$ terms). The contribution
of the Indian economy to the GDP of
Emerging Market and Developing
Economies (EMDEs) and world economy has

(X

increased consistently over the years. In less
than a decade, India’s contribution to
EMDEs GDP has increased by around 1.3%
and to the world economy by around 0.7%.
India’s share in GDP of EMDEs stood at 8%
in 2018. As per the WEO, April 2019, going
forward, the growth of world economy will
be strengthened by growth in China and
India and their increasing contributions to
world income. In EMDEs group, India and
China are the major drivers of growth. The
global economy—in particular the global
growth powerhouse, China —is rebalancing,
leading to an increasing role for India. The
global economic growth for 2019 for
advanced economies and EMDEs is given in
Box3.1.

/Box 3.1-Global Outlook®

Turkey; and

e

\

Global economic growth is projected at 3.2 percent for 2019, improving to 3.5 percent in 2020.
The projected pickup in global growth in 2020 relies importantly on several factors:

e financial market sentiment remaining supportive;

* continued decline of temporary hindrances, notably in the Euro area;

* stabilization in some stressed emerging market economies, such as Argentina and

* avoidingevensharper collapses in others, such as Iran and Venezuela.

About 70 percent of the increase in the global growth forecast for 2020 relative to 2019 is
accounted for by stabilization or recovery in stressed economies. In turn, these factors rely on a
conducive global policy backdrop that ensures the dovish tilt of central banks and the build-up
of policy stimulus in China are not blunted by escalating trade tensions or a disorderly Brexit.

For advanced economies, growth is projected at 1.9 percentin 2019 and 1.7 percent in 2020.

/

* IMF-World Economic Outlook Update April 2019
* IMF-World Economic Outlook Update July 2019
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In the United States, 2019 growth is expected to be 2.6 percent, moderating to 1.9 percent
in 2020 as the fiscal stimulus unwinds. The revision to 2019 growth reflects stronger-than-
anticipated first quarter performance. While the number was strong on the back of robust
exports and inventory accumulation, domestic demand was softer than expected and
imports weaker as well, in part reflecting the effect of tariffs. These developments point to
slowing momentum over the rest of the year.

Growth in the Euro is projected at 1.3 percent in 2019 and 1.6 percent in 2020. The forecast
for 2019 is revised down slightly for Germany, but it is unchanged for France and Italy.
Growth has been revised up for 2019 in Spain, reflecting strong investment and weak
imports at the start of the year. Euro area growth is expected to pick up over the remainder
of this year and into 2020, as external demand is projected to recover and temporary
factors continue to fade away.

The United Kingdom is set to expand at 1.3 percent in 2019 and 1.4 percent in 2020. The
upward revision reflects a stronger than anticipated first quarter out-turn boosted by pre-
Brexit inventory accumulation and stockpiling. The forecast assumes an orderly Brexit
followed by a gradual transition to the new regime. However, the ultimate form of Brexit
remained highly uncertain.

Japan’s economy is set to grow by 0.9 percent in 2019. The strong first quarter GDP release
reflects inventory accumulation and large contribution from net exports due to sharp fall
in imports. Growth is projected to decline to 0.4 percent in 2020, with fiscal measures
expected to mitigate the volatility in growth from the increase in the consumption tax rate.

The emerging market and developing economy group is expected to grow at 4.1 percent in 2019,
rising to 4.7 percent in 2020.

Emerging and developing Asia is expected to grow at 6.2 percent in 2019-20. The forecast
is 0.1 percentage point lower for both years, largely reflecting the impact of tariffs on trade
and investment. In China, the negative effects of escalating tariffs and weakening external
demand have added pressure to an economy already in the midst of a structural
slowdown and needed regulatory strengthening to rein in high dependence on debt. With
policy stimulus expected to support activity in the face of the adverse external shock,
growth is forecast at 6.2 percent in 2019 and 6.0 percent in 2020, 0.1 percentage point lower
eachyear. India’s economy is set to grow at 7.0 percent in 2019, picking up to 7.2 percent in
2020. The downward revision of 0.3 percentage point for both years reflects a weaker
domestic demand.

South Asian Countries: South Asia holds the top spot as the world’s fastest growing
region with growth to step upto 7percent in 2019 but the countries in the region need to
increase its exports to sustain the high growth level and reach its full economic potential.
Theregion’s growth is mainly driven by domestic demand, which in turn swelled imports
and outstripped exports, further widening trade gaps and current account deficits, and
triggering currency depreciation in some countries. Integration is required to ensure
growth in the long run. Efforts required to promote growth may include trade
liberalization and spurring entrepreneurship. -
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OVERVIEW OF HOUSING TRENDS

Economic Survey 2018-19

The Economic Survey 2018-19 of the
Government of India forecasts a growth rate
of 7percent for FY20. In view of the
weakening of both domestic and external
demand conditions, the RBI's Monetary
Policy Committee (MPC) in August 2019,
revised the projection of the real GDP growth
of India for 2019-20 downwards from
7percent (projected in MPC meeting held in
the June 2019) to 6.9 percent. This
moderation in growth is mainly on account
of lesser progress in agriculture &
allied, trade, hotel, transport, storage,
communication and services related to
broadcasting and public administration and
defence sectors. On the demand side, lower
growth of GDP in 2018-19 was due to decline
in growth of government consumption,
change in stocks and contraction in
valuables. Growth in fixed investment
picked up from 8.3 percent in 2016-17 to 9.3
percent in 2017-18 and further to 10.0 percent
in2018-19.

India has maintained its macroeconomic
stability by containing inflation within 4 per
cent and by maintaining a manageable
current account deficit to GDP ratio. Fiscal

(X

deficit of Central Government stood at a
3.4percent of GDP in 2018-19. Current
account deficit was 2.6 percent in Apr-Dec
2018. The IMF in July projected a slower
growth rate for India in 2019 and 2020, a
downward revision of 0.3 percent for both
the years, GDP to grow at 7 percent and 7.2
percent respectively reflecting a weaker than
expected domestic demand. There was a
pickup in fixed investment rate in 2018-19.
Fiscal situation remained comfortable and
the consolidation process continues to bring
down the public debt. Consumer price
inflation is within the targeted limits set by
the monetary policy committee of RBIL
Current Account Deficit increased from 1.9
percent of GDP in 2017-18 to 2.4 percent in
April-December 2018-19.

Global confidence on the Indian economy
has improved as observed from indicators
like improvement in ease of doing business
and gross FDI inflows. According to World
Bank's Ease of Doing Business 2019 Report,
India's ranking improved by 23 positions to
77th rank in 2018. The medium term growth
prospects of the economy are positive due to
the important structural reforms initiated in
the last few years. A brief of Economic
Survey 2018-19is givenin Box 3.2.
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/Box 3.2-Economic Survey 2018-19 )

The Economic Survey 2018-19 forecasts a growth rate of 7 percent for FY20, as compared to the
growth rate of 6.8 percent in FY19. In view of the weakening of both domestic and external
demand conditions, the RBI's Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) in August 2019, revised the
projection of the real GDP growth of India for 2019-20 downwards from 7percent (projected in
MPC meeting held in the June 2019) to 6.9 percent. The real GDP growth was projected to be in
the range of 5.8-6.6 percent for H1:2019-20 and 7.3-7.5 percent for H2 - with risks somewhat
tilted to the downside.

Fiscal Deficit:

. Fiscal deficit in FY 2018-19 ended with 3.4 percent of GDP and debt to GDP ratio of 44.5
percent (Provisional).

*  Total Central Government expenditure fell by 0.3 percent of GDP, in 2018-19 over 2017-18.

*  Thetargetistoachieve fiscal deficit of 3 percent of GDP by FY 2020-21 and debt of central
government to 40 percent of GDP by FY 2024-25.

GDP Growth:

*  Theexpected growthrate of GDPis 7percent for 2019-20.

*  TheGDP growthis 6.8 percentin 2018-19 compared to 7.2 percentin 2017-18.
. GVA growth atbasic prices is expected to be 6.1percentin 2017-18

Inflation and Monetary Policy:

*  Averageretail inflation, measured by Consumer Price Index (CPI), in 2018-19 seen at 3.4
percent.

*  Average Wholesale Price Index (WPI) inflation, in 2018-19 seen at 4.3 percent from 3.0
percentin 2017-18.

- /




OVERVIEW OF HOUSING TRENDS

Housing Finance

The housing finance growth as a percent of
GDP is a good measure of analyzing the
depth of the housing finance sector in the
country. With the evident proactive
measures and various other initiatives of the
Government, the overall share of
outstanding individual housing loans of
Banks and HFCs to GDP (at market price) has
increased from 6.6 percent in 2010-11 to 9.6
percent in 2018-19. The growth and
contribution of HFCs in this has been
commendable. Notwithstanding the current
dynamism of the market, in line with

(X

sustained historical development, we can
expect amodest growth in the medium term

farthe ovarall housing Hnatica industr}r.

The Graph below shows the growing
percentage of outstanding individual
housing loans of Banks and HFCs to GDP (at
market price).

However, the Housing Finance Sector
witnessed a moderation in growth in the
backdrop of overall economic scenario
during the year 2018-19 even though the
individual housing loan disbursements of
PSBs and HFCs crossed Rs. 4.5 lakh crore for
the first time. The tabular date is available in
Appendix-I

Outstanding Individual Housing Loans of Banks and HFCs
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Government Measures to promote Housing
Sector

The Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY)
under the Mission “Housing for All by 20227,
has been a major initiative of the

W of India. The Scheme was

launched on June 17, 2015 and shall be
implemented upto March 31, 2022. Housing
for All by 2022 has been implemented under
two broad categories namely Pradhan
Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) and Pradhan
Mantri Awaas Yojana (Gramin).

~

.
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The Govarnment continuad its thrust towards

the housing sector by announcing various

measures in the Interim Budget and the
Union Budget 2019-20. (Box 3.3) The budget
announcements include:

Tax exemption on notional rent on
second self-occupied house.

The benefit of rollover of capital gains
under section 54 of the Income Tax Act
increased from investment in one
residential house to two residential
houses for a tax payer having capital
gains up to X 2 crore. This benefit can be
availed oncein alife time.

For making more homes available
under affordable housing, the benefits
under Section 80-IBA of the Income Tax
Act extended for one more year, i.e. to
the housing projects approved till
31stMarch, 2020.

The period of exemption from levy of
tax on notional rent, on unsold
inventories, was extended from 1 year
to 2 years, from the end of the year in
which the projectis completed.

An additional deduction of up to ¥1.50

lakh for interest paid on loans
borrowed up to 31st March, 2020 for
purchase of an affordable house valued
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up to¥4b lakh hasbeen proposed.

Reform measures to be taken up to
promote rental housing. The Ministry
of housing and Urban Affairs
subsequently released the Draft Model
Tenancy Act, 2019 on July 11, 2019
which envisages to balance the interest
and rights of both the owner and tenant
and to create an accountable and
transparent ecosystem for renting the
premises in disciplined and efficient
manner.

Another major announcement is the
setting up of the Credit Guarantee
Enhancement Corporation. It would
help in channelizing funds for the
infrastructure sector and would also
ensure availability of low cost long
term finance for affordable housing.

Further, in view of the turmoil in the
NBFC sector during the year 2018-19,
the Government of India rolled out a
scheme offering to provide a one-time
partial credit guarantee for first loss up
to 10 per cent to public sector banks
(PSBs) for purchase of high rated
pooled assets amounting to X1 trillion
from financially sound NBFCs/HFCs
to support NBFCs" access to funding
from the PSBs.
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GDXS.S—UniunBudget 2019-20°

Infrastructure

Housing

Measures to enhance sources of capital for infrastructure financing viz.:

i. Credit Guarantee Enhancement Corporation to be set up in 2019-2020 (Affordable
housing constitutes a part of the harmonization list)

ii. Actionplantobe putin place to deepen the market for long term bonds with focus on
infrastructure and

iii. To permit investments made by FlIs/FPIs in debt securities issued by Infrastructure
Debt Fund - Non-Bank Finance Companies (IDF-NBFCs) to be transferred/sold to
any domestic investor within the specified lock-in period.

¥ 100 lakh crore investments in infrastructure is intended over the next five years. It is
proposed to set up a Committee to recommend the structure and required flow of funds
through development finance institutions.

Reform measures to be taken up to promote rental housing.
A Model Tenancy Law will be finalized and circulated to the States.

Joint development and concession mechanisms to be used for public infrastructure and
affordable housing onland parcels held by the Central Government and CPSEs.

A total of 1.54 crore rural homes have been completed in the last five years under PMAY-
G. In the second phase of PMAY-G, during 2019-20 to 2021-22, 1.95 crore houses are
proposed to be provided to the eligible beneficiaries.

Under PMAY-Urban, over 81 lakh houses with an investment of about 4.83 lakh crore
have been sanctioned of which construction has started in about 47 lakh houses. )

* Union Budget, 2019-20, Ministry of Finance, Government of India

209
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For purchase of high-rated pooled assets of tinancially sound INEFCs, amoeunting to a
total of ¥ 1 lakh crore during the current financial year, Government will provide one time
six months' partial credit guarantee to Public Sector Banks for first1loss of up to 10 percent.

Appropriate proposals for strengthening the regulatory authority of RBI over NBFCs are
being placed in the Finance Bill.

It is proposed to return the regulation authority over the housing finance sector from
NHB to RBL

To allow NBFCs to raise funds in public issues, the requirement of creating a DRR will be
done away with.

Interest on certain bad or doubtful debts by deposit taking as well as systemically
important non-deposit taking NBFCs to be taxed in the year in which interest is actually

\_ received.

/

The RBI vide its notification dated 29th Nov,
2018, relaxed the norms for NBFCs including
HFCs to securitize their loan book in order to
ease the liquidity crunch being faced by such
institutions. The Minimum Holding Period
requirement for originating NBFCs, in
respect of loans of original maturity above 5
years was relaxed from earlier one year to six
months. Minimum Retention Requirement
for such securitization/assignment
transactions was prescribed at 20 percent of

the book value of the loans being
securitized/ assigned. Subsequently, the
exemption was extended by the RBI till 31st
Dec, 2019 vide its circular dated 29th May,
2019.

In the backdrop of robust demand for
affordable housing, measures announced by
the Government and buoyancy of demand,
we expect the housing finance sector to post a
healthy growth and contribute to the overall
economic growth.
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OPERATIONS

4. Operations
4.1 Resource Mobilization

41.1 Resources Mobilized

During the FY 2018-19, the Bank
raised net incremental resources
aggregating ¥21,852 crore. Chart 4.1

depicts the instrument-wise break-up
of net resources mobilized during the
year. Amounts mobilized through
different instruments are given in
AppendixII.

Chart 4.1 - Net Resources Mobilized
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®m Foreign Borrowings

Deposits under Rural Housing Fund (RHF)

Rural Housing Fund (RHF) was established
in 2008-09 (in NHB) to enable Primary
Lending Institutions (PLIs) to access funds
for extending housing finance to target
segments in rural areas at cheaper rates. The
corpus of the RHF was contributed by
Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) out of
their priority sector lending shortfall.

_Jo|

Quantum of funds to be contributed by each
SCB and the applicable interest rate were
determined by the RBI depending upon the
priority sector shortfall of the respective SCB.
The tenure of the deposits under RHF is
seven years. Since inception, total amount of
¥31,278 crore were received under the RHF.
The total outstanding under RHF as on
June 30,20191is322,500 crore.




(X

Deposits under Urban Housing Fund
(UHF)

The Urban Housing Fund (UHF) was set up
in 2013-14 (in NHB) to enable PLIs to access
funds for extending housing finance to target
segments in urban areas at cheaper rates. The
corpus of the UHF was contributed by SCBs
out of their priority sector lending shortfall.
Quantum of funds to be contributed by each
SCB and the applicable interest rate were
determined by the RBI depending upon the
priority sector shortfall of the respective SCB.
Tenure of the deposits under UHF is seven
years. Since inception, total amount of
10,500 crore were received under the UHF.
The total outstanding under UHF as on
June 30,2019is%10,500 crore.

Deposits under Affordable Housing Fund
(AHF)

The Hon’ble Union Finance Minister in the
Union Budget for 2018-19 announced the
establishment of a dedicated fund in NHB
known as Affordable Housing Fund (AHF),
financed from priority sector lending
shortfall and fully serviced bonds authorized
by the Gol. The AHF corpus shall be
contributed by SCBs having shortfall in
achievement of their priority sector
targets/sub-targets. The purpose of the AHF
shall be to support the refinancing operations
of NHB for affordable housing to the target
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segments in rural and urban areas. For the
year 2019-20, an amount of ¥10,000 crore has
been allocated under AHF. The total amount
received under AHF as on June 30, 2019 is
7,500 crore.

Foreign Borrowings (AFD Loan):

The Board in its 127th meeting (held on
July 18, 2017) approved the borrowing of
€100 million and grant of €12 million
consisting of €9 million for the reduction of
interest cost and €3 million for the
reimbursement of consultancy charges for
NHB SUNREF Housing Program’s technical
assistance from AFD, France under
Sustainable Use of Natural Resources and
Energy Facility in the Residential Sector
(SUNREF). During the year 2018-19, the
Bank had drawn the entire Line Of Credit
amount €100 Million and grant portion of €9
million. CRISIL has been nominated as the
consultant firm in charge of the
implementation of NHB-SUNREF Housing
Program’s technical assistance.

4.1.2 Outstanding Borrowings

Chart 4.2 depicts the instrument-wise break-
up of NHB’s outstanding borrowings of
63,500 crore as on June 30, 2019. Amounts
outstanding under different instruments are
givenin AppendixIII.
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Charl 4,2 - Resources Qulslanding (in %)
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4.2 Refinance

421 The refinance facility for PLIs was
started in 1989 by NHB. During initial years,
separate refinance schemes were formulated
for Housing Finance Institutions (HFIs) and
Scheduled Banks (SBs), which have
undergone several amendments, based on
feedback received from various stakeholders
in sync with the overall market. Refinance
disbursements had shown steady increase
due to pro-active responses to market
players, and also application of segmented
approach to stakeholders needs.

4.2.2 In 2003, the NHB announced the launch
of an integrated product called Liberalized
Refinance Scheme (LRS) for HFCs and SBs,
with built-in risk mechanism and pricing.

_/®|

Amendments in the LRS over the years have
made it more versatile. The broad features of
the LRS are -

* Incorporation of Internal Credit Rating
Model (ICRM);

* Multiple Interest rate options like fixed,
floating, maturity based;

* Refinance assistance for prospective
disbursements;

* Concessions in interest rate to target
segments under single window;

* Refinance under specific concessional
funds like RHF and UHF, at cheaper rates
with on-lending interest rate caps.

~
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4.2.3 Refinance business of NHB intends to
serve a widely diverse market, both in terms
of geography as well as socio-economic
segments. NHB has encouraged and
incentivized the PLIs to improve and
strengthen the grass root credit delivery
network for housing finance across the
country, particularly for the low and middle
income group segments. These measures
have facilitated the PLIs, especially HFCs in
their long termresources.

424 NHB partnered with various
international development agencies to
channelize institutional credit flow for
energy efficient and green housing, low
income and informal income segments, etc.
Refinance schemes introduced by NHB,
aimed at supporting and incentivizing the
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PLIs have contributed to the evolution of a
new housing finance eco-system.

4.2.5 Disbursements

Refinance disbursements of ¥25,177 crore
were made during the year FY2018-19.
About 85 percent of the disbursements were
for loan size upto 325 lakh. Three HFCs were
added to the refinance client list. Institution-
wise refinance disbursements to various
categories of PLIs during the last three years
is shown in Appendix IV. Scheme-wise and
Slab-wise refinance disbursements in
2018-19 are shown in Appendix V and
Appendix VIrespectively.

Refinance disbursements to various
categories of PLIs during the last five years
areshownin Chart4.3.
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426 Curnmlative Dishursements

Till Tune 20, 2019, the Bank made cumulative
refinance disbursement of ¥2,36,704 crore to
various categories of PLIs, in respect of their

(X

individual housing loans. Percentage-wise
break-ups are shown in Chart 44, Institution
category-wise cumulative refinance as on

June 30,2019 is givenin Appendix VII.
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Chart 4.4 - Cumulative Refinance Dishursements (in %)
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4.2.7 Outstanding

Bank’s outstanding refinance increased by
17.67 percent as on June 30, 2019 in
comparison to 7.15 percent increase as on
June 30, 2018. Further, outstanding refinance

of the Bank as on June 30, 2019 was 369,095
crore, with share of HFCs at ¥50,145 crore (73
percent). The trend in outstanding refinance
to various categories of PLIs in the last five

years is given in Appendix VIII, and in the
Chart4.5.

Chart 4.5 - Refinance Outstanding - Institution Category-wise
(in X crore)
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428 Trend of Refinance Disbursement
and Refinance Outstanding

The trend in Bank’s Refinance Disbursement
and Refinance Outstanding to various
categories of PLIs is captured in the Chart 4.4
and Chart 4.5. It may be noted that in the
Chart 4.4 and Chart 4.5. Banks include
Private Sector, Public Sector, Foreign Banks
and Regional Rural Banks while others
include Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs),
Small Finance Banks (SFBs), Agriculture and
Rural Development Banks (ARDBs) and
Apex Co-operative Finance societies
(ACHFs).

4.2.9 Rural HousingFund

The RHF was utilized for extending
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refinance assistance to PLIs in respect of their
housing loans extended to borrowers in rural
areas belonging to Weaker Sections (as
specified in the Master Directions on Priority
Sector Lending - Targets and Classification
by RBI), Women, and rural population with
annual income not exceeding I3 lakh.
Further, to ensure that the intended benefit of
lower interest rates was passed on to the
ultimate borrowers, on-lending interest rates
were capped. The RHF was operational from
2008-09 to 2017-18. Under the RHF, refinance
assistance of ¥31,311 crore was extended to
PLIs in respect of 19.47 lakh dwelling units.
The cumulative disbursements under RHF
are shown in Chart 4.6. The institution
category-wise break-ups are given in
Appendix IX.
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4.2.10 Urban Housing Fund

The purpose of the UHF was to provide
refinance assistance in respect of housing
loans extended by PLIs in urban areas for the
construction / purchase of dwelling units,
repairs / renovation /up-gradation of
dwelling units and for incremental housing.
The eligible loan size was up to 320 lakh (328
lakh in metropolitan centres with population
of ten lakh and above) disbursed on or after
April 01, 2011 against the dwelling unit of
carpet area upto 60 sqm or the cost of
dwelling upto 325 lakh (X35 lakh in
metropolitan centres). The UHF catered to

(X

people with annual household income not
exceeding ¥6 lakh, based on the income
ceiling under EWS and LIG -categories.
Further, to ensure that the intended benefit of
lower interest rates reached the ultimate
borrowers, on-lending rates were capped.
The UHF was operational from 2013-14 to
2017-18. Under the UHF, refinance assistance
of ¥10,500 crore was extended to PLIs in
respect of their individual housing loans to
2.15 lakh urban households. The cumulative
disbursements under UHF are shown in
Chart 4.7. The institution category-wise
break-ups are givenin Appendix X.
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4.2.11 Affordable Housing Fund

Pursuant to the announcement in the Union
Budget 2018-19, the Affordable Housing
Fund (AHF) was set up in National Housing
Bank with a corpus of ¥10,000 crore to
provide refinance assistance to PLIs in
respect of their individual housing loans to
target segments in rural and urban areas. The
fund shall be utilized for refinancing the
eligible individual housing loans sanctioned
and disbursed on or after April 01, 2017. The
AHEF caters to the individual borrowers in the
urban areas with annual household income
not exceeding ¥6 lakh, whereas in the rural
areas, to women, weaker sections (as defined
in the RBI’s priority sector guidelines) and
individual borrowers with annual
household income not exceeding I3 lakh.
Further, to ensure that the intended benefit of
lower interest rates reaches the ultimate
borrowers, on-lending interest rates have
been capped, PLI category wise. Under the
AHF, refinance assistance of ¥7,694.90 crore
has been extended to the PLIs during the year
2018-19, in respect of their individual
housing loans to around 1.37 lakh
households falling under urban and rural
areas. The PLI category wise utilization
along with the total number of dwelling units
is givenin Appendix-XIL.

4.212 Special Urban Housing Refinance
Scheme for Low Income Households (WB-
ULIH) (Refinance Scheme launched under
the NHB-WB Urban Low Income Housing
Project)

Government of India (Gol) entered into an
agreement with the International
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Development Association (IDA), under
which, IDA provided a $100 million
equivalent Credit to the Gol. IDA also
entered into an agreement with NHB for the
implementation of the project, which
included extending refinance in respect of
housing loans to informal segments and
households with annual income upto ¥3 lakh
per annum. Refinance was provided by NHB
to the PLIs in respect of their housing loans,
which were secured either through collateral
of property financed or were alternatively
secured. Refinance assistance was provided
under the Scheme to PLIs in respect of their
housing loans in the urban areas extended to
low income household either directly or
through intermediaries like MFIs (having
proper systems and procedures for appraisal
and follow-up of housing loans including
qualified staff for handling such loans to the
satisfaction of the concerned PLI), for the
following purposes:

* construction / purchase of new dwelling
units

* purchase of existing dwelling units

* repairs / renovation / extension / up-
gradation of existing dwelling units

The WB-ULIH was operational from FY2013-14
to FY2018-19. During FY2018-19, an amount
of 324 crore was disbursed to various PLIs.
Cumulative disbursements of 612 crore

facilitated the construction /up-gradation of
16,100 dwelling units.
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4.3 Project Finance

4.3.1 National Housing Bank extends loans
and advances to eligible entities for
residential housing projects under section
14(ba) of the National Housing Bank Act,
1987. Since inception, the Bank has taken
various initiatives under the project finance
window with an endeavour to facilitate the
increase in overall housing stock in the
country with special emphasis on the
housing needs of the economically weaker
sections (EWS) and low income group (LIG)
segments. Initially, NHB had extended
financial assistance for land development
and shelter projects (LDSP) and housing
infrastructure undertaken by Housing
Boards, Development Agencies and Co-
operative Housing Societies under its
refinance window. Subsequently, the Slum
Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund
was established in NHB for project finance
under the Voluntary Deposits (Immunities
and Exemptions) Act, 1991. The said Fund
has been used for financing slum clearance
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projects, low cost housing projects for the
poor, construction houses for people affected
by natural calamities etc. along with project
finance through general fund.

4.3.2 The financial assistance under the
project finance window is extended to
various public agencies like State Housing
Boards, State Slum Clearance Boards/
Authorities, Development Authorities,
Municipal Corporations and Urban Local
Bodies etc. for undertaking residential
housing projects. The financial assistance has
been extended to commercially viable
projects in accordance with the Bank’s policy
and the RBI guidelines.

4.3.3 Cumulatively, till June 30, 2019, the
Bank has sanctioned project finance facilities
to 449 projects with project cost of 310,228
crore and loan component of 35,722 crore.
The cumulative project finance
disbursement till June 30, 2019 stood at
¥2,406 crore. The trend of NHB’s Project
Finance disbursement is shown in
Chart4.8:
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4.3.4 As on June 30, 2019 the Bank had an
outstanding project finance exposure of
¥97.67 crore to 10 agencies which included
exposure to Housing Boards, State Housing
Corporations and Micro Finance Institutions
(MFIs). Gross NPAs as on June 30, 2019
amounted to ¥4.18 crore which were on
account of exposure to five MFIs.
Disbursements under Project Finance-Year-
wise are givenin Appendix XII.
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4.3.5 During the year 2018-19, the Bank as a
part of its recovery efforts made follow ups
and recovery visits, thereby recovering non-
performing assets (NPAs) aggregating to
%0.43 crore, with no fresh slippage of loan
into NPA category. The outstanding NPA
reduced to ¥4.18 crore as on June 30, 2019.
The movement of Gross NPAs under project

finance during last six years is shown in
Chart4.9:

Chart 4.9 - Movement of Gross NPA in Project Finance (in X crore)
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4.4 Regulation and Supervision

4.4.1 The Bank regulates and supervises the
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) as per
provisions of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987. As on June 30 2019, the total
number of HFCs registered with NHB stood
at 101, of which 18 HFCs have been granted
the Certificate of Registration (CoR) with
permission to accept public deposits and the
balance 83 without permission to accept

public deposits. Of the 18 HFCs, with
permission to accept public deposits, 6 are
required to obtain prior written permission
from NHB before accepting any public
deposits. The updated list of HFCs granted
the CoRis available on NHB’s website.

4.4.2 NHB’s regulation and supervision is
aimed at preventing the affairs of any HFC
being conducted in a manner detrimental to
the interest of the public and shall not be
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prejudicial to the operations and the growth
of the housing finance sector of the country.
As a part of regulations, NHB has issued
Directions, Guidelines and Circulars to the
HFCs and their auditors, from time to time.
To ensure safety and soundness of HFCs,
NHB has a robust monitoring system which
includes on-site inspections and off-site
surveillance of HFCs both through periodic
returns submitted by HFCs and also by way
of market intelligence.

44.3 Registration / Cancellation of
Certificate of Registration Granted to HFCs

NHB granted Certificate of Registration
(CoR) to 7 HFCs during the FY 2018-19 and
the list of such HFCs is given in Appendix
XIII.

During the year, Lodha Housing Finance
Pvt. Ltd and Capital First Home Finance
Limited surrendered their CoRs.

4.4.4 Supervision of HFCs

NHB supervises the functioning of HFCs
through on-site inspections, market
intelligence and off-site surveillance
mechanisms, through periodic returns /
information and their verification.

On-site Inspections

NHB conducted on-site inspection of 46
HFCs during FY 2018-19, of which 6
inspections were carried out under Section
29A of the NHB Act, 1987 for grant of CoR
based on application submitted by the
companies. The remaining 40 inspections
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were carried out in respect of registered
HFCs to ascertain their compliances with
various regulatory provisions of the NHB
Act, 1987, Directions, Guidelines, Circulars,
etc. issued thereunder by NHB, from time to
time.

Off-site Surveillance

The Bank carries out off-site surveillance of
HFCs by monitoring and scrutinizing
periodic returns submitted by HFCs which
includes quarterly, half yearly and annual
returns as prescribed in the NHB Directions.

Penalties

In order to regulate the HFCs in an efficient
manner NHB also penalizes HFCs for (i) non-
maintenance of liquid assets (ii) non-
submission of information/returns (ii) non-
compliance of NHB Directions etc. During
the year, 19 Housing Finance Companies
were penalized for various non-compliances.

4.4.5 Notifications, Circulars, and Caution
Advices Issued

Notifications

1. Notification No. NHB.HFC.DIR.21/
MD&CEO/2018 dated July 12, 2018 -
Amendment to Paragraph 2 and 32 of the
Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010

* Definition of “companies in the same
group” specified under paragraph 2 of
the HFCs (NHB) Directions, 2010

e Paragraph 32 of the HFCs (NHB)
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Directions, 2010 was amended to the
effect that in determining the ceiling of
Concentration of credit/ investment,
investments of a HFC in shares of its
subsidiaries and companies in the same
group; the book value of debentures,
bonds, outstanding loans and advances
(including hire-purchase and lease
finance) made to, and deposits with-
subsidiaries of a HFC and companies in
the same group to the extent they have
been reduced from owned funds for the
calculation of net owned fund, shall be
excluded. However, the exposure of a
HEFC to group companies involved in real
estate construction/purchase and sale of
real estate activities is subject to the
general ceiling applicable under the
credit/investment concentration norms.

2. Notification No. NHB.HFC.ATC.DIR.2-
MD&CEO-2018 dated July 19, 2018 -
Amendment to Paragraph 3 and 5 of
Housing Finance Companies - Approval of
Acquisition or Transfer of Control
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016

* Paragraph 3 of the captioned Directions
was amended to the effect that prior
approval of NHB for acquisition or
transfer of control of HFCs is also
required for any change in the
shareholding of an HFC accepting/
holding public deposits, including
progressive increases over time, which
would result in acquisition / transfer of
shareholding of 10 percent or more of the
paid up equity capital of the HFC by/to a
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foreigninvestor.

* Paragraph 5 was amended to the effect
that Requirement of Prior Public Notice
about change in control / management is
not applicable in the event of
acquisition/transfer of shareholding of
10 percent or more and less than 26
percent of the paid up equity capital of
the HFC by /to aforeigninvestor.

3. Notification No. No.NHB.HFC.LA-
2/MD&CEO/2019 dated May 25 2019 -
Maintenance of a minimum percentage of
liquid assets

* The requirement of minimum liquid
assets to be maintained by HFCs against
the public deposits held by them in
unencumbered approved securities, in
terms of the provisions of Section 29B of
the National Housing Bank Act, 1987,
increased from 6 percent to 6.5 percent.
Accordingly, the overall requirement of
liquid assets to be maintained by public
deposit holding HFCs increased to 13.0
percent as against 12.5 percent earlier.
The increased requirements became
effective from June 03, 2019.

4. Notification No. NHB.HFC.DIR.22/
MD&CEO/2019 dated June 17, 2019 -
Amendment to Paragraph 3 and 30 of the
Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010

e Paragraph 3 of the HFCs (NHB)
Directions, 2010 was amended to the
effect that an HFC can accept public

@



OPERATIONS

deposits upto three times of its NOF,
which was previously upto five times of
NOF.

Further, the cap on deposits inclusive of
public deposits for HFCs was revised
from sixteen times of NOF as under:

i) fourteen times of its NOF on or after
March 31, 2020;

ii) thirteen times of its NOF on or after
March 31,2021 and

iii) twelve times of its NOF on or after
March 31,2022.

Paragraph 30 was amended to the effect
that every HFC shall, maintain a
minimum capital ratio consisting of Tier-
I and Tier-1I capital not be less than:

i) 13 percent on or before March
31,2020;

ii) 14 percent on or before March 31,2021
and

iii) 15 percent on or before March 31, 2022
and thereafter of its aggregate risk
weighted assets and of risk adjusted
value of off-balance sheet items.

Further, the Tier-I capital, at any point of
time, shall not be less than 10 percent.

Policy Circulars

NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.91/
2018-19 dated January 21, 2019 on Filing
of Security Interest in CERSAI - HFCs
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were advised to complete filing of
records with CERSAI in respect of all the
subsisting transactions with reference to
the instructions issued by CERSAI from
time to time by March 31, 2019. HFCs also
advised to ensure meticulous compliance
in the matter of registration of the
applicable records with the CERSAI on
an ongoing basis.

To facilitate the ongoing process relating
to reporting of frauds in HFCs and to
strengthen the reporting and monitoring
system relating to fraudulent
transactions reported by HFCs,
Guidelines on Reporting and
Monitoring of Frauds in Housing
Finance Companies have been
introduced by NHB vide Policy Circular
NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular
No0.92/2018-19 dated February 05,2019

NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular
No0.93/2018-19 dated February 15, 2019
on Disclosure of penalty levied by
National Housing Bank on
contravention/ default of regulatory
requirements- In addition to the
disclosure requirements specified under
paragraph 29(6) of the HFCs (NHB)
Directions, 2010, HFCs advised to
prominently display on their website any
penalty levied on the company by the
National Housing Bank (NHB). Further,
HFCs whose shares are listed on any of
the stock exchanges shall also ensure that
disclosure in this regard is made to the
stock exchange(s) within two working
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days of the receipt of NHB letter levying
penalty on the company.

NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular
No0.94/2018-19 dated March 11, 2019 on
Guidelines on “‘Know Your Customer’ &
‘Anti Money Laundering Measures’ for
HFCs- The Guidelines on 'Know Your
Customer' and' Anti-Money Laundering
Measures' for HFCs issued by NHB and
the circulars issued subsequent thereto
from time to time were reviewed by the
NHB in the light of subsequent
developments including amendments in
the Prevention of Money Laundering
Act, 2002(PMLA) and the Prevention of
Money-Laundering (Maintenance of
Records) Rules, 2005(PML Rules).

NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular
No0.95/2018-19 dated May 29, 2019 on
Risk Management System -
Appointment of Chief Risk Officer -
While the Boards of HFCs should strive
to follow best practices in risk
management, the requirement for HFCs
with asset size of more than ¥5000 crore to
appoint a Chief Risk Officer (CRO) with
clearly specified role and responsibilities.
The CRO is required to function
independently so as to ensure highest
standards of risk management.

Miscellaneous Circular

NHB (ND)/DRS/Misc. Circular
No0.19/2018-19 dated Aug 13, 2018 on
Detection and Impounding of
Counterfeit Notes- Reporting of data to
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NHB - HFCs advised to furnish a
quarterly report to the NHB along the
lines of Annexure- VI of the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) Master Circular-Detection
and Impounding of Counterfeit Notes
dated July 02, 2018, as amended from
time to time, and similar instructions
issued by RBI, beginning the quarter
ended September 30, 2018.

. NHB (ND)/DRS/Misc. Circular

No.20/2018-19 dated Feb 05, 2019 on
Instructions to all Housing Finance
Companies - It has been recognised that
greater diligence is required on matters
such as reporting, disclosures, ALM,
controls and inter-company transactions.
HFCshave been advised to, inter-alia,

ensure requisite compliance with the
regulatory directives (National Housing
Bank Act, 1987, Directions, Circulars, and
Guidelines etc.);

put in place adequate systems and
controls commensurate with the scale of
operations with particular reference to
exposure on high value Builder Loans,
construction finance, loan against
property and other non-housingloans;

review their ALM practices as part of the
overall system for effective risk
management in various portfolios and
ensure the required reporting to NHB;

ensure effective management of
operational risk including technology
risk as outlined in Information

D



OPERATIONS

TachnologyFramework for HFCs;

*  ensure that Fair Fractice Code is adopted

in letter and spirit;

* give primacy to timely resolution of
grievances;

* to make all applicable disclosures on
exposure to subsidiaries & associates as
per the accounting standards and
regulatory requirements;

* ensure meticulous compliance in the
matter of registration of the applicable
records with the CERSAI on an ongoing
basis;

* put in place a reporting system for
recording frauds as stipulated in the
NHB guidelines on the subject.

Master Circulars - Master Circulars issued
on July 1, 2019 consolidated the instructions
issued to HFCs in the form of Directions,
Notifications, and Circulars, etc. during
2018-19:

i) Master Circular - The Housing Finance
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010;

ii) Master Circular - Housing Finance
Companies issuance of Non-Convertible
Debentures on private placement basis
(NHB) Directions, 2014;

iii) Master Circular - Fair Practice Code;

iv) Master Circular - Miscellaneous
Instructions to all Housing Finance
Companies;
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v] MMaster Circular - Housing Finance
Companies — Auditor's Report (INational
Housing Bank) Directions, 2018;

vi) Master Circular - Housing Finance
Companies - Approval of Acquisition or
Transfer of Control (National Housing
Bank) Directions, 2016;

vii)Master Circular - Housing Finance
Companies - Corporate Governance
(National Housing Bank) Directions,
2016

All the Notifications, Circulars and
Guidelines etc. issued by NHB to Housing
Finance Companies and their Auditors, from
time to time, are available on the NHB
website.

4.4.6 To provide value to the stakeholders, a
Complaint Redressal Cell (CRC) is operating
in NHB, to redress the grievance of the
customers of HFCs. The 24x7 online portal
viz. Grievance Registration & Information
Database System (GRIDS) enables customers
of the HFCs to have their grievances
redressed in a transparent and efficient
manner. The Grievance Redressal Policy as
reviewed by the Bank in December 2017 is
available in the public domain in NHB
website. The online portal has been
upgraded to meet the demands of increasing
number of customers who avail this facility
from across the country. NHB is also a
member Organization of the Centralized
Public Grievance Redress and Monitoring
System (CPGRAMS) of Department of
Administrative Reforms and Public
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Grievance (DARPG) of the Government of
India and Integrated Grievance Redress
Mechanism (INGRAM) launched by the
Department of Consumer Affairs,
Government of India, aimed at providing all
the citizens with platform for redressal of
their grievances for better governance. As
directed by the Union Ministry of Consumer
Affairs to bring awareness among all
registered Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs) and to become the convergence
partners with National Consumer Helpline
(NCH), all HFCs were advised to get
registered themselves with National
Consumer Helpline (NCH) as convergence
partners, to forward the complaints received
by National Consumer Helpline directly to
the concerned companies to ease the process
of redressal of these complaints.

4.4.7 During the financial year 2018-19, a
total of 6640 complaints were received and
7605° were resolved and 2708 complaints
were pending. Appeal filing process against
the closure of complaint has been made
online to speed up the process. The Bank has
issued a comprehensive list of FAQs both
under PMAY CLSS and on general housing
loans to create awareness among customers
and also to educate the customers on
contentious issues like reset of interest rates,
types of interest rates viz., floating and fixed,
documentation of loans, pre-closure of
housing loans, eligibility conditions under
PMAY CLSS etc. In the financial year 2018-
19, two workshops were conducted by the
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Bank on grievance redressal mechanism to
sensitize the HFCs on effective Grievance
Redressal atall levels of operations.

4.48 Issuance of Caution Advices

NHB issues Caution Advices to all the HFCs
on the lines of similar information being
shared by the RBI/ Indian Banks Association
to member banks. HFCs are required to
submit information on fraudulent
transactions to NHB on a quarterly basis.
Information received from HFCs is shared
with all HFCs along with the modus
operandi and causative factors involved. The
measure is aimed at helping in instituting
checks and balances among the various
lending institutions, the larger objective
being to prevent occurrence/ recurrence of
frauds in the housing sector. In 2018-19, 3
caution advices were issued by NHB totalling
102 fraudulent transactions reported by HFCs.

4.4.9 Coordination with Other Regulatory
Bodies

NHB continued the process of coordination
with other Regulatory Authorities through
its participation in State Level Coordination
Committee meetings convened by the RBI
and attended by State Police Department,
State Government through its Ministries/
Department, Economic Offences Wing,
Registrar of Companies, Company Law
Board, Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India etc. During the year 2018-19, NHB
participated in 18 SLCC meetings at various

* includes 3,673 pending complaints of previous FY
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regions. NHB is also attending inter
regulatory meetings convened by RBI/IRDA
on issues w.r.t. HFCs and their group
companies.

4.410 KYC and AML activities

HFCs have certain obligations under the
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002
(PMLA) including reporting of large cash
and suspicious transactions to FIU-IND as
Cash Transaction Report (CTR) and
Suspicious Transaction Report (STR). NHB
sensitizes this issue during various
interactions and inspections of the HFCs.

4.4.11 HFCs overall performance in terms of
Paid-up Capital, Net Owned Fund and
Outstanding Housing Loans is given in
Appendix XXIII.

4.5 Promotion and Development

4.5.1 The NHB has been mandated to operate
as a principal agency promoting housing
finance institutions to improve and
strengthen their credit delivery network.
NHB not only develops new products and
promotes new institutions, but also
continuously engages in capacity building of
participating institutions in housing and
housing finance sector. The Bank also acts as
Nodal Agency in implementation of
Central/State Governments Programmes/
Schemes.

452 Equity Participation and Sale of
Equity Stake by the Bank

NHB has extended its financial support in
the form of equity participation to the
following Housing Finance Companies /
Institutions:
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Cent Bank Home Finance Limited
(CBHFL), a Housing Finance Company
registered with NHB. It is a subsidiary of
Central Bank of India. NHB has 16
percent stake in CBHFL since 1991. The
total investment made by NHB in the
equity share capital of CBHFL as on
June 30,2019is%5.10 crore.

Central Registry of Securitization Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of
India (CERSAI). It is a company licensed
under Section 25 of the Companies Act.
The object of the CERSAI is to maintain
and operate a Registration System for the
purpose of registration of transactions of
securitization, asset reconstruction of
financial assets and creation of security
interest over property, as contemplated
under Chapter IV of the Securitization
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Security Interest
Act, 2002 (SARFAESI Act). The total
investment made by NHB in the equity
share capital of CERSAI as on
June 30,2019is32.44 crore.

Tamil Nadu Infrastructure Fund
Management Corporation Limited
(TNIFMC), an Asset Management
Company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 2013 and has been
promoted by Tamil Nadu Investment
Development Board (TNIDB), which is a
Statutory Board set up for development
of infrastructure in Tamil Nadu and
governed by TNIDB Act, 2012. The total
investment made by NHB in the equity
share capital of TNIFMC as on
June 30,2019is35.40 crore.
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India Mortgage Guarantee Corporation
Private Limited (IMGC) was set up by
NHB, Genworth Financial Mauritius
Holdings Limited (Genworth), Asian
Development Bank (ADB) and
International Finance Corporation (IFC).
The total investment by NHB in the
equity share capital of IMGC as on
June 30,2019isX76 crore.

Small Industries Development Bank of
India (SIDBI) is the principal financial
institution for the promotion, financing
and development of micro, small and
medium enterprise (MSME) sector and
for co-ordination of functions of the
institutions engaged in similar activities.
NHB has 4.89 percent stake in SIDBI since
29.12.2017. The total investment made
by NHB in the total paid up equity capital
of SIDBI as on June 30, 2019 is 3642.20
crore.

During the FY 2018-19, the Bank disinvested
its entire equity stake in SEWA Grih Rin
Limited (SGRL) and Mahindra Rural
Housing Finance Limited (MRHFL). Details
of the stake sale carried out are tabulated in
Appendix XIV.

4.5.3 Participation in various Government
Programmes

1% Interest Subvention Scheme - To
stimulate demand for credit for housing
in the lower & middle income segment of
population in the country, Department of
Financial Services (DFS), Ministry of
Finance, Government of India
introduced interest subvention scheme of
Ipercent on 01-10-2009. An interest
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subvention of 1percent was provided on
all individual housing loans of upto 10
lakh, provided the cost of the unit did not
exceed 320 lakh. From FY 2011-12, the
Scheme was extended for housing loans
upto 15 lakh, where the cost of house did
not exceed 325 lakh. The Scheme was
implemented through SCBs, RRBs and
HFCs. From 2012-13, NHB was
designated as the CNA for the
implementation of the Scheme. The
Scheme was in operation for the period
starting from October 01, 2009 to
March 31, 2013, and NHB has disbursed
total subsidy of around 816 crore for
about 18 lakh transactions based on the
claims submitted by 95 PLIs. (34 SCBs, 30
RRBs and 31 HFCs)

Interest Subsidy Scheme for Housing
the Urban Poor (ISHUP) - To improve
the affordability of housing loans
amongst the population belonging to
EWS/LIG segments in urban areas,
Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs
(MoHUA), Gol launched the Scheme
from December 26, 2008 to September 30,
2013. Under the Scheme, interest subsidy
of 5 per cent per annum for whole
duration of the loan (15-20 years) was
provided onloans up to X1 lakh extended
to EWS/LIG beneficiaries by the Primary
Lending Institutions (PLIs). The
maximum loan amount was ¥ 1 lakh for a
EWS individual and %1.60 lakh for a LIG
individual. The interest subsidy was
provided on NPV and upfront basis. The
Scheme was implemented through Banks
and HFCs. The Scheme envisaged the
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appointment of State Level Nodal
Agencies (SLNAs) by various States to
facilitate the identification and selection
of eligible beneficiaries for effective
implementation. NHB was designated as
Central Nodal Agency (CNA) for
implementation of the Scheme. The
Scheme ceased to exist on 30-09-2013. Till
30-06-2019 subsidy claims of ¥12.48 crore
has been disbursed to 12,318 beneficiaries
through 19 PLIs.

Rajiv Rinn Yojana (RRY) - The Ministry
of Housing and Urban Affairs (MoHUA),
Gol revised the Interest Subsidy Scheme
and renamed it as Rajiv Rinn Yojana
(RRY), as an additional instrument for
addressing the housing needs of
EWS/LIG segments in urban areas with
increase in limit of eligible housing loans
from 1 lakh to ¥5 lakh. Rajiv Rinn Yojana
is effective from October 01, 2013. Under
RRY, the amount of loan was revised up
to 35 lakh for EWS and 8 lakh for LIG
beneficiaries. However, the interest
subsidy was made available for a
maximum 35 lakh for both categories of
beneficiaries. The eligible lending
institutions under the Scheme were SCBs,
HFCs and RRBs. NHB and HUDCO were
the 2 nodal agencies under the Scheme.
An Interest Subsidy of 5 percent was
provided to the eligible borrowers
availing housing loans from the financial
institutions, on quarterly basis for the
loan tenure of 15-20 years. Income of the
borrowers was to be certified by State
Level Nodal Agencies as per the
Guidelines of MoHUA. Under Rajiv Rinn
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Yojana (RRY), 28 (Twenty Eight) MoUs
were signed by Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs) with NHB. Till
June 30, 2019, subsidy claims of ¥56.31
lakh have been disbursed to 231
beneficiaries through 5 PLIs. In terms of
the communication F No. 14013/9/2014-
H/FTS-11839 dated April 16, 2015 from
MHUPA (now MoHUA), Gol the Scheme of
Rajiv Rinn Yojana (RRY) has ceased to exist.

With a view to promote the use of solar
energy in the domestic context, the
Ministry of New and Renewable Energy
(MNRE), Gol, has implemented the
Capital Subsidy Scheme for Installation
of Solar Water Heating and Solar
Lighting Systems in Homes under its
Jawaharlal Nehru National Solar Mission
(JNNSM). The Scheme aims at
popularizing the use of solar water
heating and solar lighting systems in
homes by offering suitable incentives in
the form of capital subsidies for purchase
and installation of the solar systems.
NHB has been designated as a nodal
agency for administering and monitoring
the Scheme. The Scheme has commenced
from April 1,2014 and loans disbursed on
or after April 1, 2014 are eligible to be
covered under the Scheme. The Scheme
was valid till December 31, 2015, or such
extended period as may be allowed by
the MNRE. An amount of ¥52.35 crore has
been received by NHB from MNRE. The
Capital Subsidy Scheme for Solar Water
Heating Systems was discontinued by
MNRE w.e.f. October 1, 2014. However
the subsidy is continued for solar home
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lighting system on the same terms and
conditions as were originally sanctioned
by MNRE. In case of solar home lighting
system, the amount of subsidy is limited
to 40 percent of the benchmark cost for
units up to 300 watts capacity and 30
percent of the benchmark costs for units
above 300 watts to 1000 watts. The
benchmark cost is prescribed by MNRE
from time to time. The institutions
eligible to participate in the Scheme
include HFCs, SCBs, RRBs, UCBs,
ACHFS and ARDBs. NHB has signed
MoUs with seven institutions comprising
of 1 PSB, 1 Private Sector Bank, 3 HFCs
and 2 RRBs under the scheme. Till June
30, 2019, an amount of ¥30.64 crore (net of
refunds) was disbursed by NHB to 2
Banks, 2 HFCs and 2 RRBs for 18,979
beneficiaries.

The Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust
for Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH)
was set up by the MoHUA, Gol onMay 1,
2012 to ensure better flow of institutional
credit for housing in urban areas to cater
to the needs of the targeted segments
(EWS/LIG borrowers). The Trustis being
managed by NHB. The CRGF Scheme
provides guarantee for all housing loans
up to I8 lakh sanctioned and disbursed
by the lending institutions (effective from
October 1, 2014), subject to guarantee
cover limited upto ¥5lakh only. When the
Scheme was launched all housing loans
up to 5 lakh were eligible without any
collateral security and/or third party
guarantee to the borrowers in the
EWS/LIG categories in urban areas for
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the purpose of home improvement,
construction, acquisition and purchase of
new or second hand dwelling units of
size upto 430 sq. ft. (40 sq. m.). The
Guarantee Cover available under the
Scheme is to the extent of 90% of the
sanctioned housing loan amount up to 32
lakh and 85% of the sanctioned loan
amount above 2 lakh. The major Banks
and HFCs have already entered into
agreements to implement this initiative
of the Gol. As on June 30, 2019, 80
institutions have signed MoU with the
Trust under the Scheme, and the Trust
has issued guarantee cover in respect of
1,990 loan accounts of 15 Member
Lending Institutions (MLIs) involving a
total loan amount of ¥56.71 crore for
EWS/LIG households. These MLIs
include10SCBs, 4 HFCs and 1 RRB.

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY)
under the Mission “Housing for All by
2022"”: Housing for All by 2022 has been
implemented under two broad categories
namely Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana
(Urban) and Pradhan Mantri Awaas
Yojana (Gramin).

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) -
Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS):
Promotion of affordable housing for
weaker section through Credit Linked
Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) is one of the four
verticals under PMAY (U), which has
been implemented through PLIs viz.
SCBs, HFCs, RRBS, Co-operative Banks,
Small Finance Banks (SFBs) and Non-
Banking Financial Company-Micro
Finance Institutions (NBFC-MFIs). NHB
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has been identified as a Central Nodal
Agency (CNA) by the Gol, MoHUA to
implement the CLSS vertical of PMAY.
The CLSS vertical is one of the important
components of the Housing for All
Mission and is a Central Sector Scheme.
The CLSS now covers two categories
namely CLSS for Economically Weaker
Section/Low Income Group (CLSS for
EWS/LIG) and CLSS for Middle Income
Group (CLSS for MIG). The details of
CLSS for EWS/LIG and CLSS for MIG are
given below.

CLSS for EWS/LIG: The Scheme was
launched on June 17, 2015 and shall be
implemented upto March 31, 2022.
Households belonging to EWS (with
annual income upto I3 lakh) and LIG
(with annual income more than I3 lakh
and upto 36 lakh) seeking housing loans
from Banks, HFCs and other such
notified institutions would be eligible for
an interest subsidy at the rate of 6.5
percent for maximum tenure of 20 years
or the actual tenure of the loan whichever
is less (upto December 31, 2016,
maximum tenure was 15 years).

As on June 30, 2019, 218 PLIs, comprising
of 91 HFCs, 18 PSBs’, 17 Private Sector
Banks, 39 RRBs, 35 Co-operative Banks, 9
Small Finance Banks and 9 NBFC-MFIs
have signed MoU with NHB as CNA and
NHB has received the advance subsidy of
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10,155 crore from Gol, MoHUA, for the
implementation of the Scheme. Out of
this fund and interest earned thereon, the
NHB has made total disbursements
(Subsidy Released + Processing Fees -
Subsidy Refund) of *10,060.13 crore (loan
disbursement amounting to ¥48,499.50
crore) to 159 PLIs benefitting 4,33,856
households.

CLSS for MIG: This Scheme is effective
from January 01, 2017. The CLSS for MIG
covers two annual income segments viz.
above %6 lakh and upto ¥12 lakh under
MIG-I and above 12 lakh and upto 18
lakh under MIG-II. In the MIG-I, an
interest subsidy of 4 percent has been
provided for loan amount up to 39 lakh
while in MIG-II, an interest subsidy of 3
percent has been provided for loan
amount upto 12 lakh. Earlier, Gol,
MoHUA had increased the existing
carpet area limit for MIG-I from 90 sqm to
120 sqm and for MIG-II from 110 sqm to
150 sqm and the above limit are further
revised from 120 sqm to 160 sqm for MIG-
Iand from 150 sqm to 200 sqm for MIG-II.

As on June 30, 2019, 209 PLIs, comprising
of 89 HFCs, 18 PSBs®, 18 Private Sector
Banks, 34 RRBs, 33 Co-operative Banks,
10 Small Finance Banks and 7 NBFC-MFI
have signed MoUs with NHB as CNA
and NHB has received the advance
subsidy of around 4,113 crore from Gol,

State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur (SBBJ), State Bank of Mysore (SBM), State Bank of Travancore (SBT), State Bank of
Patiala (SBP), State Bank of Hyderabad (SBH) and Bhartiya Mahila Bank (BMB) have merged with SBI w.e.f. April 1,
2017. Further, Dena Bank has also been merged with Bank of Baroda w.e.f. April 1, 2019.

Dena Bank has been merged with Bank of Baroda w.e.f. April 1, 2019.
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MoHUA, for the implementation of the
Scheme. Out of this, the Bank has made
total disbursement (Subsidy Released +
Processing Fees-Subsidy Refund) of
around 34,001 crore (loan disbursement
amounting to 342,404.09 crore) to 137
PLIs benefitting 1,89,508 households.

Till June 30, 2019, NHB has conducted 25
regional workshops for signing of MoUs
& implementation of the Scheme to
sensitize the PLIs. The objective of the
workshops is to interact with SLNA and
PLI officials to get their queries clarified
for the scheme implementation. The
workshops were held in Guwahati (2),
Chennai, Mumbai (2), Raipur, Bengaluru (2),
Bhopal, Hyderabad, Lucknow, Patna,
Srinagar, Thiruvananthapuram, Ranchi,
New Delhi (5), Ahmedabad, Kolkata,
Kohima, Ernakulam and Itanagar.

Rural Housing: The last few years have
witnessed increased spending on the
government-funded rural housing
programme, the Pradhan Mantri Awaas
Yojana-Grameen (PMAY-G) (which
replaced the erstwhile Indira Awaas
Yojana). The Centre’s allocation to
PMAY-G rose from ¥13,200 crore in 2013-
14 to 323,000 crore in 2017-18 (revised
estimates). Under the PMGAY scheme,
financial assistance worth ¥1,20,000 in
plain areas and ¥1,30,000 in difficult areas
are provided for construction of houses.
The houses built under the Scheme are
converged with other Schemes and
equipped with facilities such as toilet,
LPG connection, electricity connection,
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and drinking water [e.g. Swachh Bharat
Abhiyan toilets, Ujjwala Yojana LPG gas
connection, Saubhagya Yojana electricity
connection and Jan Dhan banking
facilities, etc.]. The houses are allotted in
the name of the woman or jointly
between husband and wife. The
construction of the houses is the sole
responsibility of the beneficiary and
engagement of contractors is strictly
prohibited. Sanitary latrine and
smokeless chullah are required to be
constructed along with each IAY house
for which additional financial assistance
is provided from "Total Sanitation
Campaign" and "Rajiv Gandhi Grameen
Vidyutikaran Yojana" respectively.

Rural Housing Interest Subsidy Scheme
(RHISS): Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana -
Gramin (PMAY-G) for rural areas has
been launched from April 1, 2016 with an
objective to provide a pucca house with
basic amenities to all houseless and
households living in kutcha houses by
2022. However, to ensure that adequate
resources are made available to such
households which requires construction
/modification of their dwelling units and
have not been covered under PMAY-G,
Ministry of Rural Development (MoRD),
Gol has launched the Rural Housing
Interest Subsidy Scheme (RHISS) under
Housing for All by 2022 to provide
easy access to institutional loan to
needy households for construction
/modification of their dwelling units
who are not covered under PMAY (U).
The beneficiaries, eligible to receive
central assistance under this Scheme, will
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include any rural household who do not
appear/figure on the permanent waitlist
for PMAY-G and have not availed benefit
under PMAY (U). The Scheme is effective
from 19-06-2017 and beneficiaries would
be eligible for an interest subsidy at the
rate of 3 percent for loan amount up to 32
lakh for maximum tenure of 20 years or
the actual tenure of the loan whichever is
lesser, with the NPV discount rate of 9
percent . RHISS will cover entire India,
excluding the statutory towns as per
Census 2011 and towns subsequently
covered under PMAY - Urban. It will be
implemented through PLIs viz. SCBs,
HFCs, RRBs, Co-operative Banks, Small
Finance Banks and NBFC-MFIs. NHB has
been identified as the CNA by the Go],
MoRD to implement the RHISS vertical
of Housing for All Mission. In the month
of September-October 2018, NHB had
undertaken a pilot project on RHISS in
consultation with PLIs and submitted
data received from select PLIs to MoRD
and MoRD accordingly in consultation
issued amendments to the Scheme
Guidelines vide letter dated 26-04-2019.
Further, as on 30-06-2019 NHB has
executed MoU with 88 PLIs for
implementation of the Scheme.

4.5.4 Research Studies
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As part of its research initiatives, NHB has
undertaken many research studies in
association with reputed research
institutions for the development of housing
and housing finance market. These research
studies have helped in developing new
products and in applying renewed thrust on
policies and directions, for the overall
development of housing and housing
finance sector.

A study commissioned on “Property
Insurance in New and Existing Housing” by
engaging the Insurance Institute of India
(IlI), Mumbai has been completed. The
study, examines the insurance requirements
of the housing sector and existing property
insurance policies available in India to meet
the specific needs of the sector. It captures the
evolution and market structure of property
insurance in India, identifies the
impediments, and suggests strategies for
various stakeholders through specific
recommendations. The recommendations
include creation of insurance awareness in
the market; strict implementation of
provisions under section 16 of RERA; need
for designing simpler policies; simplifying
claim settlement process, devising sector
specific grievance redressal systems;
extension of benefits like relaxations in
regulatory provisions for the primary
lending institutions etc.

-

/Box 4.1-Property Insurance in New & Existing Housing )

As part of research initiatives, NHB commissioned a study on “Property Insurance in New &
Existing Housing” for capturing the evolution of property insurance in India, identifying the
impediments in the system and reasoning the causes for low penetration. The Bank engaged
the services of Insurance Institute of India, Mumbai (III) for undertaking the study.

The Study Report examines the insurance requirements of the housing sector and the existing/
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property insurance policies available in India to meet the specitic nesds. As per the study,
India writh 3.69 percent insurance penetration ranks 41" among the 88 countries studied by
Swiss Re. While globally, the propostions of Life insurance premiums vs Mon Life insurance
premiums were 54.32 percent and 45.68 percent, in India, the share of Life insurance was at
74.73percent as against 25.27percent for Non-Life insurance. Based on the
observations/findings of the study, the report has identified 15 aspects of significance in
respect of the property insurance of new and existing housing and presents specific
recommendations for expanding the property insurance market in India.

Recommendations:

Housing projects need to be properly protected by appropriate insurance policies through
strict implementation of provisions under section 16 of RERA which mandates the
promoter to obtain all such insurances notified by the Government in respect of the
construction of the real estate project.

The housing finance industry may be informed about the newly introduced products like
Title Insurance and Inherent Defects Insurance. The report has also highlighted the
importance of other insurance products viz. Fidelity Guarantee, Public Offering of Security
Insurance (POSI), Employees” Compensation Insurances etc. which can provide cover to
various players in housing industry against different risks.

The study has suggested that the insurers need to augment their efforts in designing
simpler policies, so that it becomes easier for house-owners to do business with them,
minimize documentation, simplify claims settlement systems and procedures, address
customer concerns in simple words, make insurance services available and accessible to
those beyond the mainstream, make insurance pricing more transparent, design customer
friendly package products and devise sector specific grievance redressal systems.

The sum insured of the property may compulsorily represent the breakup of all
components involved (such as the value of building/ construction, compound wall,
installations, furniture & fixtures etc.), indicating the details of insurance protection offered
for each component.

The Insurance Regulator may make it mandatory for every insurance company to have
standardized insurance solutions giving common minimum protection at a more or less
comparable price.

The Report also recommended extension of benefits like income tax relief, token reduction
of rate of interest to consumers and relaxations in regulatory provisions to the primary

u lending institutions in order to promote property insurance. D

The other Study on “Impact of changes in neutral model for enabling affordable
Stamp Duty and Registration Charge on housing for all” commissioned to IIM-
residential property, and suggest a revenue Bangaloreis underway.
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4 5. 3 NHB-RESITYEX
Transformation of NHB-RESIDEX

NHB RESIDEX, India’s first official housing
price index (HPI), was launched in July, 2007,
to track the movement in prices of residential
properties in select cities on quarterly basis,
taking 2007 as the base year.

With a view to reflect the current
macroeconomic scenario, NHB RESIDEX has
been revamped to include cluster of indices
with the updated base year (FY 2017-18 is the
new base year), revised methodology and
automated processes. The geographic
coverage is spread across 21 states in India,
including 18 State/ UT capitals and 33 smart
cities. The revamped NHB RESIDEX - HPI
covers 50 cities under two housing price
indices viz. HPI@Assessment Prices and
HPI@Market Prices for under construction
properties. NHB RESIDEX also includes
Composite HPI@Assessment Prices and
Composite HPI@Market Prices for Under
Construction Properties for 50 cities and has
been released till the quarter ended March
2019. HPIs details from the quarters January -
March 2018 to January - March 2019 are
available as Appendix XVIand XVII. The 50
cities coverage is spread across 21 states in
India, including 18 State/UT capitals and 33
smart cities. The HPIs track the movement in
prices of residential properties on a quarterly
basis, taking FY 2017-18 as the base year. The
housing prices are classified on the basis of
carpet area size at city level for units under
three product category levels namely <=60
sqm, >60 & <=110 sqm, and >110 sqm. The
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indices are computed using Laspeyres
MMethodology, followed by caleulation of a
Four Quarter Weighted Moving Average
with application of dynamic weights at
product category level and static base year
weights on the weighted moving average
product category level prices, across all the
quarters starting from the base year.

A NHB RESIDEX Technical Advisory
Committee monitors progress of the project
and guides in developing new systems/
processes for the preparation and
publication of the indices. It consists of
representatives from Gol, RBI, NHB, PLIs
and NAREDCO, and academics/ experts.

4.5.6 Training and Capacity Building

As part of its promotional mandate, National
Housing Bank has endeavored towards
development and capacity building of the
housing finance institutions. The same is
done inter-alia through general and
specialized training programmes, seminars
and symposiums.

4.5.7 During the year 2018-19, NHB
conducted 12 training programmes across
India, with more than 437 participants from
Housing Finance Companies, Scheduled
Commercial Banks, Regional Rural Banks
and Small Finance Banks. Eight residential
programmes and four non-residential
programmes were conducted pan India. The
average duration of training programmes
was 2-3 days. The programmes were on a
wide spectrum of topics from orientation
programmes on housing finance to
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specialised programmes on Eural Housing
Finance, EFegulatory Framework, and
Frevention of Fraudulent Practices in
Housing finance, etc. The programme
schedule and training material of each
programme was carefully designed taking
into consideration the needs and demands of
the sector along with the participant profile
and feedback of the previous programmes.
Experts from the industry and academia
functioned as faculty for the programmes.

4.5.8 As a new initiative during the year
2018-19, NHB conducted an exclusive
training programme in the north eastern part
of the country. The programme was
designed specifically for participants of the
north eastern areas and covered challenges
and opportunities in the north eastern part of
the country. Further, NHB to encourage
women participation in the training
programmes conducted a programme on
emerging landscapes of housing finance for
women officers in the month of March 2019.
The programme saw active participation and
included sessions on leadership and women
along with housing finance sector specific
topics. Customized programs sensitizing
officers about affordable housing, CLSS and
PMAY were conducted for various HFCs on
their request in Rajasthan and Gujarat.

4.5.9 Corporate Communication

* NHB as part of its statutory and
promotional mandate intends making the
general public aware of its initiatives and
schemes. NHB through its Corporate
Communication Cell undertakes creating

Annual Report 2018-19

awareness about the housing and housing
finance sector and the role of INHE
amongst the housing finanee institutions
and public in large. The CCC undertakes
various activities on a regular basis and
acts as interface between industry bodies
and supports them through knowledge
inputs and support as also participating
and co-sponsoring select events relating
to the housing finance sector.

* The Bank has been featured in national
and regional media, both electronic and
print, from time to time for its activities
and contributions in the housing finance
sector. Further, in sync with the time and
importance of social media as an effective
channel for communication, the website
of the NHB is integrated with social media
like Facebook, Twitter and LinkedIn. All-
important releases are updated on these
channels as soon as they are published on
the website.

4.5.10 World Habitat Day Celebrations

* The World Habitat Day (WHD) is
celebrated globally under the UN
Declaration every year on the first
Monday in October. In 2018, WHD was
celebrated at Vigyan Bhawan on
05.10.2018. The theme of WHD 2018 was
‘Municipal Solid Waste Management’
with focus on Swachh Bharat Mission.
Every year, NHB participates in the WHD
celebrations. This year, Special Edition of
Aawas Bharti magazine was released by
Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Minister of
Housing & Urban Affairs (MoHUA) in the
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WHD 2018 funetion. INHE also organized
painting competition for children at
schools in INew Delhi. The themes given
were “Mera Ghar” for children of junior
wing (upto Class V) and “Hamara Bharat
Swachh Bharat” for children of senior wing
(Class VI and above). Prizes were given to
the winners in the WHD 2018 function at
Vigyan Bhawan.

e As part of the celebrations, NHB in
collaboration with IHC organized the 11th
edition of the “Habitainment Quiz” based
on the theme of “Solid Municipal Waste
Management” for institutional members
and individual members of IHC. More
than 160 teams participated in the quiz.

4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 NHB'’s business operations bears the
followingrisks -

+ Credit Risk - the risk arises when
borrowers will fail to discharge their
repayment obligations and thereby cause
afinancialloss.

« Liquidity Risk - the risk arising from
Bank’s inability to meet net funding
requirements. This may be because of
market disruptions or downgrade of
credit ratings, which may cause certain
sources of funding to become unavailable.

+ Interest Rate Risk - the risk arising from
re-pricing and/ or maturity mismatches
between the assets and liabilities, thus
impairing our net interest income.

2
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+ Foreign Exchange Risk - borrowings of
theBank from overseasinstitutions attract

foreign exchange risk.

* Operational and Other Risks - the risk of
loss arising from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people, systems
and/or from external events, including
legal risk.

4.6.2 To mitigate and monitor the aboverisks,
NHB has its Risk Management System in
place. For this purpose the Bank has
constituted the following Committees:

* Rating Committee for awarding risk
rating of existing clients as well as new
clients

* Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) for monitoring the management
of liquidity risk and interest rate risk

* Credit Risk Management Committee
(CRMC) for monitoring the credit risk

* Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) for monitoring the
operational risk

* Special Mention Accounts Committee
(SMAC) for monitoring of special
mention accounts

4.6.3 NHB also has in place a Board
appointed Risk Management Advisory
Committee (RMAC) with two external
members who are experts in banking and
finance. During the year, the Committee met
four times to review NHB’s risk
management policies and functions in
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relation to the thres areas of rigk i.a. Markeat

Risk, Credit Riskand Operational Risk.

4.6.4 During the year the activities
undertaken by the Department were
104 Credit Ratings, 45 Loan Reviews,
25 ALCO Meetings, 4 SMA Meetings, 4
CRMC Meetings, 4 ORMC Meetings, 28
Rating Committee Meetings, 4 RMAC
Meetings, timely compliance of RBI's
observations, mid-office work viz. daily
valuation of trading book, preparation of
weekly agenda for Fund Management and
Investment Committee (FMIC), daily
reporting of Net Overnight Open Position
(NOOP) to Senior Management and timely
review of Policies of the Bank.

4.6.5 New initiatives taken during the year
are appointment of consultant for
development/upgradation of credit rating
model of the Bank and appointment of
consultant for work related to foreign
borrowing, derivatives and policies relating
to marketrisk.

4.7 Information Technology

4.7.1 The Bank has committed for creative
and innovative use of information
technology. Towards this end, it provides a
secure and reliable technology infrastructure
for improving efficiency and productivity.
The Bank provides 24x7 online facilities like
Website, GRIDS, ORMIS, RESIDEX and
CLSS portals to its stakeholders. The Bank
facilitates the availability of SAP employee
portal, Virtual Office, Internet Protocol (IP)
Telephony System, Exchange Mail
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Application, M5 Lyne, Websense, File
Servers, ete. on 24%7 basis for its employees.
The Bank has setup a Storage Area INetwork
(SAN) with expanded capacity, whereby
high speed storage is connected to various
servers over fiber network for efficient data
flow from storage to servers for onward
servicing of requests generating from
client/users. The Bank has enabled last mile
IT infrastructure connectivity with dual
power connectivity facility at its Head Office
premises. The Bank’s IT system and
infrastructure is regularly being upgraded
/replaced with the guidance and advice
received from the Information Technology
Committee. During the year 2019-20, the
Bank is planning to migrate to Office 365, and
implement dashboard through BI tools to
improve seamless information flow and ease
of analysis.

4.7.2 IT Committee

To provide focused attention on IT
implementation in the Bank, the Information
Technology Policy (ITP) has prescribed the
formation of the Information Technology
Committee (ITC). The ITC comprises of the
heads of operations departments, including
the IT Department and external IT
experts/senior functionaries from other
organizations as its Members, and the
Executive Director of the Bank as the
Chairman. The ITC provides directions and
oversees the IT implementation activities in
the Bank.
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4 8 HumanResources

4.8.1 IMHE aims at recruitment and retention
of skilled, well balanced and motivated
officers and is committed to continuous
development of its employees through on-
the-job training and participation inin-house
as well as external training courses and
conferences and seminars.

4.8.2 To upgrade skills and enhance their
proficiency, NHB deputed its officers for
various external training and management
development programmes offered by
reputed institutions and also in in-house
training programmes.

* 16 officers attended training programmes
at various institutes such as National
Institute of Bank Management (NIBM),
Centre for Advanced Financial Research
and Learning (CAFRAL), Institute of
Public Enterprise, Administrative Staff
College of India, Institute of Management
Study, Lucknow, Management
Development Institute, Gurgaon,
National Academy of Human Resource
Development.

* 3 officers were deputed to international
programmes in various countries.

* 1 workshop on sensitization of officers
was conducted on the subject of
prevention of sexual harassment of
women at workplace

* The following in-house training
programmes were organized by the Bank:
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i] 43 officers attended the in-house training
programmme on Operational Risk
Management.

ii) As a part of Information Security (IS)
Audit exercise, the Bank has organized a
training session on Information Security
forits Officers.

iii)To enable Officers to submit their
reimbursement claims through e-
platform, the Bank has conducted a
training/handholding session on SAP-
Employee Self Service (ESS) portal.

4.8.3 Recruitments, Appointments and
Transfers

* Recruitment process for 15 Scale I Officers
and 01 post of Executive Director was
initiated.

* Bank has appointed Nodal Officer for
Central Economic Intelligence Bureau
(CEIB), Liaison Officer for Economically
Weaker Sections (EWSs) to monitor the
implementation of reservation for EWSs,
Compliance Officer for the Bank and
Grievance Redressal Officer in
compliance to Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) - Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements (LODR)
Regulations 2015.

* Job rotation / transfers were effected for
all officers who had completed 03 years in
one post.
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484 The Key Commmittees of the

Department are as given below:

e Staff Accountability Committee
* Internal Advisory Committee

* Direct Purchase Committee

* Staff Benevolent Fund Management
Committee

* Purchase Approval Committee
* NHB (Employees’) Pension Trust

* Committee for prevention of sexual
harassment of women at workplace

4.8.5 Sexual Harassment Committee has
been constituted for considering complaint
relating to sexual harassment of women at
the workplace, as per provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. No compliant was received during the
year 2018-19. Further, NHB has organized
one workshop to educate and sensitize the
staffs on conduct that constitute sexual
harassment under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

4.8.6 NHB's guidelines/ policies with respect
to Scheduled Castes (SCs), Scheduled Tribes
(STs) and Other Backward Classes (OBCs)
are in consonance with the guidelines issued
by the Government of India, wherever
applicable NHB uploads the final
Reservation Rosters on its website as per
Government directions. The representation
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of 3Cs, STs, and OBCs asz on June 30, 2019 is
givenin Appendix XV,

4.8.7 Employee Engagement Activities viz.
Annual Day, Women’s Day Celebrations,
Swachhata Pakhwada etc.:

* Anevent was organized on the occasion of
30th Annual Day of NHB on July 09, 2018.
In this event, officers were taken through
various milestones achieved by NHB in its
30 years of journey and challenges/
opportunities lying ahead before the
organization in general and housing
finance sector in particular were
discussed.

* Bank celebrated Independence Day by
decorating Bank’s premises.

* Under the Swacch Bharat Abhiyan -
Swachhata Pakhwada 2019, officers of the
Bank undertook cleanliness drive in office
premises as well as around their
residential complex in Jangpura and
Vasant Kunj. In addition to the cleanliness
drive, the Bank also carried out plantation
activity in order to make the environment
greener and cleaner.

4.8.8 Other activities undertaken during the
year are:

* Reimbursement module for Officers has
been made fully online with effect from
August01,2018.

* Reservation Rosters upto 2017 were
prepared and the same was inspected by
DFS, Ministry of Finance, Gol.
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* Two Fegional Fepresentative Otffices
(RROs) at Bhopal and Chennai wers
closed during the year.

* Delegated Financial Powers for the Bank
werereviewed.

4.9 Rajbhasha

4.9.1 During the financial year 2018-19, the

Bank has continued its efforts to
strengthen the implementation of Official
Language Policy in its offices. Bank has
prepared the effective plan to achieve the
targets of the Annual Program of Financial
Year 2018-19 received from the
Department of Official Language,
Ministry of Home Affairs, Gol. In this
regard, the Official Language
Implementation Committee of the Head
Office and Regional/Representative
Offices reviewed and monitored the
progress of implementation of the Official
Language.

4.9.2 In order to ensure maximum use of

Hindi, the Bank has notified its all
Regional/Representative Offices under
rule 10 (4) of Official Language Rules,
1976. Online updation of quarterly
progress report on the portal of the Official
Language Department, Home Ministry
is ensured by all the Regional/
Representative Offices of the Bank.

4.9.3 Meetings of the Official Language

Implementation Committee are held in all
Regional/Representative Offices of the
Bank and offices also ensured the regular
participation in the meetings organized by

@

(X

their respective TOLIC. A special issue is
also being published by the Bank every
vear on the occasion of World Habitat
Day, which is unveiled every year in the
program of World Habitat Day organized
in Vigyan Bhawan. For the special issue
articles are invited from all public sector
banks/financial institutions/housing
finance companies and officers and
employees of the Housing Boards located
in different States and each published
article is also rewarded. This year Bank
organized Hindi Hasya Vyangya Kavita
writing competition on 24th October, 2018
for the member offices of TOLIC under the
aegis of Delhi Bank TOLIC.

4.9.4 Incentives are implemented in the Bank

for the purpose of encouraging the use of
Hindi in daily activities. Hindi Noting
Incentive Scheme has been implemented
to encourage officials working in the Bank
to write notes in Hindi. Hindi competition
is also organized every two months to
make officials comfortable to work in
Hindi. In addition, the use of Unicode in
the Bank was promoted and the officers
were trained to use the available
software/facilities for working in Hindi
on computers. In compliance of the
instructions of Government of India, the
Bank celebrated Hindi month in August-
September 2018 during which various
competitions were organized and the
winners were rewarded. On the occasion
of the “Hindi Maas”, the “Chal Vaijayanti”
trophy is awarded to the Department in
the Head Office which performs best in
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the daily usage of Hindi every vear.

495 The GRIDS Fortal, which is used by

customers to register their grievances
against the Housing Finance Companies
and Bank's website has also been prepared
in bilingual. During the year, the Mumbai
Regional Office of the Bank was inspected
on February 16, 2019 by the Parliamentary
Official Language Committee's Articles
and Evidence Sub-Committee.

4.9.6 The Bank has progressed in the field of

implementation of the Official Language
and has received various level rewards
during the year. For the year 2017-18,
Bank's Hindi in-house magazine 'Aawas
Bharti', has been awarded third prize by
the Reserve Bank of India and First prize
from TOLIC (Delhi). Further, Bank also
got the third prize for best performance in
the implementation of Official Language
Hindi in the category of Financial
Institutions for the year 2017-18 from the
Delhi Bank Town Official Language
Implementation Committee.
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automation software LIBSYS.

410.2 Information Technology which is an

integral part of Knowledge Centre has
made availability of information to more
users at affordable cost & it saves valuable
space also. All the functions of
Knowledge Centre are managed through
library automation software LIBSYS, thus
making it a fully automated library. A
substantial collection of Knowledge
Centre is in the form of e-books in various
formats like PDF, EPUB etc. on CD-ROMs,
and Kindle’s e-book reader. Knowledge
Centre has also availed the membership of
leading libraries such as British Council
Library.

410.3 Bank is also publishing the e-

newsletter for the officers to apprise them
with the developments in the sector. Daily
Press Clippings are uploaded on Intranet
Portal to keep officers updated about
Housing, Banking, Economic
developments etc. and articles on Housing
are also being circulated through News
Letter.

4.10 Knowledge Centre

) ) 4104 Knowledge Centre has a unique
4.10.1 Knowledge Centre was established in

Head Office to facilitate acquiring
additional knowledge and application
through effective dissemination of
information.  Since the inception of
Knowledge Centre in 1989 it has seen
many changes, it has transformed itself
from manually managed to fully
automated library through library

collection of more than 7000
Books/Bound Journals/Reports and
more than 30 Reputed International and
National Journals/Magazines on
subjects like Housing and Housing
Finance, Banking, Economics, General
Management, Law, Leadership, Quantitative
Methods, Rural Developments,
Microfinance, Information Technology

e
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ete. in English and Hindi Language.
Along with above books Frnowledge
Centre also has a collection of warious
reports and publication of various reputed
institutions such as RBI, International
Monetary Fund, World Bank, IUHF.

4.10.5 Knowledge Centre has started to

donate the old newspapers and
magazines to an NGO named Society for
Rural Urban and Tribal Initiative.

4.10.6 A process of acquiring newspapers/

magazines of various regional languages
like Tamil, Telugu, Odia, and Bengali has
also been initiated for the benefit of
officers belonging to different states of the
Country.

4.11 Compliance Cell

Compliance in any institution plays an
essential role. A healthy, positive
compliance culture within the institution
minimizes the risk of regulatory failure. In
order to achieve this and a sound
organizational structure in NHB, a
separate Compliance Cell has been
created. The function of the Compliance
Cell is to ensure strict observance of all
statutory provisions contained in various
legislations as well as to ensure
observance of other regulatory guidelines
issued from time to time and also NHB's
internal policies and Fair Practices Code.

4.12 Vigilance Cell

4121 In accordance with the directives of

Central Vigilance Commission, the

D
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Vigilance Awareness Weelk was observed
in INational Housing Bank. The Vigilance
Awarenass Weaelk was observed from 2%th
October to 3rd November, 2018 on the
theme “Eradicate Corruption - Build a
New India (9yrar fersn— 741 9ra a-13i)” .
The Vigilance Awareness Week
commenced with the administration of
pledge by our MD & CEO and the
Executive Director. The Pledge was
recited in both Hindi & English language
to all officers of the Bank. The Bank had
also organised an open interactive session
with special emphasis on this year’s
vigilance awareness theme.

4.12.2 The Vigilance department of the Bank

had organized various events like
Drawing & Painting competition, Essay
Writing, Inter-departmental Debate etc.
during this week. All the officers & their
family members took active participation
in these events. The winners, decided by
the panel of judges, of these events were
awarded. Consolation prizes were also
given to select participants. The posters
and the Banners were displayed at
prominent places of the Bank’s Head

Office (HO).

413 RTICell

To confer citizens a right to secure access
to the information under the control of
public authorities and to promote
transparency and accountability in the
working of every public authority, the
Right to Information Act 2005 was enacted
by the Parliament. As per the guidelines of
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the BTT Act, CFLD was notinated in the
Bank in the month of September 2005.
Thereafter RTI cell was established to
assist CPIO in dealing all matter
pertaining to RTI application/appeal
received through all channels (online and
offline).

RTI applications and appeals received
during the year, replied during the year

and pending, if any
Particulars |[Received | Replied | Pending as on
30.06.2019
RTI 1273 1210* 89
Applications
RTI Appeals 107 105** 9

*includes 26 RTI replies of previous FY
**includes 7 Appeal replies of previous FY

4.14 Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank’s CSR efforts are aimed towards
developmental and welfare activities, where
the impact achieved would be widespread.
During the FY 2018-19 (July-June), the Bank
contributed 1 crore each to Swachh Bharat
Koshand Clean Ganga Fund.

During the previous year, the Bank
contributed X1 crore each to Swachh Bharat
Kosh and National Skill Development Fund
(NSDF). The contribution made to NSDF is
being utilized for skill development training
and placement support for 290 youths in
variousjobroles in the housing sector.
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415 Regional Office and Regional
Representative Offices

Regional Office (RO) at Mumbai and the
Regional Representative Offices (RROs) at
various places play an important role in the
achievement of the NHB’s Vision, Mission
and Objectives. The RO and RROs are closely
involved in liaising and coordination at the
local level within their geography. They
provide vital support to the financing,
resource raising, capacity building and other
functions to the Head Office.

4.16 Audit

To strengthen and streamline the audit
activities, All Audit Department has
implemented Audit Framework of the Bank
prepared by the consultant and auditor M/s
KPMG after receiving approval of the ACB
and the Board. The Audit framework
includes Audit Policy, Risk Registers, Gap
Report and Audit Charter. The
implementation of Audit Framework will
prove to be an important milestone
considering future plans of All Audit
Department, wherein all the audit processes
are expected to be carried out under one
umbrella department.

Further, in view of the increased incidents of
cyber-attacks worldwide and to comply with
RBI guidelines on cyber security, department
has initiated the process for implementation
of Cyber Security Framework, Cyber Crisis
Management Plan and setting-up of Cyber
Security Operation Centre (CSOC) to
strengthen the Information/data Security in
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the Bank as also to mitigate the possible
incidents of Cvber Security. The
implementation of Cyber Security
Framework will augment the existing
Information Security infrastructure and will
ensure safety of data / information assets of

(X

the Bank. The exercise is expected to be
completed in the current calendar year. M.IL
MNissim & Co. [FEIN: 107122W) is the
Concurrent Auditor of NHB and KPMG is
the Internal Auditor.
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5 Way Forward

Housing is a primary necessity in every
economy and is a basic indicator of growth
and social well-being. Development of
housing is not just important to economic
growth but can be considered as a tool to
measure economic development,
considering the accelerator impact it has on
various industries including construction
and infrastructure sector. It generates
demand for supporting industries and leads
to creation of job opportunities.

For any emerging economy, development of
the housing sector has its own challenges.
One of the biggest of these challenges is
access to finance. In most countries, the lower
income segments of the population at the
base of the pyramid remain unserved or
underserved by the formal housing finance
system. The housing finance sector has been
on the fast lane and has been growing at 15
percent. The home loan-to-GDP ratio in India
iscurrently at10.6 percent.

The year has witnessed turmoil and skewed
market sentiments in the NBFC and HFC
sector leading to liquidity crunch and
thereby limiting the growth in the housing
finance disbursements. On account of the
same, the cost of borrowings for the HFCs
has been on the rise. Though the HFCs have
more or less retained their market share,
however, the access to funding will
determine the growth prospects for HFCs.
Many PLIs resorted to securitization to meet
their liquidity requirements. External
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comtnerecial borrowings also gathered pace,
but in a limited way. While the squeeze has
subsided, the FLIs complained about high
cost of funds. The troubles at the NBFCs are
asset liability mismatch, where short term
borrowings are used to fund long term
assets.

HFCs have started strengthening their
liquidity buffers to meet any sudden market
disruptions and near-term debt obligations.
Though banks have continued to disburse
home loans during the liquidity crisis faced
by NBFCs and HFCs, the slow progress of
HFCs had an impact on the housing finance
growth in the country. Thus, with the
liquidity situation now being resolved with
different sops and measures, NBFCs and
HEFCs are expected to restart disbursals and
housing finance is again expected to pick up
pace.

NHB has reviewed the situation and has also
closely monitored the situation. In view of
the above, NHB has increased the Refinance
Limit for the year 2018-19 (July 2018 to June
2019) from ¥24,000 crore to 30,000 crore. The
Bank disbursed 325,177 crore through its
various scheme under its refinance window
during the FY19. About 85 percent of the
disbursements were for loan size upto 325
lakh.

In order to infuse liquidity in the Housing
Finance system and also to cater the demand
of HFCs to address the housing finance
requirements in the affordable housing
finance sector, the NHB in the month of
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August, 2019 launched Liquidity Infusion
Facility [LIFt) Scheme for Housing Finance
Companies. The objective of this scheme was
to support HFCs in creating individual
housing loan portfolio that falls under the
priority sector, as defined by RBI. An amount
of ¥ 10,000 crore was initially allotted under
the Scheme. Subsequently, the limit was
raised from T 10,000 crore to T 30,000 crore
under the revised LIfT Scheme.

During the last three years (from FY 2016-17
to FY 2018-19) a cumulative amount of
%9,940.60 crore was disbursed (Subsidy
Released + Processing Fee- Subsidy Refund)
by NHB under PMAY-CLSS benefitting
4,26,755 EWS/LIG households. Of this,
around 70 percent disbursement was made to
HFCs for providing subsidy to 2,96,514
EWS/LIG households. The disbursement to
Banks [including Co-operative Banks (Co-op
Banks), Regional Rural Banks (RRBs), Private
Sector Banks (Pvt. Banks) and Public Sector
Banks (PSBs)] constituted 30 percent of the
total disbursement thereby benefitting
1,30,241 households.
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The Committee on the Development of
Housing Finance Securitisation Lfarket
constituted by the EEI in May, 2019 has
submitted its Report. The Report provides
various recommendations for setting up of
vibrant securitization market by moving to a
broader issuance model from the present
market which is primarily dominated by
Direct Assignment with suitable structuring
of the instruments for diverse investor
classes.

The latest announcement pertaining to
setting up of a special window to provide last
mile funding for non-NPA and non-NCLT
housing projects is another measure to revive
the economic growth by providing a boost to
the housing sector. The Fund with a
contribution of 10,000 crore by the
Government and an equal contribution from
outside investors shall contribute towards
completion of stalled projects.

In the backdrop of robust demand for
affordable housing, measures announced by
the RBI and Government of India, the
housing finance sector continues to be
sustainable on stable lines.
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Directors’ Report

To The Members

The Directors are pleasad to present the 31* Annual Feport of Mational Housing Bank together

with the Audited statement of accounts for the year ended June 30, 2019.

1. Review of Financial Performance

During the FY 2018-19, (July-June) amidst tight liquidity conditions across the NBFC sector
including HFCs , the Bank succeeded in infusing timely liquidity to HFCs by disbursing ¥ 21,736

crore out of total disbursement of ¥ 25,177 crore to all eligible PLIs. Emphasis has been given on

Refinancing of smaller ticket size housing loans of less than X 25 lakh which constitutes about 97

percent of the total disbursements. In addition to providing liquidity support to HFCs, the Bank’s
Refinance also encourages HFCs to intervene in the segment which is being catered to under the

Gol's PMAY-CLSS programme.

The performance highlights of the Bank are tabulated below:

(Amount in X crore)

Financial Year 2017-18

Financial Year 2018-19

Particulars (July to June) (July to June)
Gross Income 4425.66 5275.55
Interest Income 4361.73 4994.07
Other Income 63.93 281.48
Total Operating Expenditure 3155.41 3465.43
(Gain)/Loss on account of foreign exchange 21.19 13.66
fluctuations
Operating Profit/ Turnover 1249.06 1796.46
Provisions and Contingencies 81.38 481.99
Profit Before Tax 1167.68 1314.47
Provision for Tax/Deferred Tax 416.57 581.50
Profit After Tax 751.11 732.97
Net Interest Income 1285.47 1594.45
Gross Non Performing Assets 4.61 419
Net Non-Performing Assets 0.00 0.00
Paid Up Capital 1450.00 1450.00
Reserves and Surplus 6743.84 7480.93
Net Owned Fund 7687.69 8403.91
Return on Average Assets 1.22% 1.04%
Interest Coverage Ratio 1.38 1.39
Return on NOF 10.25% 9.10%
Net Interest Margin 2.08% 2.26%
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2. State OFf A ffairs

The Mational Housing Bank is a development finanecial institution established in 1988, under an
Act of Parliament viz., the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. NHB is to operate as a principal
agency for housing finance institutions and provide financial and other support to such
institutions. The main three functions of NHB are supervision, financing and promotion &
development. NHB'’s business includes refinancing housing loans to individuals of HFCs and
SCBs and project financing public agencies and public private partnership entities for their
housing projects.

The regulatory powers of the Bank have shifted to Reserve Bank of India vide gazette notification
dated 9" August, 2019.

There has been no change in the business of the Bank during the financial year ended June 2019.
3. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Companies

NHB does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

4.Loans and Investment

The Bank provides finance to the housing sector through two windows namely Refinance and
Project Finance. Through Refinance, Bank makes intervention in the demand side and through
the Project Finance window supply side interventions are achieved. During the FY 2018-19, Bank
has disbursed 321,736 crore to Housing Finance Companies, 33,300 crore to Scheduled

Commercial Banks including Regional Rural Banks and 3141 crores to Small Finance Banks.

In terms of the Bank’s disinvestment policy, during the FY, Bank had reviewed and disinvested its
entire holding of 17.64 lakh of equity shares amounting to *2.11 crore in SEWA Grih Rinn HFL on
March 19,2019 at¥4.62 crore. Further, the Bank also reviewed and disinvested its entire holding of
118.92 lakh of equity shares amounting to ¥33.22 crore in Mahindra Rural Housing Finance
Limited on April 26, 2019 at ¥286.78 crore. The sale of equity shares in above HFCs resulted in a
profit of ¥256.07 crore.

5. Amounts transferred to Reserves
During the FY 2018-19, an amount of ¥178.74 crore has been transferred to Reserve Fund.
6. Number Of Board Meetings

During the FY 2018-19, the Board met seven times, the Audit Committee of the Board met four
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tirres, the Executive Cormmittes and the Human Eesource Cormmittes et three times each and

Fegulatory Committes of the Board met two times.

7.Particulars of Contract and arrangement with Related Parties:
Please refer to Para 20 of the Notes to Accounts.

8. Explanation to Auditor’s remarks:

For the FY 2018-19, the Statutory Auditors have given unqualified report on the Bank’s
Financials and opined that there are no observations or comments on financial transactions or
matters which have any adverse effect on the functioning of the Bank.

9. Material changes affecting the financial position of the Bank:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Bank
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the
date of this report.

10.Risk Management Policy

The Bank has in place a comprehensive Risk Management Policy approved by the Board. The
objective of Risk Management Policy of the Bank is:

1. Toevolve a Risk Management System compatible with the nature and the size of the operation
and the risk management philosophy set by the Bank

2. To develop policies, procedures and practices to ensure that various risks are appropriately
identified, measured, monitored and managed.

3. To decide the level of risk the Bank should undertake, after its scientific measurement is done,
to achieve optimum return from its various business lines to enhance Bank’s profitability and
capital.

4. To ensure that comprehensive Risk Monitoring system is designed and implemented in order
to manage the risk within the level decided to achieve the planned optimum return.

11.Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on 30-06-2019, apart from Managing Director, NHB appointed by the Government of India
under Section 6(1)(a) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, there were seven other directors
on the Board, as per the following composition:

@
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(i] onenon-official Directorappointed by the Central Government under Section 6(1) (b] of the Act,
(ii] one non-otficial Director appointed by the Central Government underSection® (1) (2] of the Act,
(iii}one Director from among the Board of Directors of Reserve Bank of India, nominated by the
Reserve Bank of India under Section 6 (1) (d) of the Act, (iv) two Directors from amongst the
officials of the Central Government, appointed by the Central Government under Section 6 (1) (e)
of the Act, and (v) two Directors from amongst the officials of the State Government, appointed
by the Central Government under Section 6 (1) (f) of the Act.

Currently, the Board of Directors are:

Shri S.K. Hota, Managing Director, National Housing Bank

Shri Kamalkishore C. Jani, Part-Time Non-Official Director

Dr. Charan Singh, Part-Time Non-Official Director

Dr. Prasanna Kumar Mohanty, Central Board of Director, RBI

Shri Shiv Das Meena, Additional Secretary to the GOI, MoHUA

Shri Pankaj Jain, Additional Secretary to the GOI, Ministry of Finance, DFS
Shri Prasant Kumar, Additional Secretary to the GOI, Rural Housing, MoRD

12. Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act,2013

The Bank has a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the
workplace. The Bank has in place a “Committee for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace”. The purpose of the Committee is primarily to ensure that women are provided
with a working environment that is comfortable and conducive to work and to ensure that there
is no sexual harassment in workplace. The Committee holds workshops periodically for its staff
with respect to sensitizing the staff of NHB on the subject of prevention of sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace. During the year, no complaint was received by the Committee. There
were no pending complaints with the Committee as on June 30,2019.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

New Delhi S. K. Hota
August 22, 2019 Managing Director
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BAMNSAL & COLLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

HEAD OFFICE : A-&, Maharani Bagh Mew Delhi-110065
FH. : 011-41e26d70-F1 FA% : 011-41325425
E-mail: info@bansalco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To
The President of India
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of National Housing Bank (“the Bank"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30" June 2019, the Profit and Loss, and cash flows
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 30" June 2019, and profit/loss
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
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context of our audit of the finanecial statermnents as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide aseparate opinion on these matters.

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “ Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements", section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Auditors Response

Identification of Non-performing advances and provisioning of advances:

Advances constitute a significant portion of
the Bank’s assets and the quality of these
advances is measured in terms of ratio of
Non—Performing Advances (“NPA”)to the
gross advances of the Bank. The Bank's net
advances constitute 92.34 % of the total assets
and the gross NPA ratio of the Bank is 0.01%
asatJune 30,2019.

The Reserve Bank of India’s (“RBI”)
guidelines on Income recognition and asset
classification (“IRAC”)prescribe the
prudential norms for identification and
classification of NPAs and the minimum
provision required for such assets. The Bank
is also required to apply its judgment to
determine the identification and provision
required against NPAs by applying
quantitative as well as qualitative factors.
The risk of identification of NPAs is affected
by factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provisioning for identified NPAs is
estimated based on ageing and classification
of NPAs, recovery estimates, value of
security and other qualitative factors and is
subject to the minimum provisioning norms
specified by RBI.

The Bank has detailed its accounting policy

Our audit approach towards advances with
reference to the IRAC norms and other
related circulars / directives issued by RBI
and also internal policies and procedures of
the Bank includes the testing of the
following;:

* Understanding, evaluating and testing
the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls (including application
controls) around identification of
impaired accounts based on the extant
guidelines on IRAC.

* Performing other procedures including
substantive audit procedures covering
the identification of NPAs by the Bank.
These procedures included:

* Considering the accounts reported by
the Bank and other Banks as Special
Mention Accounts (“SMA”) in RBI's central
repository of information on large
credits (CRILC) toidentify stress.

* Performing inquiries with the credit and
risk departments to ascertain if there
were indicators of stress or an occurrence
of an event of default in a particular loan
account or any product category which
need tobeconsidered asNPA.

* Reviewing account statements and other
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in this regard in Schedule XWV- Significant
accounting policies
Loans/ Advancesand Provision thereon,
Since the identification of NPAs and
provisioning for advances require significant
level of estimation and given its significance to
the overall audit, we have ascertained
identification and provisioning for NPAs as a
key audit matter.

undear note B

related information of the borrowers
selected based on quantitative and
qualitative risk factors.

* Gained an understanding of the Bank's
process for provisioning of advances.

Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and

Controls

The reliability and security of IT systems plays
a key role in the business operations of the
Bank. Since large volume of transactions are
processed daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner. These systems also play
a key role in the financial accounting and
reporting process of the Bank.

Due to the pervasive nature and complexity of
the IT environment we have ascertained IT
systems and controls as a key audit matter.

* We focused our Audit on IT systems and
controls that are significant to the Bank’s
financial reporting.

Obtained report related to information
technology audit carried out by the
subject matter expert engaged by the
management and assessed the impact if
any on our audit procedures. The report
has not flagged any material issue
impacting the financial reporting.

We applied substantive audit procedure
to ensure that areas where there are
manual controls are operating effectively.
During our Audit process, some
unreconciled items in bank reconciliation
were noticed. Though, the effect of those
transaction was not material and will not
have any impact in our opinion.
However, these have been reported to the

management.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ('the Act)
and the Regulations framed there under for General Fund and for Special Fund in accordance
with the provisions of National Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund)
Regulation, 1993, the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the applicable
Accounting Standards issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and applicable
RBI guidelines as issued from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
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assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a) The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account and cash flow have been drawn up in
accordance with the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 as amended ('the Act'), and the
Regulations framed there under for General Fund and for Special Fund in accordance with
the provisions of National Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund)
Regulation, 1993.

b) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

¢) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far
asitappears from our examination of those books.

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

e) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of
the Bank.

f) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements dealt with by this report comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards.

For Bansal & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. - 001113N/N500079

— ST

) ) D.S. Rawat

Place of Signature: New Delhi (Partner)
. nd

Date: 22" August 2019 (Membership No. 083030) UDIN: 19083030AAAAAX5435
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Balance Shest

Amount in T crore

Previous Year Liabilities Schedules Current Year
1,450.00 1. Capital I 1,450.00
6,367.75 2. Reserves II 6,824.52

376.09 3. Profit and Loss Account III 656.41
7,858.53 4. Bonds and Debentures v 10,840.55
36,190.01 5. Deposits \Y% 40,591.80
8,637.06 6. Borrowings VI 12,056.42
340.60 7. Deferred Tax Liability (net) 428.60
2,017.18 8. Current Liabilities and Provisions VII 2,713.96
35.46 9. Other Liabilities VIII 35.46
0.06 10.HLA deposits with banks 0.06
and HFCs-as per contra
63,272.74 TOTAL 75,597.78
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Arvind Mohit Kaul Rakesh Awasthi
Regional Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Financial Officer
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Ashwani Kumar Tripathi S.K. Hota Pankaj Jain
Executive Director Managing Director Director

New Delhi, August 22, 2019
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Amount in T crore

Previous Year Assets Schedules Current Year
1,208.12 1.Cash and Bank Balances IX 1,695.21
3,644.81 2. Investments X 3,501.07

57,683.62 3.Loans and Advances XI 69,805.21
37.21 4 Fixed Assets XII 32.90
698.92 5.0ther Assets XIII 563.33
0.06 6.HLA deposits with banks and HFCs 0.06

- as per contra
63,272.74 TOTAL 75,597.78
96.81 Contingent Liability XIV 144.95

Schedules I to XV form an integral part of accounts

As per our attached Report of even date

for Bansal & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 001113N/N500079

Sd/-

(Dr. D. S. Rawat)
Partner

Membership No. 083030
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National Housing Bank Profit & Loss Account
Amounit in 3 crore
Previous Year Expenditure Current Year
3,031.63 1. Interest 3,323.23
19.69 2. Staff Salaries, Allowances etc. and Terminal Benefits 21.12
0.08 3. Directors' and Committee Members Fees and Expenses 0.08
0.13 4. Audit Fees 0.14
2.32 5. Rent, Taxes, Electricity and Insurance 3.34
0.60 6. Postage, Telegrams, Telex and Telephones 0.45
1.31 7. Law Charges 0.76
8. Stationery, Printing, Advertisement, etc.
0.33 (i) Stationery and Printing 0.31
0.84 (ii) Advertisement 0.60 091
44.63 9. Coupon paid on SWAP Deals/Premium paid on POS 76.39
7.06 10. Depreciation on Fixed Assets 5.65
7.26 11. Brokerage, Guarantee Fee and Other Expenditure 497
on Borrowings
3.07 12. Stamp duty on Borrowings 410
2.85 13. Travelling Expenses 1.72
2.00 14. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 2.00
23.42 15. Other Expenditure 20.41
7.32 16. Depreciation/ Amortisation on Investment (0.08)
21.19 17. Exchange Loss/(Gain) 13.66
0.87 18. Prior Period Expenses 0.24
26.94 19. Provision for Standard Assets 404.40
54.44 20. Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of 78.01
Income Tax Act, 1961
0.00 21. Provision for Non Performing Assets (0.42)
67.26 22. Deferred Tax 88.00
349.31 23. Income Tax 493.50
751.11 24. Profit carried to Balance Sheet (Refer Schedule III) 732.97
4,425.66 TOTAL 5,275.55
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Arvind Mohit Kaul Rakesh Awasthi
Regional Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Financial Officer
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Ashwani Kumar Tripathi S.K. Hota Pankaj Jain
Executive Director Managing Director Director

@

New Delhi, August 22, 2019
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for the year ended 30™ June, 2019
Amount in T cxore

Previous Year Income Current Year

1. Interest and Discount
4131.75 (i) Loans and Advances 4,740.51
11.30 (ii) Bank Deposits 47.43 4,787.94
197.85 2. Income from Investments 194.85
(4.39) 3. Profit on Sale of Investments 256.07
25.22 4. Profit on Purchase and Sale of Mutual Fund 11.28
(0.07) 5. Profit/ (Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets 0.01
8.07 6. Prior Period Income 0.05
4.76 7. Other Income 10.72
46.46 8. Provisions no longer required written back 0.13
0.05 9. Amortisation of Premium on Bonds 0.05
4.66 10. Amortisation of Premium on Forward 14.45
Exchange Contract
4,425.66 TOTAL 5,275.55

Schedules I to XV form an integral part of accounts

As per our attached Report of even date

for Bansal & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 001113N/N500079
Sd/-
(Dr. D. S. Rawat)
Partner

Membership No. 083030
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at 30™ June, 2019

SCHEDULE -1
CAPITAL Amount i T crore
Previous Year Description Current Year
1,450.00 1. Authorised 1,450.00
1,450.00 2. Issued and Paid-up (Statutory Body Under the 1,450.00
Government of India)*
1,450.00 1,450.00

*Transfer of shares from Reserve Bank of India to Government of India w.e.f. 19.03.2019
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SCHEDTULE - I11

National Housing Bank
Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at 30™ June, 2019 Amount in T crore
Previous Year Schedules Current Year
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
1,213.19 Balance of Profit brought forward 376.09
751.11 Balance as per Profit and Loss Account 732.97
Less: Appropriations:
178.49 (a) Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)
(viii) of Income Tax Act,1961 257.50
1,397.38 (b) Transfer to Reserve Fund 178.74
12.34 (c) Profit of Special Fund (Slum
Improvement and Low Cost Housing
Fund) transferred to Special Fund A/c 16.41 452.65
376.09 656.41
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SCHEDULE - IV

BONDS AND DEBENTURES Amount in T crore
Previous Year Description Current Year
1,016.63 1. Zero Coupon Bonds 0.00
2,000.00 2. NHB Bonds 6,037.10
3. Priority Sector Bonds:

4,640.60 (a) Tax-free Bonds 4,640.55

201.30 (b) Special Series Bonds 162.90 4,803.45
7,858.53 10,840.55

SCHEDULE -V

DEPOSITS Amount in X crore
Previous Year =~ Description Current Year
25,500.00 1. Deposits from banks under Rural Housing Fund 22,500.00
10,500.00 2. Deposits from banks under Urban Housing Fund 10,500.00
0.00 3. Deposits from banks under Affordable Housing Fund 7,500.00
190.01 4. Other Deposits from Public 91.80
36,190.01 40,591.80

SCHEDULE - VI
BORROWINGS Amount in T crore

Previous Year =~ Description Current Year

1. From Reserve Bank of India:

2.61 Line of Credit 0.00
2. From Other Sources:
(@) In India

400.00 (i) Borrowing against Term Deposits 0.00

4,000.00 (ii) Borrowing through Term Loan 4,505.00
0.00 (iii) Commercial Papers 2,955.22 7,460.22
1,365.77 (b) Outside India 1,940.98
2,868.68 3. CBLO Borrowings 0.00
0.00 4. TREP Borrowings 2,655.22
8,637.06 12,056.42

269
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SCHEDULE - VII

CURRENT LIAEBILITIES AND PROVISIONS Amount in T core

Previous Year Description Current Year
1. Interest Payable:
1.48 (a) Unclaimed Interest 1.50
237.66 (b) Interest Payable on Other Bonds and 365.22
Debentures
509.72 (c) Interest Payable on Deposits 529.92
0.98 (d) Interest Payable on CBLO Borrowing 0.00
22.73 (e) Interest Payable on Other Borrowings 41.66
11.51 (f) Interest Payable on SWAP deals 13.16
0.00 (g)Interest Payable on TREP Borrowings _1.27 952.73
2. Provision for Retirement Benefits:
1.08 (a) Medical Expense for Retired Officers 1.20
5.28 (b) Leave Encashment 6.58
6.81 (c) Gratuity 7.24
1.81 (d) Leave Travel Concession 212
6.01 (e) Sick Leave 6.21
4.22 (f) Pension 374 27.09
3. Other Provisions:
231.14 (a) Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 635.54
443.39 (b) Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts u/s 36(1) 521.40
(viia)(c) of Income Tax Act,1961
0.02 (c) Provision for Diminution in the Value of 0.02
Restructured A/c
10.00 (d) Provision for Contingencies 10.00
0.22 (e) Provision for HLA Deposits 0.22
0.20 (f) Other Provisions 0.20
21.93 (g) Statutory Liability & Others 10.13 1,177.51
0.71 4. Redemption Payable Account 0.84
3.27 5. Capital Gains Bonds Overdue Account 3.21
4.33 6. Sunidhi/Suvridhi Overdue 7.95
1.76 7. UN-HABITAT Revolving Fund for Water & Sanitation 1.76
Projects
15.34 8. Amount received under 1% Interest Subvention Scheme 16.32
1.22 9. Amount received under Interest Subsidy Scheme for 1.30
Housing the Urban Poor
27.83 10. Amount received under MNRE Subsidy Scheme 29.61
32.64 11. Amount received under Rajiv Rinn Yojana 34.27
361.29 12. Amount received under Credit Linked Subsidy 311.11
Scheme (CLSS)
44.07 13. Other Liabilities 150.26
8.53 14. 10T 0.00
2,017.18 2,713.96

@
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OTHER LIABILITIES Amount tn % arore
Previous Year Description Current Year
0.17 1. Unsettled transactions of 1991-92 0.17
35.29 2. Interest Payable on unsettled transactions 35.29
35.46 35.46

SCHEDULE - IX

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Amount in T crore

Previous Year Description Current Year
@ 1. Cash/ Cheques in Hand @
0.04 2. Current Account with Reserve Bank of India 0.05
3. Balance with other banks:
(@) In India
460.36 (i) Current Accounts 398.34
400.00 (i) Term Deposits with banks 1000.00
53.96 (iii) Term Deposits with banks(Staff 57.00 1,455.34
Benevolent Fund)
(b) Outside India
293.76 Term Deposits with banks 239.82
1,208.12 1,695.21

@ amount less than % 0.50 Lacs.
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SCHEDULE - X

INVESTMENTS

(X

Amount i T crore

Previous Year

Description

Current Year

1.

Securities of Central and State Government
at cost or market value whichever is less

100.05 (a) Government Securities (Pledged with
CCIL for borrowing operations)
6.98 Less: Depreciation 93.15
2,785.27 (b) Treasury Bills (Pledged with CCIL 2,676.78
for borrowing operations)
40.43 2. Stock, Shares, Bonds, Debentures and 5.10
Securities of Housing Finance Institutions
3. Stocks, Shares, Bonds, Debentures and
Securities of other Institutions:
726.04 (a) Shares of Other Institutions
0.53 (b) Shares of Building Material Company 0.53
0.53 Less: Depreciation _0.53 726.04
3,644.81 3,501.07
SCHEDULE - XI
LOANS AND ADVANCES Amount in % crore
Previous Year Description Current Year
I Refinance
1. Housing Finance Institutions:
37,194.66 (a) Housing Finance Companies 50,477.09
0.26 (b) Co-operative Housing Finance Societies 0.00 50,477.09
2. Scheduled Banks:
19,369.20 (@) Commercial Banks 18,315.38
846.74 (b) Regional Rural Banks 753.52
164.70 (c) Urban Co-operative Banks 165.74 19,234.64
II Direct Lending
112.67 3. Housing Boards, Development Authorities, etc. 97.67
57,688.23 Gross Loans and Advances 69,809.40
4.61 Less: Provisions for Non Performing Assets 4.19
57,683.62 Net Loans and Advances 69,805.21

@
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SCHEDULE - XIII

OTHER ASSETS

(X

Amount it T crore

Previous Year

Description

Current Year

1. Interest Receivable:
3.98 (a) Bank Deposits 11.80
122.54 (b) Investments 108.21 120.01
2. Advances, Receivables, Advance
Tax & Prepaid Expenses:
14.66 (a) Staff Loans and Advances 16.18
178.25 (b) Advance Tax, FBT, TDS, etc. 138.77
(c) Miscellaneous Recoverable
0.46 Considered Doubtful 0.46
0.46 Less : Provisions 0.46 0.00
3.83 (d) Prepaid Expenses - 3.45
43.14 (e) Deposit with CCIL including 42.98
interest receivable
54.63 (f) Amount recoverable from GOI 56.66
against exchange loss on USAID
Borrowing
67.80 (g) Others _6.22 264.26
176.62 3. Unsettled transactions of 1991-92 176.62
33.47 4. Provision for Gain on Principal Only 2.44
Swaps (POS) Contracts
698.92 563.33

SCHEDULE - XIV
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amount in T crore

Previous Year Description Current Year
96.36 1. Liability on account of Forward Exchange Contract 14413
0.45 2. Performance Linked Incentives to MD & CEO and ED 0.72
0.00 3. Differential in Pension Amount (Ex-AGM, NHB) 0.07
0.00 4. District Consumer Forum Cases 0.03
96.81 144.95

@
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SCHEDULE-XV

Notes forming parts of the accounts for the year ended 30™ JTune, 2019

(A) Significant AccountingPolicies

1. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on the
accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated and are in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, which encompasses
applicable statutory provisions, Accountant Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and regulatory norms prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI).

Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account are drawn in accordance with the
requirements of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and National Housing Bank
General Regulations, 1988 framed there under.

2.Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires that management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount
of revenue & expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Actual result could differ from those estimates. Any revision to the accounting
estimates is recognized in accordance with the requirements of the respective
accounting standards.

3.Income and Expenditure

3.1.

3.1.1.

3.1.2.

3.1.3.

3.14.

Income and expenditure are accounted on accrual basis except the following, which are
accounted on cash basis:

Income by way of penal interest, over and above the normal rate of interest, charged due
to delay receipt of loan dues or non-compliance with the terms of loan.

Levy on pre-payment of loan.

Conversion charges for conversion of loan from floating to fixed rate of interest and
vice-a-versa.

Interest on non-performing assets.
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2.1.5. Penalty imposed by INHE for non-compliance with the regulatory requirements or the
guidelinesissued by INHE from time to time.

3.1.6 Amount received from Housing Finance Companies/Banks on account of credit
inspection charges.

3.1.7. Other miscellaneous receipts, such as receipts from sale of scrap/old news papers,
receipts under RTT Act, etc.

3.2. Dividend on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

3.3. Pre-paid expense not exceeding 310,000/ - per transaction is charged to current period
expenditure.

3.4. Prior period expense not exceeding ¥10,000/- per transaction is charged to current
period expenditure.

3.5. Stamp duty and Issue expenses relating to floatation of bonds are recognized as
expenditure in the year of issue of Bonds.

4. Investments
Investments are accounted for in accordance with the extant regulatory guidelines.

4.1. Classification

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, Investments are classified into as Held to
Maturity (HTM), Available for Sale (AFS) and Held for Trading (HFT). Under each of
these categories, investments are further classified as

(i) Government Security,

(ii) Other Approved Securities,

(iii) Shares,

(iv) Debentures and Bonds,

(v) Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and

(vi) Others.
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4.2  Basis of classification:

4.2.1. Investments that the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as Held to
Maturity.

4.2.2. Investments that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase
are classified as Held for Trading.

4.2.3. Investments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as
Available for Sale.

4.2 4. Aninvestmentis classified as Held to Maturity, Available for Sale or Held for Trading at
the time of its purchase and subsequent shifting amongst categories is done in
conformity with regulatory guidelines.

4.3 Valuation:
4.3.1. Indetermining the acquisition cost of aninvestment:
a) Brokerageand/or commissionreceived onsubscriptions are reduced from the cost.

b) Brokerage, commission, securities transaction tax, etc. paid in connection with
acquisition of investments are expensed upfront and excluded from cost.

c) Broken period interest paid/received on debt instruments is treated as interest
expense/ income and is excluded from the cost/sale consideration.

d) Cost is determined on the weighted average cost method for investments under
HTM, AFS and HFT category.

4.3.2. The transfer of a security from one category to another is accounted for at the least of
acquisition cost/book value/market value on the date of transfer, and the depreciation,
if any, on such transfer is fully provided for.

4.3.3. Treasury Billsand Commercial Papers are valued at carrying cost.
4.3.4. Held to Maturity category:

Investments under Held to Maturity category are carried at acquisition cost unless it is
more than the face value, in which case the premium is amortized over the period
remaining maturity on constant yield basis. Such amortization of premium is adjusted
against income under the head “interest on investments”. Investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are valued at historical cost. A provision is made for
diminution, other than Temporary, for each investment individually.

@
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4.3.5.

4.3.6.

43.7.

AvailableforSale and Held for Trading categories:

Investments held under AFS and HFT categories are individually revalued at the
market price or fair value determined as per RBI guidelines, and only the net
depreciation of each group for each category is provided for and net appreciation, is
ignored in case of AFS. On provision for depreciation, the book value of the individual
securities remains unchanged after marking to market.

Security Receipts (SRs) issued by an Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) are valued
in accordance with the guidelines applicable to non-SLR instruments. Accordingly, in
cases where the security receipts issued by the ARC are limited to the actual realization
of the financial assets assigned to the instruments in the concerned scheme, the Net
Asset Value, obtained from the ARC, isreckoned for valuation of such investments.

Investments are classified as performing and non-performing based on guidelines
issued by RBI from time to time.

5.Loans/Advances and Provisions thereon

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

Loans and Advances are classified as performing and non-performing, based on the
guidelines issued by RBI.

Non-performing Assets (NPAs) are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and loss
assets, based on the guidelines issued by RBIL.

Provisions for NPAs are made as per the extant guidelines prescribed by RBL

The sale of NPA is accounted as per the guidelines prescribed by RBI. If the sale is at a
price below the net book value (NBV), the shortfall is debited to the profit and loss
account, and in case of sale for a value higher than NBV, the excess provision is retained
and utilized to meet the shortfall / loss on sale of other financial assets.

In case of restructured / rescheduled assets, provisions are made in accordance with the
guidelines issued by RBI.

In the case of loan accounts classified as NPAs, an account may be reclassified as a
performing asset if it confirms to the guidelines prescribed by RBL.

Amountrecovered against debts written off in earlier years are recognised as revenue in
the year of receipt.

In addition to the specific provision on NPAs, general provisions are also made for
standard assets. These provisions are reflected in Balance Sheet under the head ‘Other
Liabilities and Provisions’ and are not considered for arriving at net NPAs.
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Advancesare stated in BalanceSheat net of provision for INF As.

Fefinance provided to Agriculture and Fural Development Banks [ARDEs] by way of
Subscription to Special Rural Housing Debentures (SRHDs) deemed to be in the nature
of advances are classified as Investments and is subject to the usual prudential norms
applicable toloans and advances.

The Bank provides additional provisioning of 15% in case of Specific Standard Assets
on occurrence of the following events on the date of adoption of accounts:

i. In case of performing assets, if there is an overdue of more than 30 days; or
ii.Bank initiates the process of implementing a Resolution Plan involving restructuring.

The management at its discretion can make such additional provision by charging to
Profit & Loss Account or can utilize any additional provision standing in the books of
accounts (without reference to any specific account) for meeting such requirement for
provision against specific standard assets. The Additional provision of 15% on
performing assets shall include the regulatory provision on Standard Asset.

In case the specific standard asset turns into NPA, the provisions being maintained in
the Standard Asset Provision category will be utilized for creating provisions against
Sub-Standard category.

In case the specific asset revives and turns into performing asset, the management at its
discretion may reverse the excess provisions.

6. Derivative transactions

6.1.

6.2.

Interest rate swaps which hedge interest bearing assets or liability is accounted for on
accrual basis except the swap designated with an asset or liability that is carried at
market value or lower of cost in the financial statement.

Gain or losses on the termination of swaps are recognized over the shorter of the
remaining contractual life of the swap or the remaining life of the assets/liabilities.

7.Fixed Assets

7.1.

7.2.

Fixed assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation on assets (including land where value is not separable) is provided on
Straight Line Method based on estimated life of the asset. Depreciation on asset has
been provided at the rates furnished below:

@
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(a)

7.3.

74.

7.5

Land

i) LandFreshaold

ii) Land - Leasehold

1. Period of Leasehold - Perpetual
2. Other thanabove

Premises

i) Constructed on free hold land and on lease land
where lease period is above 40 years

ii)Constructed on lease land where lease period is
below 40 years

Furniture and Fixtures
Computer and Microprocessors
Motor Vehicles

Office Equipments

Furniture acquired under
Residential Furnishing Scheme

Electrical/electronic articles acquired under
Residential Furnishing Scheme

(X

Nil

Over lease period

2.50%

Over lease period
10.00%

33.33%
20.00%

20.00%
10.00%

20.00%

Fixed Assets individually costing Rs. 10,000/ - and below are to be fully depreciated in
the year of addition (Excluding assets purchased under RES).

Depreciation on addition to assets is calculated for full period irrespective of the date of

addition.

Bank capitalizes item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as
an asset measured at its cost which includes its purchase price, taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates. On GST component included in the cost of the item
capitalized, Bank is not/will not claiming/ claim Input Tax Credit.
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8. Employee Benefits

8.1. TheBankhas aProvidentFundScheme managed by the EEL Contribution to the fund is
made on actual basis.

8.2. The employees, who have joined the services of the Bank on or after 1% April, 2010 are
governed by a Defined Contributory Pension Scheme, which shall be governed by the
provision of the Contributory Pension Scheme introduced for officers of the Central
Governmentw.e.f. 1% January, 2004 and as modified from time to time.

8.3  Liability for Gratuity, Pension, Sick Leave, Leave Encashment, Medical Retirement
Benefits and Leave Travel Concession is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation.

8.4 In case of Residential Furnishing Scheme, no asset will be created under revised
Residential Furnishing Scheme and the amount sanctioned will be treated as monetary
perquisite to the employees. The Bank will pay tax on the same and the tax so paid will
be treated as an allowance to the officer and included in his taxable income for the
relevant year.

9. Taxes on Income

9.1. Tax onincome for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and
the tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

9.2.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized by considering the impact of timing
difference between taxable income and accounting income for the current year and
carry forward losses. Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.
In terms of AS-22issued by ICAI, provision for deferred tax liability is made on the basis
of review at each balance sheet date and deferred tax assets are recognized only if there
is virtual certainty of realization of such assets in future. Accordingly, Deferred tax
liabilities or assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date based on development
during the year.

10. Foreign Currency Transactions

10.1. All assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated in Indian Rupee equivalent at
the exchange rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI)
prevailing at Balance Sheet date and the resulting gain or loss on the assets and
liabilities, is credited or debited to Profit & Loss Account under the head “ Exchange
Gain/ (Loss)”.

@
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10.2. Inrespect of USAID borrowing, the exchange loss or gain is debited or credited to the
head *Amount Recoverable from GOI against US AID Borrowing' as the exchange loss
on USAID borrowing isborne by the GOL.

10.3. Income and Expenditure items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

10.4. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the balance sheet date and not
intended for trading are valued at the closing spot rate as notified by FEDAI. The
premium or discount arising at the inception of such forward exchange contract is
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. The resultant gain/loss on
revaluation is recognized in the Profit & Loss Account under the head Exchanges Gain/
(Loss).

10.5. Inaccordance with AS11 ‘The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts, derivatives,
guarantees, endorsements, Principle Only Swaps (POS) and other obligations are
stated at the exchange rates notified by FEDAI corresponding to the balance sheet date.

11.Impairment of Assets

Impairmentloss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceed recoverable
amount.

12. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized
when there is a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that there will
be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of schedules to Balance Sheet.

13.NPA/Overdue Accounting

The appropriation of amount recovered from NPA Account is carried out account wise
and installment wise on FIFO basis. The order of appropriation within an account/
installment is first Additional Interest is settled followed by Interest and then Principal
amount. Further parallel ledger is maintained for accrual of interest in overdue account
without booking the same in the Profit and Loss Account.
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SCHEDULE-XV

Notes forming parts of the accounts for the year ended 30™ JTune, 2019

(B)NOTES

14. Fixed Assets -

15.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

Registration formalities are in progress in respect of office space situated at India
Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road, New Delhi and residential property situated at Jangpura
Extension, New Delhi having gross value (i.e., acquisition cost) of ¥ 23.99 crore.

In respect of the office space acquired at India Habitat Centre (IHC), Lodhi Road, New
Delhi, the exact cost has not been apportioned by IHC among the different allottees. The
tripartite agreement, in this respect, is yet to be executed between Land and
Development Office, Government of India (Gol), IHC and institution concerned (i.e.
NHB). As such, on the basis of payments made to IHC, a sum of ¥14.85 crore had been
capitalized by the Bank in Premises (¥14.44 crore) and Leasehold Land (30.41 crore).

Till FY 2016-17, in the absence of bifurcation of cost of land and premises, the Bank has
charged depreciation on premises.

Fully depreciated assets still in use are held in the books at T 1.

During the FY 2018-19, an amount of ¥ 1,399/ - transferred from depreciation to prior
period expenses.

External Borrowings

151 Under the Housing Guarantee Programme of USAID, the Bank had raised a loan of US

$25 million in the US Capital Market in the year 1990-91 for a tenure of 30 years. The loan
is repayable in forty equal half yearly installments commencing from October, 2001.
The outstanding balance of ¥17.46 crore (after revaluation) as on June 30, 2019 is
included under the head “borrowings from other sources-outside India”. Government
of India (Gol) has guaranteed the loan.

As per letter received from Government of India in 1990, they would bear, exchange
loss, if any on the repayments, as also the charges incurred like placement fee,
guarantee fee etc. Further, Gol agreed to rupee-tie this loan at a notional interest rate. In
case payment obligations to foreign lenders exceed the payment obligation of the Bank
to Gol due to exchange rate fluctuations, the difference will be borne by the Gol.

The exchange loss on account of revaluation amounting ¥ 12.31 crore (principal) and

@
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15.2

15.3

154

% 0.20 crore [interest) is shown asamount recoverable from Gol under the head ‘Other
Assets’ . The total amount recoverable from Gol towards above as on JTune 30 2019, is
T 56.660 crore asthe sameis recoverable on the completion of loanrepayment.

The Bank had borrowed USD 120 million (equivalent to ¥564 crore of which
outstanding ¥192.21 crore as on June 30, 2019) from Asian Development Bank (ADB)
in two tranches of USD 100 million and USD 20 million during the year 1997 and 2002,
respectively. These loans are guaranteed by the Government of India and repayable
in half yearly installments by 2022 and 2025, respectively.

These dollar funds were placed as deposits with Bank of India (USD 50 million),
Canara Bank (USD 50 million) and EXIM Bank (USD 20 million) in the overseas
branches in terms of agreements with these Banks. The deposits are amortized in half
yearly installments maturing by 2022 and 2025, respectively and are utilized for
repayment of loans from ADB. In lieu of the USD deposit, these banks have
subscribed to Special Series Bonds issued by the Bank for ¥564 crore (3162.90 crore is
outstanding as on June 30, 2019). These Special Series Bonds are repayable in half
yearly installments till 2022 and 2025, respectively.

The Bank has entered into agreements with KfW, Germany during the year 2010-11
for financing “Energy Efficient New Residential Housing” in India. The programme
is under an agreement concluded in May, 2009 between the Government of the
Federal Republic of Germany and Government of India on Financial Co-operation.
Theloanis guaranteed by Government of India.

The total line of credit under the programme is Euro 50 million. Under the agreement,
there are two lines viz, Euro 38 million under Portion A (repayable in 18 half yearly
installment beginning from June 30, 2014) and Euro 12 million under Portion B
(repayable in 60 half-yearly installment beginning from June 30, 2021). The Bank has
drawn the entire amount of Euro 50 million (equivalent to ¥382.11 crore) and as on
June 30, 2019, the outstanding borrowing stood at Euro 26.78 million equivalent to
%210.28 crore (after revaluation). The principle and portion of interest are hedged
against foreign exchange risk.

Under the umbrella of India-UK bilateral development cooperation partnership
agreed between the two countries in July 2011, the Bank has entered into a
collaboration with Department for International Development, Government, U.K. for
a project namely “Making affordable housing market work for faster and sustained economic
growth” in eight low income states of the country. Under the programme, DFID will
provide total assistance of £50 million. The loan is repayable in eight equated half
yearly instalments starting June, 2017. The Bank has drawn the entire loan amount of
£40 million (equivalentI380.87 crore). The outstanding borrowing as on June 30, 2019
stood at ¥143.38 crore (after revaluation). Entire loan amount is hedged against
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exchange risk.

15.5 The Bank has entered into an Agreement with World Bank (WE) on August 14, 2013
followedby subsidiary loan agreement withGovernmentof India on October 04, 2013
for Low Income Housing Finance Project of SDR 66.1 million (USD 100 million
equivalent). Under this line of credit, World Bank will make disbursements to
Government of India (Gol) and Gol in turn would on-lend the rupee equivalent to the
Bank. The amount on-lent to the Bank will be fully repaid by the Bank and also has
committed to meet the entire liability, including that due to exchange rate variations,
on the due dates, if any.

Bank has received the entire amount of ¥ 609.07 Crore from World Bank through Gol
under the Programme. As on 30.06.2019, the outstanding was ¥592.38 Crore. Out of
total loan amount of SDR 66.10 million (Equivalent to USD 93.05 million), Bank has
hedged the entire loan amount against exchange risk. Bank is in communication with
Gol for repayment of principal, interest and service charges under the World Bank
assisted project on “Low Income Housing Finance”. Bank has provided an amount of
X 77.58 Crore towards repayment of the principal, interest and service charges liability
to Government of India.

15.6 The Board in its 127" meeting held on July 18, 2017 has accorded its approval for
borrowing Euro 100 million and grant of Euro 12 million from AFD, France under
Sustainable Use of Natural Resources and Energy Facility in the Residential Sector
(SUNREEF). The entire Line of Credit amount EUR 100 million and grant of EUR 9
million was drawn during the year. This grant had been proportionately reduced and
an amount of EUR 0.899 million is accounted for as income during the year in the ratio
of interest cost incurred. In accordance with the guidelines provided by the AFD,
CRISIL has been nominated as the consultant firm in charge of the implementation of
NHB-SUNREF Housing Program’s technical assistance. The loan is repayable in 14
half-yearly instalments commencing from December 31, 2020 till June 30, 2027.

As on June 30, 2019 the outstanding balance against AFD stood at EUR 100 million
(X785.25 crore after revaluation). Entire loan amount is hedged against exchange risk.

16. Revaluation of Foreign Deposits and Borrowings/Forward Exchange Contracts/PoS

16.1 NHB borrowed USD 20 million from Asian Development Bank (ADB) in 2002
including a front end fee of USD 0.4 million and the total liaibility amounted to USD
20.4 million . The forex loan amount thus raised was placed as deposit of USD 20
million with EXIM Bank. However, an amount of USD 13 million was repaid to ADB
in 2004. NHB explored the possibility of unwinding part of the swap arrangement
with EXIM Bank. However, the corresponding deposit could not be cancelled with
EXIM Bank due to high cost of premature cancellation. This resulted in excess dollar
inflows from dollar deposit over dollar outflows post meeting loan obligations. In

S
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17.

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

order to hedge forex risk on acecount of the excess intflow of USD from Exim Bank, the
Bank has entered into forward exchange contracts. During the vyear ended
Tune 30, 2019, forward exchange contracts amounting to TUSD 1.17 million have bean
utilized. As on June 30, 2019, the Bank has 13 outstanding contracts for an aggregate
amount of USD 8.256 million.

As onJune 30, 2019, the Bank has an outstanding borrowing of Euro 26.78 million from
KfW, Germany for financing "Energy Efficient New Residential Housing" in India. The
principle and portion of interest are hedged againstforeign exchangerisk.

AsonJune 30,2019 the Bank has an outstanding borrowing of GBP 16.38 million from
DFID, UK a project namely "Making affordable housing market work for faster and sustained
economic growth" in eight low income states of the country. The borrowing is fully
hedged.

As on June 30, 2019, the Bank has an outstanding borrowing of SDR 61.74 million from
World Bank, under "Low Income Housing Finance" project. The borrowing is fully
hedged.

As on June 30, 2019, the Bank has an outstanding borrowing of Euro 100 million from
AFD, under SUNREF housing programme. The borrowing is fully hedged.

During the year, the Bank has recognized net gain of 313.53 crore on revaluation of
foreign deposits and borrowings in the Profit and Loss Account which is shown under
head " Exchange Loss/(Gain)"

During the year , Bank has recognised net loss of ¥27.19 crore on account of revaluation
of Principal only Swap (PoS) & forward contracts which is shown under Profit and
Loss Account as 'Exchange Loss/(Gain)' Net loss of ¥13.66 crore on account of Para
17.5 & 17.6 has been considered and shown in the Profit and Loss Account as 'Exchange
Loss/(Gain)'".

Employee Benefits - AS15 (revised 2005)

17.1

17.2

17.3

@

The Bank has provided the liability towards employee benefits for Gratuity, Leave
Encashment, Medical Retirement Benefits, Sick Leave, Leave Travel Concession, and
Pension on actuarial basis for its permanent employees in accordance with the AS-15
(revised 2005) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Bank is transferring contribution of provident fund to Reserve Bank of India and
other parent organizations in respect of employees including who are on deputation
from Reserve Bank of India/Other banks. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the
Bank has contributed ¥0.05 crore to Provident Fund and has charged the same to Profit
and Loss Account under the head “Staff Salaries, Allowances and Terminal Benefits’.

As per National Housing Bank (Employees’) Pension Regulations, 2003, the Bank
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provides for pension, a defined benetit retirement plan covering all employees who
have opted for pension plan. The scheme provides a monthly pension payment to
smployees on retirement or termination of employment as perService Regulation. The
scheme is managed by a separate trust and the liability for the same is recognized on the
basis of actuarial valuation as on June 30, 2019, is %3.74 crore in addition to Bank’s
monthly contribution to the fund.

The employees, who have joined the services of the Bank on or after 1st April, 2010 are
governed by a Defined Contributory Pension Scheme, which shall be governed by the
provision of the Contributory Pension Scheme introduced for officers of the Central
Government w.e.f. 1st January, 2004 and as modified from time to time. During the
year, the employees have contributed ¥0.51 crore under the Scheme and the Bank has
also provided for equivalent contribution for the same.

17.5 Defined benefit Obligations: Gratuity, Leave Encashment, Medical Retirement

benefits, Sick Leave, Leave Travel Concession and Pension payable to employees as on
June 30, 2019. The liability, wherever, necessary has been accounted for on actuarial

valuation.

a) Methodology used in actuary calculation: Actuary has used the Projected Unit Credit
Method to assess the plan’s liabilities including those related to death and service.

b) The Principal Actuarial assumptions used as at the Balance Sheet date:

Defined Leave Leave Travel
Benefits

Gratuity Medical |Sick Leave Pension

Encashment Concession

Discount Rate | 7.16 %p.a| 7.16 % p.a |7.16 % p.a| 8.00 %p.a. | 8.00% p.a. | 7.16 % p.a.

Salary Escalation| 10,00% p.aj 10.00% p.a.| NA [10.00% p.a. NA 10.00% p.a.
Rate
Expected return NA NA NA NA NA 7.16% p.a.
on plan assets
Indian Indian Indian Indian Indian Indian
_ Assured Assured | Assured | Assured Assured Assured
Mortality Rate Lives Lives Lives Lives Lives Lives
Mortality | Mortality | Mortality | Mortality | Mortality | Mortality
(IALM) (IALM) (IALM) (IALM) (IALM) (IALM)

(2012-14) | (2012-14) | (2012-14) | (2012-14) | (2012-14) | (2012-14)

e
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A reconciliation of opening and elosing balances of present value of defined benetit

obligation and the effects during the period attributable to each of the following:

Amount inX

Change in
benefit obligations

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment**

Medical

Sick
Leave**

Leave Travel
Concession**

Pension

Present Value of
Obligation at the

beginning of the year

6,81,24,622

1,08,19,787

41,17,84,507

Contribution
Received By Fund
(Employees) during
the period (1st July
2018 to 30th June 2019)

1,86,092

Current Service Cost

65,75,714

1,02,49,245

Interest cost

54,49,970

8,65,583

3,29,42,761

Past Service cost

Actuarial (Gain)/
Loss on Obligations

(40,76,795)

11,12,133

3,35,60,427

Benefits paid

(36,86,400)

(9,86,937)

(2,27,61,876)

Present Value of
Obligation at the end
of the year

7,23,87,111

1,19,96,658

46,57,75,064

d)

Investment details of plan assets:

The Bank has not funded the liability as on June 30, 2019. As such there is no fair value

of assets except for pension liability which is managed by a separate trust
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g] Change in plan assets Amount recognized in the staterment of Profit & Loss Account.

Amount in T

Defined Benefits

Gratuity

Leave

Sicle

Leave Travel

recognized in Balance

Sheet

Encashment* | Medical |7 o vees concession* Feasinn
Fair value of plan NA NA NA NA NA 36,96,17,979
assets at the
beginning of the
period
Acquisition NA NA NA NA NA -
adjustment
Actual return on NA NA NA NA NA 3,60,38,733
plan assets
Employer NA NA NA NA NA 4,55,15,895
contributions
Benefits paid NA NA NA NA NA (2,27,61,876)
Fair value of plan NA NA NA NA NA 42,84,10,731
assets at the end of
the period
Funded status NA NA NA NA NA (3,73,64,333)
Excess of actual over NA NA NA NA NA 82,80,423
estimated return on
plan assets
f) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet Amountin?
Defined Benefits | Gratuity Leave ) Sick | Leave Travel .
Encashment** Medical Leave**| Concession** Pension
Present Value of 7,23,87,111 - 1,19,96,658 | - - 46,57,75,064
Obligation at the end
of the year
Fair value of plan NA NA NA NA NA 42,84,10,731
assets at the end of
the year*
Funded Status-deficit | (7,23,87,111) - (1,19,96,658)| - - (3,73,64,333)
/ (surplus)
Unrecognized - - - - - -
actuarial gain/loss
Net Liability/ (Asset)((7,23,87,111) - (1,19,96,658)| - - (3,73,64,333)

SN

|@
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gl Amount recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Accounts

(X

Amountin 3

Defined Benefits | Gratuity Leave _ Sick | Leave Travel Pensi

Encashmeni** | Medical Leave**| Concession** RIS

Current Service Cost| 65,75,714 - - - - 1,02,49,245

Interest Cost 54,49,970 - 8,65,583 - - 3,29,42,761

Past Service cost - - - - - -

Expected return on NA NA NA NA NA (2,77,58,310)

plan assets

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss| (40,76,795) - 11,12,133 - - 2,52,80,004

Expenses/ (Income) | 79,48,889 - 19,77,716 - - 4,07,13,700

recognized in the

statement of Profit

and Loss Account

** As per paragraph 132 of the Accounting Standard 15 (revised) issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, no specific disclosures are required for Other Long Term

Benefits.

18.

18.1

18.2

Security Transactions of 1991-92

Pursuant to the Judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme Court setting aside the decree
passed by the Hon’ble Special Court in Suit No. 2 of 1995 and the directions given
by Department of Financial Services (DFS), Government of India, NHB had paid
an amount of ¥ 236.78 crore to SBI. In July, 2016, SBI has filed an Application
before the Hon’ble Special Court claiming interest @19% on X 236.78 crore. NHB
has denied the above claim of SBI and prayed for dismissal of the Application as
SBlis not adhering to the directions of DFS. Further, as per the directions of DFS,
NHB has to receive an amount of ¥ 353.78 crore from SBI as determined by RBI
and interest thereon, for which NHB has filed a counter-claim.

Subsequent to the judgment of the Hon'ble Supreme Court setting aside the
decree passed by the Hon’ble Special Court in Suit No. 2 of 1995, NHB has filed
two Applications before Special Court. One is Miscellaneous Application 62 of
2016 lodging its claim with the Custodian for return of ¥ 94.20 crore which was
deposited with the Custodian earlier in terms of direction of the Special Court.
The case has been disposed off in favour of NHB. The Hon'ble Special Court s in
process of ascertaining the interest amount. Meanwhile, the order of the Special
Court has been challenged before the Honble Supreme Court by Ms. Jyoti H
Mehta in Civil Appeal No. 3241/2019 and the same is pending. Another
Miscellaneous Petition No.2 of 2016 has been filed before Special Court for
recovery of balance i.e. ¥ 55.18 crore from Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) based




6‘

.. Annual Report 2018-19

on the Letter of Indemnity dated 01.10.19932 given by SCE. The same iz pending for
adjudication.

183 As per the understanding between INHE and SCE, INHE is alse entitled to a share
in the amount realized by SCB in the decree passed in Suit No.28 of 1995. The
amount will be shared in a proportion inverse to the proportion in which the
amount of 31,645.87 crore was shared between NHB and SCB, after the same is
received by SCB. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India vide order dated 02.05.2017
passed by in Civil Appeal No.6326 of 2010 directed the Custodian for release of
X 506.53 crore in favour of SCB. Till date, SCB has received a sum of ¥ 300.11 crore
vide order dated 08.09.2017 in the Custodian Report No.4 of 2017. We are
continuously in touch with our Counsel to take up the matter with SCB and their
Counsel for sharing the amount. However, these amounts will be accounted for on
actual receipts.

19. SegmentReporting

The Bank’s operations predominantly comprise only one segment i.e. financial
activities. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments as per the Accounting
Standard on “Segment Reporting” (AS 17) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

20.  Related Party Disclosures

a) List of Related Parties:
i) KeyManagerial Personnel: ShriS.K. Hota
ii) India Mortgage Guarantee Corporation Private Limited (IMGC)
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b) Transactions withRelated Parties:
Natmne of Nature of Nature of Amount of Qutstanding
the Party Relationship Transaction transaction during as on 30th
the year June, 2019
Sh. Sriram Key Management |Remuneration & %0.03 crore was paid *
Kalyanaraman|Personnel- benefits including | during the period*®
Managing Director | perquisites
& Chief Executive
Officer
Smt. Dakshita Additional Remuneration & Nil Nil
Das Secretary, the benefits including
Government of perquisites
India, Department
of Financial
Services,
Ministry of
Finance and
Additional charge
as the Managing
Director & Chief
Executive Officer
(from 14.08.2018)
Sh.S.K.Hota |Key Management |Remuneration & [T 31,000/- was paid [%2,738/-
Personnel- benefits including |for June 2019 month |needs to be
Managing Director | perquisites in July 2019 contributed to
his EPF.
IMGC Substantial interest Equity Capital Nil X76.00 crore
in the Share Contribution
Capital

($ The above figure is the total salary paid to MD & CEO of the Bank and does not include rent and other
reimbursements (if any) paid during this period.)
(*%0.011 croreis yet to be released for the month of August 2018. Approval of DES is awaited in this regard.)

As the Bank is state controlled enterprise within the meaning of AS-18 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, the related party relationship with other state controlled enterprises and
transactions with such enterprises are not given.

288
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. Income tax

For assessment years 2003-04 to 2009-10 [excluding 2007-08) penalty proceeding were
initiated by Income Tax Departrnent amounting to T 130,56 crore on disallowance of Bank's
claim u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and business loss. The Bank had preferred
appeals before ITAT against the order of respective authorities and paid the taxes due which
was shown as advance tax. Further, ITAT vide its order dated 20th February 2017, waived off
penalty earlier imposed by the AO with respect to Bank’s claim u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961. The department filed appeal against the said order in the Delhi High Court.
Delhi High Court videits order dated 28.08.2018 dropped the penalty proceedings.
Inrespect of disallowance of business loss of ¥150.45 crore for the AY 2003-04, ITAT restored
it back to the Assessing officer (AO). Case has been finalized by the assessing officer in F.Y.
2017-18 at the income originally assessed and an appeal against the order has been filed
before Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeal (CIT) (A) which is decided against the bank by
Hon’ble CIT(A) vide her order dated 31.12.2018. The bank has preferred appeal against the
said order before the Hon’ble ITAT which is still pending. Further penalty proceeding
initiated u/s 271 (1) (c) is also pending before assessing officer.

For assessment years (AYs) 2010-11 to 2016-17 (except A.Y. 2015-2016), there are certain
disallowances made by AO. For these assessment years, appeals are pending with ITAT
from A.Y. 2012-2013 to 2014-2015 and before CIT (A) for the A.Y. 2016-17. The ITAT has
provided favourable order for AY 2010-11 & 2011-12. The Bank has paid taxes due and
showed the said amount as advance tax in the books. The management does not consider it
necessary to make any provisionin thisregard.

Deferred Tax
As onJune 30,2019, the Bank has recorded net deferred tax liability (DTL) of ¥428.60 crore. A
composition of deferred tax assets and liabilities is given below:

Amount in X crore

SNo. | Particulars June 30,2019 | June 30, 2018
Deferred Tax Assets:

1 Provision for Medical aid to Retired Staff 0.42 0.38

2 Provision for Leave Encashment 2.30 1.84

3 Provision for Gratuity 2.53 2.38

4 Provision for Leave Travel Concession 0.74 0.63

5 Defined Contributory Pension Scheme 0.02 0.03
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 6.01 5.26

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

1 Depreciation 7.65 8.28
Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 426.96 337.58
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 434.61 345.86
Net Deferred Tax Liability (B-A) 428.60 340.60
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S Home Loan Account Scheme

L

23.2

23.3

The Home Loan Account Scheme [HLAS) was launched by INHE with effect from
July 1, 1989 all over the country and was operated through Scheduled Banks and

Housing Finance Companies (HFCs). The HLAS has been discontinued effective
from March 1, 2004.

The deposits under HLAS held by the banks/HFCs stood at ¥ 0.06 crore as per
information received by NHB and the same has been disclosed as contra entries in
the balance sheet.

India Housing Finance and Development Ltd., a Housing Finance Company in the
private sector, which was one of the participating HFC for mobilization of deposits
under HLAS, was advised by NHB not to open new accounts/accept fresh deposits
under HLAS with effect from 01.10.1994 due to serious financial problem faced by
it. NHB being the principal under the scheme, was obliged to meet liability to pay
account holders their dues. The Bank assessed the initial liability of ¥ 0.49 crore as
against verifiable claimants of IHFD under HLAS and made provision of the equal
amount in 2004-05. As per the approved procedure, claims for refund of ¥ 0.27 crore
was paid till June 30, 2019 and balance of 0.22 crore stood as liability as on date.

24.  Other Expenditure

The break-up of other expenditure shown in the Profitand Loss Accounts is as under:

Amount in X crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
1. Repair and Maintenance 3.23 3.23
2. Research and Development 0.03 0.49
3. GST Expense 1.56 1.54
4. Conveyance Expense 0.50 0.47
5. Professional Fee 1.14 1.09
6. Conference Expense 0.21 0.60
7. Hospitality Expense* 0.01 0.00
8. Expenses on IT related services 3.01 2.30
9. Payment to outsourced services 2.50 4.83
10. Security Service Expense 1.28 1.38
11. Others 6.94 7.49
Total 20.41 23.42
*12.Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 2.00 2.00

*CSR Expenses although shown as separate line item in P&L, it forms part of Other Expenses.

@
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Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account

As per RBI guidelines on prudential norms for classification, valuation and operation of
investment portfolio for Fls, the provision required to be created on account of
depreciation in the Available for Sale category in any year should be debited to the Profit
& Loss Account and an equivalent amount (net of taxes) or balance available in the
Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) Account, whichever is less, shall be transferred
from Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account to the Profit & Loss Account. In the event
provisions created on account of depreciation in the available for sale category are found
to be in excess of the required amount in any year, the excess is credited to the Profit & Loss
Account and an equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any) is appropriated to the Investment
Fluctuation Reserve Account. No amount has been transferred to IFR during the year and
balance outstanding as on June 30,2019 is ¥20.08 crore.

Impairment of assets

In the opinion of the management, there is no material impairment of any of the Assets of
the Bank as per the Accounting Standards 28-Impairment of Assets.
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27. PriotPeriod Ttems
271 During the year, the BEank has booked expenditure amounting to around I0.24 erors in the
nature of prior period on account of entries passed onaccount of the following:

Particulars Amount in?%
Rectification entries passed in interest payable on Bonds 12,737.26
Payment of overtime/staff 20,250.00
Transfer to Prior Expenses from Depreciation 1,399.00
Bank Charges 1,874.00
Payment to auditor for certification K S Kohli & Associates 4,000.00
Payment to Airtel/Mobile bill/Others 14,613.40
Payment for SAP Support 23,70,351.01
Total 24,25,224.67

27.2  During the year, the Bank has identified income amounting to around %0.05 crore in the
nature of prior period income mainly on account of reversal of interest provision in respect
of Term Deposits.

28. Investment classification
281 As stated, investments are classified into “Held for trading”, “Available for
Sale” and “Held for Maturity” categories as per the following details:
Amount in % crore

Categories Investments As on As on
of investment June 30,2019 | June 30, 2018

Held to Maturity (HTM) a) GOI Dated Securities 93.15 0.00
b) Subordinated Bonds 0.00 0.00
Sub-total 93.15 0.00
Available for Sale(AFS) a) GOI Dated Securities 0.00 100.05
b) Treasury Bills 2676.78 2785.27
¢) Shares of Housing Finance 5.10 40.43

Institutions#
d) Shares of Other Institutions 726.04 726.04
e) Building Material Company 0.53 0.53
f) Mutual Fund 0.00 0.00
Sub-total 3408.45 3652.32
Held For Trading(HFT) a) GOI Dated Securities 0.00 0.00
Gross Investments 3501.60 3652.32
Less: Depreciation 0.53 7.51
Net Investments 3501.07 3644.81

#Disinvestment in shares of Housing Finance Institutions includes X2.11 crore and ¥ 33.22 crore in
Sewa Grih Rinn and Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited made on 19.03.2019 and 26.04.2019
respectively.

@] e
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ContingentLiability

The movement inContingentLiability as required in AS 29isas under:

Amount in ¥ crore

Particulars June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Opening Balance as on July 1 96.81 48.48
Addition during the period 48.14 48.33
Reduction during the period 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 144.95 96.81

Rural Housing Fund

Rural Housing Fund was first established as per the announcement made by the Hon’ble
Finance Minister, while presenting the budget for the year 2008-09. The fund was set up
with contribution by Scheduled Commercial Banks not achieving their priority sector
lending obligations. The fund was set up with the National Housing Bank to enhance its
Refinancing Operations to the Rural Housing Sector. Till June 30, 2019, the Bank has
received total amount of ¥31,278.18 crore under this fund and the Balance Outstanding as
on June 30, 2019 is ¥22,500.00 crore. The same has been shown as ‘Deposits from Banks
under Rural Housing Fund’ in Schedule-V (‘Deposits’).

Urban Housing Fund

During 2013-14, Urban Housing Fund of ¥ 2,000 crore with contributions from scheduled
commercial banks, as allocated by Reserve Bank of India, was set up with NHB to augment
its resources and improve credit availability. Further, In terms of RBI allocation, Urban
Housing Fund 0f¥4,000 crore was set up for Year 2014-15. Again, In terms of RBI allocation,
Urban Housing Fund of 34,500 crore was set up for Year 2016-17. These funds will enhance
refinancing operations to the urban housing sector and to meet the housing needs of the
people in lower income segments residing in urban areas. Till June 30, 2019 the Bank has
received total amount of 310,500 crore and the Balance Outstanding as on June 30, 2019 is
%10,500 crore. The same has been shown as ‘Deposits from banks under Urban Housing
Fund’ in Schedule-V (‘Deposits’).
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32,

33.

34.

35.

Affordable Housing Fund

The Hon'ble Union Finance Minister in the Tnion Budget for 2018-19, presented to the
Parliatnent on February 1, 2018, announced the establishment of a dedicated Affordable
Housing Fund (AHF) in NHB, funded from priority sector lending shortfall and fully
serviced bonds authorized by the Government of India. Pursuant to the announcement,
the RBI on July 4, 2018 has communicated the establishment of AHF with a corpus of
¥10,000 crore. The AHF corpus shall be contributed by SCBs having shortfall in
achievement of their priority sector targets/sub-targets. The purpose of the AHF shall be
to support the refinancing operations of NHB for affordable housing to the target
segments in rural and urban areas. For the year 2019-20, an amount of ¥10,000 crore has
been allocated under Affordable Housing Fund (AHF). The total amount received under
AHF as onJune 30,2019is¥ 7,500 crore. The same has been shown as “Deposits from banks
under Affordable Housing Fund’ in Schedule-V (‘Deposits’).

Zero Coupon Bonds

During the year 2008-09, the Bank had issued Zero Coupon Bonds (ZCBs) for a face value
0f ¥1,050 crore, discounted value being ¥453.39 crore. These bonds were issued for tenure
of ten years. The bonds were redeemed in December, 2018 and March 2019 amounting
X750 crore and 300 crorerespectively.

Loans and advances

Of the total outstanding loans and advances of 369,192.20 Crore (gross), loans and
advances amounting 327,922.67 Crore are secured by a charge on books debts,
government guarantee, bank guarantee, equitable mortgage on fixed assets,
hypothecation of movable assets and lien over bank deposits. Balance loans and advances
amounting 341,269.53 Crore are unsecured of which ¥22,343.22 Crore covered under
negativelien.

Tax Free Bonds

NHB had mobilized an aggregate amount of ¥4,640.13 crore (3640.13 crore in 2012-13 and
34,000 crore in 2013-14) excluding premium thereon, through issuance of Tax Free Bonds.
These Bonds are secured by way of Pari passu floating first charge on the specific book
debts of NHB. As on June 30, 2019, the value of the hypothecated assets given as security
for Tax-free Bonds was 34,969.37 crore.

During the year Amortization details of Premium on tax free Bonds is as follows:
(X in Lakh)

Bond 2017-18 | 2018-19 Transferredto P & L
Premium on NHB Tax Free Bonds 46.36 41.72 4.64

Mentioned Below is age wise amount unclaimed in NHB Tax Free interest payment
account as on 30.06.2019. Further, NHB has unclaimed Interest on application money
Amounting to Rs.%6.26lakh and %0.141lakh for Tranche Iand IIrespectively.

259
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(T in Lakh
Year Interest Amount Unclaimed

2014 il

2015 6.59

2016 7.85

2017 22.81

2018 17.47

2019 15.86

Total amount unclaimed 70.58

36. Special Series Priority Sector Bonds

Exim Bank, Canara Bank & Bank of India have subscribed to Special Series Bonds issued by
the Bank for ¥564 crore (3162.90 crore is outstanding as on June 30, 2019). These Special
Series Bonds are repayable in half yearly installments till 2022 and 2025, respectively.

37. NHB Bonds

NHB mobilizes funds through issuance of bonds/debentures which do not carry any tax
benefits. They are issued as per RBI guidelines and are unsecured in nature. During the
year 2018-19, the Bank has issued new bonds of ¥5,987.10 crore under this category and
bonds amounting to ¥1,950.00 crore were repaid during the year. As on June 30, 2019,
%6,037.10 croreis outstanding under this category.

38. TREPS Borrowings

From November 5, 2018, onwards Bank has started borrowing through Tri-party Repo
(TREPS) facility which replaced Collateralized Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO)
borrowing/lending platform.

In terms of the Reserve Bank of India’s notification dated July 24, 2018, the given below
disclosure has to be made by the Bank:
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(% in Crore)
Minimuim Maxinwin Daily average | Outst anding
outstanding outstanding outstanding | 45 on June 30
during the year | during the year| during the year

Securities sold under
repo
i.Government Securities 24.95 2863.92 2111.48 2655.23
(TREPS Borrowing)
ii.Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii. Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Securities purchased
under repo
i.Government Securities 5.45 108.86 27.03 0.00
(TREPS Lending)
ii.Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii. Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

39. Unclaimed Sunidhi and Suvriddhi deposits

In respect of unclaimed Sunidhi & Suvriddhi overdue Term Deposits. In this context, this
is to inform that during the period ended June 30, 2019, ¥ 7.95 crore were outstanding in
terms of unclaimed Sunidhi & Suvriddhi overdue Term Deposits.”

Details of the Sunidhi Term deposits overdue details

Financial Year | Principal amount in X Interest amount in¥ | Total amount in X
Jun-12 50,000 12,119 62,119
Jun-13 6,07,968 1,23,418 7,31,386
Jun-14 50,000 29,973 79,973
Jun-15 60,000 29,151 89,151
Jun-16 12,00,000 4,842 12,04,842
Jun-17 16,37,832 1,70,285 18,08,117
Jun-18 4,50,000 28,985 4,78,985
Jun-19 2,62,86,900 49,50,968 3,12,37,868
Total 3,03,42,700 53,49,741 3,56,92,441

|
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Financial Year Principal amount in % Interest amount in I Total amount in ¥
Jun-12 0 0 0
Jun-13 0 0 0
Jun-14 6,85,000 2,75,313 9,60,313
Jun-15 1,70,000 82,635 2,52,635
Jun-16 2,60,000 1,12,468 3,72,468
Jun-17 7,80,000 3,74,605 11,54,605
Jun-18 24,70,000 8,86,606 33,56,606
Jun-19 2,81,90,292 95,13,205 3,77,03,497
Total 3,25,55,292 1,12,44,832 4,38,00,124
Details of the Term deposits- Unclaimed warrants details
Financial Year Sunidhi Suvriddhi
(Total amount in ) (Total amount in )

2008-2009 1,208 853
2009-2010 64,196 13,096
2010-2011 79,064 39,332
2011-2012 11,386 26,697
2012-2013 26,907 36,160
2013-2014 74,220 74,594
2014-2015 58,067 74,488
2015-2016 68,296 87,788
2016-2017 1,32,582 74,002
2017-2018 95,080 1,67,643
2018-2019 68,186 1,97,645

Total 6,79,192 7,92,298

An amount Interest payable on Sunidhi Term Deposits amounting to ¥14,03,774 was shown in
Interest payable on Suvriddhi Deposits. The transfer entry has been made this year and reported
correctly. Consequently the Interest payable on Sunidhi Term Deposits is ¥ 11,20,60,279 and in
respect of Suvriddhi Term Depositsitis<3,46,63,388 as on 30.06.2019.

o
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43.

44.

Implementationof IND AS

In terms of the Reserve Bank of India's circular dated August 04, 2016, Bank is
continuously preparing proforma Ind AS statements and is submitting to the regulator
regularly. The Reserve Bank of India vide its letter dated May 15, 2019, has advised that
implementation of Indian Accounting Standards by All India Financial Institutions
(AIFIs) has been deferred until further notice.

Transfer of Shareholding to Government of India and Amendment to National
Housing Bank Act, 1987

The Government of India vide Gazette Notification No. S.0.2198(E) dated 31" May, 2018
made amendments to the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the same is made effective
from1st day of June, 2018.

Further, Government of India transferred T 1,450 crore to the Reserve Bank of India on

March 19, 2019 and vide Gazette Notification No. S.0.1660 (E) dated 29" April, 2019
notified that the subscribed capital of one thousand four hundred and fifty crore rupees of
the National Housing Bank by the Reserve Bank of India, stands transferred to, and vested
in the Central Government upon payment of the face value of the subscribed capital, to the
Reserve Bank, with effect from the 19" day of March, 2019.

Sale of Equity Investments

Bank disinvested its entire holding of 17.64 lakh of equity shares amounting to ¥2.11 crore
inSEWA Grih Rinn HFL on March 19,2019 at3 4.62 crore.

Bank disinvested its entire holding of 118.92 lakh of equity shares amounting to ¥ 33.22 crore
in Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited on April 26, 2019 at ¥ 286.78 crore.

Provision No-longer Required

Excess provisions against Non-Performing Assets and other provisions have been
transferred to 'Provision no longer Required' till FY 2017-18. However, this has been dis-
continued from FY 2018-19.

Reserve Fund

Out of net profit for FY 2018-19, the Bank has transferred ¥178.74 crore to Reserve Fund.

@
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Change in Nomenclature

Cost incurred on Principal Only Swaps [POS) earlier was shown given under the head
“Interest paid on SWAP Deals” in P&L. However, during the current financial year, it has
been rechristened as “Coupon paid on SWAP Deals/Premium paid on POS”. Except

change in nomenclature, neither there is change in accounting treatment nor any impact
in the books.

Dewan Housing Finance Limited (DHFL)

Anamount of ¥134.16 crore was due from DHFL on 01.07.2019 which is being followed up

with the HFC. As per the extant guideline of RBI in this regard, it was reported in the
CRILIC report as default for the week ended 05.07.2019.

Payments will be made according to the resolution plan that will be finalized by all the
lenders. In this regard, NHB has signed the Deed of Accession on 29" July, 2019, which is
supplemental to the Inter-creditor agreement dated 5" July, 2019, which concerns the
implementation of a resolution plan in relation to the facilities availed by DHFL.

Bifurcation of Interest on Loans and Advances

During the FY 2018-19, Bank has booked an amount of ¥4,740.51 crore as Interest on Loans

and Advances. The details of interest received from types of loans and advances are
givenas under:

S.No Particulars T in Crore
1. Interest earned on Refinance 4,731.91
2 Interest earned on Direct Finance 7.68
3. Interest earned on Staff Loans 0.85
4 Penal Interest on Direct Finance 0.07
Total 4,740.51

Details of Statutory Audit Fees

RBI vide its letter No. DBS. ARS. No/2380/08:15:008/2018-19 dated November 05, 2018
informed that M/s. Bansal & Co LLP., New Delhi has been appointed as Statutory
Auditors of National Housing Bank for the Year 2018-19 and also specified fees to be paid.
During the financial year 2018-19, an amount of ¥ 4.05 lakh was paid and balance has been
setaside by way of provision to make future payments.

e



A%.

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ..

S5.No Particulars Tin Lakh
il Statutory audit and Limited Feview fae 5.00
£ Tax Audit fee 2.00
3. GST Audit fee 1.50
4. Expenditure on certification and additional certifications
required by SEBI 1.25
Total 13.75
49.  Events occurring after Balance sheet date

The Central Government vide gazette notification number S.0. 2902(E) dated 9" August,
2019 appointed 9" day of August, 2019, as the date on which the provisions of Part VII of
Chapter VI of the Finance Act shall come into force.

Part VII of Chapter VI of the Finance Act contained amendment to NHB Act wherein the
regulatory provisions earlier vested with NHB has been transferred to Reserve Bank of

India.

50. Disclosures under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirement) Regulations,

2015

)
)
)

TZeoealge

Creditrating - AAA/Stableratings by CRISIL, A1+ by ICRA

Asset cover available - 100%

Debt equity ratio - 7.11 times

Debt service coverage ratio - 2.04 times

Interest service coverage ratio - 1.49 times

Networth -3¥ 8,404 crore

Net profit after tax -¥733 crore

Earnings per share - Not Applicable

Previous due dates for payment of interest for NCDs and whether the same has
been paid or not - Paid.
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% Nomenclature of Bond Allotment|  Rate Amount Last
No Date of Interest
Interest Payment
Date

1. [8.05% SS PS BOND 1997-98 31-Mar-98 | 10.76% 30,80,00,000.00| 11-June-19

2. 18.05% SS PS BOND 1998-99 10-Feb-99 | 10.76% 44,70,00,000.00| 11-June-19

3. [12.10% SS PS BOND 1999-00 16-Dec-99 9.79% 66,90,00,000.00 | 11-June-19

4. 19.75% SS PS BOND (EXIM BK-II) | 28-Mar-02 7.84% 58,90,00,000.00| 11-Mar-19

5. 17.19% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2022 | 14-Dec-12 7.19% | 126,00,00,000.00 | 14-Dec-18
Series-1

6. |7.17% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2023 | 1-Jan-13 7.17% | 110,00,00,000.00| 1-Jan-19
Series-II

7. 16.87% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2023 | 6-Feb-13 6.87% | 125,00,00,000.00| 6-Feb-19
Series-III

8. 16.89% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2023 | 22-Mar-13 6.89% 82,90,00,000.00 | 22-Mar-19
Series-1V

9. 16.82% NHB Tax Free Bonds Public| 26-Mar-13 6.82% | 196,23,30,000.00 | 26-Mar-19
Issue 2012-13

10.{8.01% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2023 | 30-Aug-13 8.01% 17,00,00,000.00 | 30-Aug-18
Series-V

11.|8.46% NHB Tax Free Bonds 2028 | 30-Aug-13 8.46% | 883,00,00,000.00|30-Aug-18
Series-V

12.| NHB Tax Free Bonds 2014 13-Jan-14 8.26% | 2100,00,00,000.00 | 14-Jan-19
Tranche-I t0 9.01%

13.| NHB Tax Free Bonds 2014 24-Mar-14 8.25% | 1000,00,00,000.00 | 25-Mar-19
Tranche-II t0 8.93%

14.17.59% NHB Bonds 12-Mar-18 7.59% 50,00,00,000.00 | 15-Mar-19

15.|8.14% NHB Bonds 2021. 27-Dec-18 8.14% | 735,00,00,000.00| N.A.

16.|8.05 % NHB Bonds 2022. 10-Jan-19 8.05% | 1720,00,00,000.00 | 11-Mar-2019

17.18.02% NHB Bonds 2022 30-Jan-19 8.02% | 1165,00,00,000.00 | N.A.

18.18.00% NHB Bonds 2022 22-Feb-19 8.00% | 1567,10,00,000.00 | N.A.

19.|7.65% NHB Bonds 2022 25-Mar-19 7.65% | 800,00,00,000.00 | N.A.

TOTAL 108,40,13,30,000.00

|®
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52,

52.1

52.2

Debenture Trustee
In termns of SEBI circular dated Oeteber 29, 2013 the eontact details of the Debantura
trustee(s) for various Bondsissued by INational Housing Bankis as given below-

Debenture Trustee for Tax-free Bonds-

Compliance Officer, IL&FS Trust Company Ltd.

The IL&FS Financial Center

PlotNo. C-22, GBlock, Bandra Kurla Complex

Bandra(E), Mumbai 400051

Phone: +91 2226593927, Fax: +91 222653 3297

Email: itclcomplianceofficer@vistra.com Web : www.vistraitcl.com

Debenture Trustee for Other Bonds-

Compliance Officer, IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Asian Building, Ground Floor

17.R. Kamani Marg Ballard Estate, Mumbai Maharashtra - 400 001, India
Phone: +91 02240807000, Fax: +91 022 66311776

Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com, Web : www. idbitrustee.com

Consolidation of Special Fund with the General Fund

The Voluntary Deposits (Immunities and Exemptions) Act, 1991 was passed with the
objectives of providing certain immunities and exemptions from direct taxes to persons
making voluntary deposits with the National Housing Bank and exemptions from direct
taxes in relation to such amounts. The amount so collected under the Voluntary Deposits
Scheme is required to be kept in a Special Fund exclusively for the purpose of financing
slum clearance and low cost housing for the poor. In terms of National Housing Bank
(Slum Improvement & Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulations, 1993, Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended 30" June and Balance Sheet as on that date are required to be
prepared each year in respect of the Special Fund and audited by the Statutory Auditors
appointed by the Reserve Bank of India under Section 40 (1) of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987

Accordingly, the Profit and Loss account and the Balance Sheet of the Special Fund
have been prepared as per the provision of the National Housing Bank (Slum
Improvement & Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulations, 1993 and attached as Annexure to
these financial statements. The balance lying in the Special Fund is included under the
schedule “Reserves & Surplus” in the Bank’s consolidated Balance Sheet. Various assets
and liabilities of the Special Fund have also been grouped in the consolidated Balance
Sheet under the respective heads.

@



53.

54.

Annual Report 2018-19

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

The INational Housing Bank was established under the National Housing Bank Act, 1587,
and hence the CSR provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
However, as voluntary act, the Board of Directors of the NHB while approving the budget
for FY 2018-19 had allocated an amount of X 2 crore towards CSR activities. Accordingly,
NHB in FY 2018-2019 has made contribution of X1 crore each to Swachh Bharat Kosh and
Clean Ganga Fund.

Regrouping

Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped, wherever necessary, so as to make
them comparable with those of the current year.
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55. {a) Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 2018-19 2017-18
June 30, 2019 {Amount in T crore) | (Amount in ¥ crore)
A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 732.97 751.11
Adjustments for:

Provision for Tax 493.50 349.31
Provision for Deferred Tax 88.00 67.26
Depreciation on fixed assets 5.65 7.06
Depreciation Reversal on Premises 0.00 (6.84)
Loss on Sale of Investments 0.00 4.39
Depreciation on investments & amortisation expense (0.08) 7.32
Provision for Standards Assets 404.40 26.94
Provision for Non Performing Assets/Restructured (0.42) 0.00
Accounts

(Gain)/Loss on revaluation of Forward Exchange 6.50 5.79)
Contracts

Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of 78.01 54.44
Income 1961Tax Act,

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (0.01) 0.07
(Gain)/Loss on revaluation of Foreign Deposits & 6.92 30.75
Borrowings

Provisions no longer required written back (0.14) (46.46)
Premium on Forward Exchange Contract (14.45) (4.66)
Income from Investments (192.03) (195.87)
Profit on purchase and sale of Mutual Funds (11.28) (25.22)
Profit on Sale of Investments (256.07) 0.00
Dividend on Equity of Housing Finance Companies (2.82) (1.98)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 1,338.65 1,011.83
Adjustments for Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits with Banks (5656.03) 290.18
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (12,121.17) (3,298.73)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 589.60 277.80
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (264.54) (433.68)
Net cash from operating activities before taxes paid (11,013.49) (2,152.60)
Less : Income Taxes Paid (454.00) (370.00)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING (11,467.49) (2,522.60)
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (11,467.49) (2,522.60)
AFTER EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (A)

|
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B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
(Increase) / Deacreasein Fixed Assets (1.33) (7.41)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investments 143.81 (2123.82)
Income from Investments 192.03 195.87
(Loss)/Gain on Sale of Investments 0.00 (4.39)
(Loss)/Gain on revaluation of Forward Exchange (6.50) 5.79
Contracts
Profit on purchase and sale of Mutual Funds 11.28 25.22
Profit on Sale of Investments 256.07 0.00
Dividend on Equity of Housing Finance Companies 2.82 1.98
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING 598.18 (1,906.76)
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (A)
Receipts from sale of equity of HFCs 0.00 0.00
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING 598.18 (1,906.76)
ACTIVITIES AFTER EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (B)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in share capital 0.00 0.00
Net income under Staff Benevolent Fund 412 3.02
Increase / (Decrease ) in Bonds & Debentures 2,982.02 1,148.58
Increase / (Decrease ) in Deposits 4,401.79 181.12
Increase/ (Decrease) in Borrowings 3,419.36 2,921.49
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING 10,807.28 4,254.21
ACTIVITIES (C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (62.02) (175.15)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 460.40 635.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 398.38 460.40
55 (b) Schedule to Cash & Cash Equivalents
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(Amount in | (Amount in
I crore) X crore)
Cash in hand 0.00 0.00
Balances with Reserve Bank of India 0.05 0.04
Balance with banks-Current Account 398.34 460.36
Investment in Mutual Funds 0.00 0.00
Cash realised on forward exchange contract 0.00 0.00
Cash and cash equivalent before exchange rate adjustments 398.38 460.40
Effect of exchange rate changes-unrealised gains 0.00 0.00
Cash and cash equivalent after exchange rate adjustments 398.38 460.40

SN
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RBI Disclosure Re quirements in Financial Statements as Notes to Accounts

1 Share-holding pattern as onthe date of the Balance Sheet

Central Government” 100%
*Refer to para 41 of Notes to Accounts
1.1 Capital adequacy (Amount in % crore)
Sr. | Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
No.
i) | Common Equity 8,403.91 7,687.69
ii) | Additional Tier 1 capital - -
iii) | Total Tier 1 capital (i+ii) 8,403.91 7,687.69
iv) | Tier 2 capital 711.75 552.01
v) | Total Capital ( Tier 1+Tier 2) 9,115.66 8,239.70
vi) | Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 56,940.29 44,160.81
vii) | Common Equity Ratio ( Common Equity as a percentage 14.76% 17.41%
of RWAs)
viii)| Tier 1 Ratio ( Tier 1 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 14.76% 17.41%
ix) | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (Total Capital 16.01% 18.66%
as a percentage of RWAs
x) | Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of Indiain | 100.00% 0.00%
the AIFT*
xi) | Amount of equity capital raised 0.00 0.00
xii) | Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital raised; of which
a) Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS): 0.00 0.00
b) Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) 0.00 0.00
xiii)| Amount of Tier 2 capital raised; of which 0.00 0.00
a) Debt capital instruments: 0.00 0.00
b) Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) 0.00 0.00
¢) Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) 0.00 0.00
d) Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS) 0.00 0.00

* Refer to para 41 of Notes to Accounts
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1.2 Free Reserves and Provisions

1.2.1 Provisiosns on Standard Assets Armonunt in T crore
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Provisions towards Standard Assets 635.54 231.14

1.2.2 Floating Provisions Amount in T crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

a) Opening balance in the floating provisions account 0.00 0.00

b) The quantum of floating provisions made in the 0.00 0.00
accounting year

c¢) Amount of draw down made during the accounting year 0.00 0.00

d) Closing balance in the floating provisions account 0.00 0.00

1.3  Asset Quality and specific provisions
1.3.1 Non-Performing Advances
Amount in X crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.00 0.00
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(@) Opening balance 4.61 33.90
(b) Additions during the year - -
(c) Reductions during the year 0.42 29.29
(d) Closing balance 419 4.61

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(@) Opening balance - -
(b) Additions during the year - -

(c) Reductions during the year - -
(d) Closing balance - -

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions - -
on standard assets)

(@) Opening balance 4.61 33.90
(b) Provisions made during the year - -
(c) Write of / write back of excess provisions 0.42 29.29
(d) Closing balance 419 4.61
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1.3.2 Non-Performing Investment (Amount in T Crore)

Particulars

2018-19

2017-18

(i) MNet NFIs to Net Investments (%)

(i) Movement of NPIs (Gross)

(@) Opening balance

(b) Additions during the year

(c) Reductions during the year

(d) Closing balance

(iii) Movement of Net NPIs

(@) Opening balance

(b) Additions during the year

(c) Reductions during the year

(d) Closing balance

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPIs (excluding provisions on
standard assets)

(@) Opening balance

0.53

0.53

(b) Provisions made during the year

(c) Write of / write back of excess provisions

(d) Closing balance

0.53

0.53

1.3.3 Non-Performing Assets (1.3.1+1.3.2)

(Amount in T Crore)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(i) Net NPAs to Net Assets (Advanced + investments) (%) - -
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross Advances + Gross investments)
(i) Opening balance 5.14 34.43
() Additions during the year - -
(k) Reductions during the year 0.42 29.29
(I) Closing balance 4.72 5.14
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(i) Opening balance - -
(G) Additions during the year - -
(k) Reductions during the year - -
(I) Closing balance - -
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on - -
standard assets)
(i) Opening balance 5.14 34.43
() Provisions made during the year - -
(k) Write of / write back of excess provisions 0.42 29.29
(I) Closing balance 4.72 514

_|®]
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1.3.5 Movement of Non-performing assets

Amount in T crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Gross NPAs as on opening date of accounting period (Opening 4.61 33.90
Balance)

Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year - -
Sub total (A) 4.61 33.90
Less :-

(i) Upgradations - -
(i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) 0.42 29.29
(iii) Technical / Prudential Write offs - -
(iv) Write offs other than those under (iii) above - -
Sub-total (B) 0.42 29.29
Gross NPAs as on 30th June of following year (closing balance) (A-B) 419 4.61

1.3.6 Write-offs and recoveries

Amount in T crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Opening balance of Technical / Prudential written off accounts Nil Nil
as at July 1

Add : Technical / Prudential write offs during the year Nil Nil
Sub total (A) Nil Nil
Less : Recoveries made from previously technical / prudential

written off accounts during the year (B) Nil Nil
Closing balance as at June 30 (A-B) Nil Nil

1.3.7 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

Amount in T crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Total Assets 164.25 210.92
Total NPAs 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue 6.35 4.95

el
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Amount in 3 crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(1) Investments
(i) Gross Investments 3,501.60 3,652.32
(@) InIndia 3,501.60 3,652.32
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation 0.53 7.51
(@) InIndia 0.53 7.51
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) Net Investments 3,501.07 3,644.81
(@ InIndia 3,501.07 3,644.81
(b)  Outside India - -
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments
(i) Opening balance 7.51 293
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year (6.98) 4.58
(iii) Appropriation, if any, from Investment Fluctuation - -
Reserve Account during the year
(iv) Less: Write off/write back of excess provisions - -
during the year
(v) Less: Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation - -
Reserve Account
(vi) Closing balance 0.53 7.51

1.3.9 Provisions and Contingencies

Amount in X crore

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the 2018-19 2017-18
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Provisions for depreciation on Investment (0.08) 7.32
Provision towards Non Performing Assets (0.42) -
Provision made towards Income tax 493.50 349.31
Provision made towards Deferred Tax 88.00 67.26
Provision for Standard Assets 404.40 26.94
Provisions for Bad Debt u/s 36(1)(viia) (c) of the Income Tax Act 1961 78.01 54.44
1.3.10 Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
PCR (ratio of provisioning to gross non-performing assets) 100% 100%

SN
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1.4 Investment portfolio: constitution and operations

1.41 Repo Transactions
Attount it T crore
Minimum | Maximum | Daily Average | Outstanding
outstanding | outstanding | outstanding as on June

during during during 30, 2019
the year the year the year

Securities sold under repo Nil Nil Nil Nil

i. Government securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

Securities purchased under Nil Nil Nil Nil

reverse repo

i. Government securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

1.4.2 Disclosure of Issuer Composition for Investment in Debt Securities Current Year

Amount in ¥ crore

Extent of | Extent of “Below| Extent of | Extent of
Sr. Issuer Amount ) , Ay ) ,
No Private Investment Unrated’ | “Unlisted
Placement Grade’ Securities | Securities
Securities
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
(i) | PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) | Fls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iii)| Banks 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv)| Private Corporates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(v) | Subsidiaries / Joint 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ventures
(vi)| Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(vii) Provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
towards depreciation
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

N
®|
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Previous Year Amount in 7 crore

St A | I—— Extent of | Extent of ‘Below| Extent of | Extent of
No Private Investment | “Unrated’ | “Unlisted”
Placement Grade’ Securities | Securities
Securities
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
(i) PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) | FIs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iii) | Banks 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv) | Private Corporates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(v) | Subsidiaries / Joint 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ventures
(vi) | Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(vii)| Provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
towards depreciation
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1.4.3 Saleand Transfers to/from HTM Category: 93.15 (PY-Nil)

During the FY 2018-19, G-Secs purchased at ¥ 100.05 Crore (PY Net Book Value ¥93.07
Crore) have been shifted from AFS to HTM category as per RBI's stipulated norms.

1.5 Details of Financial Assets purchased/ sold

1.5.1 Details of Financial Assets Sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction company for Assets
Reconstructions

A. Details of Sales .
Amount in % crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC Nil Nil

(iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts Nil Nil
transferred in earlier years

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil

. J/@\L
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B. Details of Book Value of Investments in Security Receipts

Amount in T crore

Book value of investments

Particulars ) ) X
1n security receipts
2018-19 2017-18

(i) Backed by NPAs sold by the AIFI as underlying Nil Nil

(ii) Backed by NPAs sold by banks / other financial institutions

/ non- banking financial/ companies as underlying Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil

1.5.2 Details of Non Performing Financial Assets Purchased / Sold

A. Details of non performing financial assets purchased

(Amount in T Crore)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
1.  (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2. (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil

B. Details of non performing financial assets sold:

Amount in % crore

2018-19 2017-18

3. Aggregate consideration received

Particulars

1. No. of accounts sold Nil Nil

2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
Nil Nil

1.6 Operating Results

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 7.06% 7.03%
(ii) Non interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 0.43% 0.14%
(iif) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 2.55% 1.97%
(iv) Return on Assets 1.04% 1.22%
(v) Net Profit per employee (X in crore) 6.72 6.26
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1.7 Credit Concentration risk
1.7.1 Capital market exposure

Particulars 2018-19 2017-13

(i) directinvestmentin equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible Nil Nil
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus
of whichis not exclusively invested in corporate debt; @

(ii) advancesagainstshares / bonds / debentures or other securities
or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares Nil Nil
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented Nil Nil
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where Nil Nil
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
does not fully cover the advances;

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stock brokers and Nil Nil
guarantees issued on behalf of stock brokers and market maker;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / Nil Nil
bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies
in anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/ Nil Nil
issues;

(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the AIFI in respect of
primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible Nil Nil
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil Nil

(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and Nil Nil
unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil

'@ Bank's exposure is in unlisted equity only amounting to¥ 731.14 crore
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1.7.2 Exposure to Countryrisk P
: Exposure {net} | Provision held | Exposure (net) | Provision held
# P

Risk Category as at June 2019 as at June 2019 | as at June 2018 | as at June 2018
Insignificant 164.25 0 210.92 0
Low 0 0 0 0
Moderate 0 0 0 0
High 0 0 0 0
Very High 0 0 0 0
Restricted 0 0 0 0
Off-credit 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

# As per RBI Circular No. DBOD.BP.BC.71/21.04.103/2002-03 dtd 19.02.2003 on "Risk
Management in Banks-Guidelines on Country Risk Management" the guidelines are applicable
only in respect of countries where a bank has exposure of 2% or more of its assets. In case of NHB,
since exposure pertains only to Deposits placed with Foreign Branches of Indian Banks (Canara
Bank-London and Bol-New York Branch) and value of total deposits is ¥ 164.25 crore as at
June 30, 2019 which is less than 2% of total assets of the Bank, the guidelines may not be applicable

for NHB.
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1.7.3 Prudential Exposure Limits-Single Borrower Limit(SGL)/Group Borrower Limit { GBL)
Exceeded bythe ATFI

(1) The number and amount of exposures in excess of the prudential exposure limits
during the year

Amount in % crore

SI. | PAN | Borrower | Industry | Industry| Sector | Amount| Amount Exposure as
No.| No. Name Code Name Funded | Non- percentage to
Funded capital Funds

1 # Nil

Total

# Since Prudential Norms are not prescribed by RBI for credit exposure. It is internally decided
by Board.
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(ii)

(X

Credit exposure as percentageto capital funds and as percentage to Total Asset, inrespect of

Amount i# T crore

Particulars % age to | Ybage to total | Yhage tocapital | “bage to total
capital fund assets fund assets
2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18

- The largest single borrower 115.08% 13.88% 91.48% 11.91%
- The largest borrower group 64.97 % 7.83% 85.74% 11.17%
- The 20 largest single borrowers 679.19% 81.90% 631.74% 82.27%
- The 20 largest borrower groups$ 106.77 % 12.87% 189.34% 24.66%
$ NHB has only five borrower groups
(iii) Credit exposure to the five largest Not Applicable

industrial sector as percentage to total loan

assets
(iv) Total amount of advances for which  NjI*

(v)

(vi)

intangible securities such as charge over
the rights, licenses, authority, etc. have
been taken as also the estimated value of
such intangible collateral.

Factoring Exposure

Exposures where the FI had exceeded the
Prudential Exposure Limits during the
year

(*Though the project finance outstanding
secured by intangible securities such as
charge over the rights, licenses,
authority, etc. is NIL, an outsanding
amount of I 92.80 crore is secured by
Government Guarantee as on 30.06.2019
while an amount of ¥ 0.13 crore is secured
by Bank Guarantee)

Not Applicable

Nil
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1.7.4 Corncentrationof borrowings/lines of credit, credit exposures and NPAs

a) Concentration of borrowings and lines of credit

Amount i7 T crore

to total borrowings of the AIFI

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Total borrowings from twenty largest lenders 42,543.56 | 36,490.86
Percentage of borrowings from twenty largestlenders 67.00% 69.26%

b) Concentration of credit exposures*

Amount in % crore

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers 61,912.67| 53,048.08
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers to 89% 90%
Total Advances of the AIFI

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers /customers 61,912.67| 53,048.08
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers 88% 89%
to Total Exposure of the AIFI on borrowers /customers

In the case of EXIM Bank, percentage of total of top ten country Not Not
exposures to total exposures Applicable | Applicable
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1.7.5 TUnhedged Foreign Currency Exposure o e

Sr.No. | Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
1 Naine of entity: National Housing Bank
2 Foreign Currency Exposure (FCE) 2,180.80* | 1,365.77
3 FCE having maturity or having cash flows over the period | 1,371.10 741.92
of next five year (out of 2 above)
4 Amount covered by financial hedge (Out of 3 above) 1,002.88 513.13
5 Amount covered by natural hedge (Out of 3 above) 368.22 228.79
6 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure(3-4-5) 0.00 0.00
*Including the deposits placed with Bank of India, Canara Bank and EXIM Bank
1.8  Derivatives
1.8.1 Forward Rate Agreement/Interest Rate Swap
Sr.No.| Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
1 The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Ni
2 Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed Nil Nil
to fulfil their obligations under the agreements
3 Collateral required by the AIFTupon entering into swaps Nil Nil
4 Concentration of creditrisk arising from the swaps Nil Nil
5 The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil
1.8.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives
Sr.No.| Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate Nil Nil
derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument wise)
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate Nil Nil
derivatives outstanding as on 30th June (instrument wise)
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate Nil Nil
derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’
(instrument wise)
(iv) Mark to market value of exchange traded interest rate Nil Nil
derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’
(instrument wise)
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1.8.3 Disclosures onrisk exposure inderivatives

(i)

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has in-place derivative policy approved by the board which permits use of
derivative products in line with business goals of the Bank. The policy has delegated powers
to enter into swaps only at very senior level

Counter party exposure limits are within the overall limits set for each counter party. The
creditequivalent of swaps are computed as per current exposure method as prescribed by RBI
The Bank has the necessary infrastructure where the functions are well defined i.e. Front
office, Back office & Mid Office.

The position of the swaps is continuously monitored. ALCO reviews the valuations of the
outstanding positions on a monthly basis. Futher, the Board is apprised of the position on a
quarterly bases including the valuation of the swaps.

The Bank uses financial derivative transactions predominantly for hedging its
assets/liabilities and for reducing cost. The Bank currently deals only in plain vanilla over-
the-counter (OTC) interest rate and currency derivatives, for managing interest rate risks. The
Bank shall use such bench marks where pricing is transparent and that are permitted by RBI.
The interest exchanged on the swapsis accounted on an accrual basis

Amount in % crore

Sy 2018-19 2017-18
No Particular Currency |Interestrate| Currency |Interest rate
Derivatives | derivatives | Derivatives | derivatives
(i) | Derivatives (Notional Principal
Amount)
a) For hedging 1,972.52 0 1,185.17 0
b) For trading 0 0 0 0
(ii) | Marked to Market Positions[1]
a) Asset (+) 0 88.76
b) Liability (-) 5.48 0 0
(iii) | Credit Exposure [2] 144.13 0 96.36 0
(iv) | Likely impact of one percentage 0 0
change in interest rate (100*PV01)
a) on hedging derivatives 71.70 0 44.71 0
b) on trading derivatives 0 0
(v) | Maximum and Minimum 0 0
of 100*PV01 observed during
the year*
a) on hedging 75.19/41.13 0 48.06/32.90 0
b) on trading

*Since, the PVBP is calculated on a quarterly basis, the maximum and the minimum values are
taken from a quarterly basis.

1.9 Disclosure of Letters of Comfort (LoCo) issued by AIFLs

22

Nil
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

2 | Draw Down from Reserves

2018-19 2017-18

MNIL

Iil Il

3 Business Ratios

2018-19 2017-18
Return on Equity 9.10% 10.25%
Return on Assets 1.04% 1.22%
Net Profit Per Employee (X in crore) 6.72 6.26
4 Disclosure of Penalities imposed by RBI Nil
5 Disclosure of Complaints
(a) Customer Complaints
2018-19 2017-18
(@) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 1
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 22 105
(c) No. of complaints redressed year 22 105
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 1

6 Off-Balance Sheet SPVs Sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per

accounting norms)

Name of the SPV sponsored
Domestic Overseas
Nil Nil

7  Disclosure as per specific accounting standards.

7.1 Accounting Standard 5 - Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes

inaccounting policies.

Amount in T crore

2018-19 2017-18

Prior Period Income@

0.05 8.07

Prior Period Expense@

0.24 0.87

@ Please refer para 27 of Notes to Accounts

_|®]
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7.2 Accounting Standard 17-Segment Reporing
Refer to para 19 of Notes to Accounts

7.3  Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party Disclosures

Refer to para 20 of Notes to Accounts.

8 2018-19 2017-18
Unamortised Pension and Gratuity Liabilities Nil Nil
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Arvind Mohit Kaul Rakesh Awasthi
Regional Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Financial Officer
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Ashwani Kumar Tripathi S.K. Hota Pankaj Jain
Executive Director Managing Director Director

As per our attached Report of even date

for Bansal & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 001113N/N500079

New Delhi, August 22, 2019

Sd/-
(Dr. D. S. Rawat)

Partner
Membership No. 083030
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(X

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualification for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2019
[See Repulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amend ment) Regulations, 2016]

Tin lakh
L. SL PARTICULAR Audited Figures | Audited Figures
No. (as reported before| (audited figures
adjusting for after adjusting for
qualification qualifications)
1 Turnover/ Total Income 527,554.84 527,554.84
2 Total Expenditure 347,916.98 347,916.98
3 Net Profit/ (Loss) 73,297.10 73,297.10
4 Earning Per Share - -
5 Total Assets 7,559,778.21 7,559,778.21
6 Total Liabilities 7,559,778.21 7,559,778.21
7 Net Worth 840,390.75 840,390.75
8 Any other financial items(s) (as - -
felt appropriate by the management)

II. | Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

Details of Audit Qualification: No Qualification

Type of Audit Qualification: Not Applicable

Frequency of qualification: Not Applicable

AN o e

Management's Views: Not Applicable

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor,

Applicable

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: Not

(i) Management's estmation on the impact of audit qualification: Not Applicable

(ii) IfManagementisunable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not Applicable

(iii) Auditors' Comments on (i) of (ii) above: Not Applicable

III. | Signatories:

Rakesh Awasthi, Chief Financial Officer Sd/-
S.K.Hota, Managing Director Sd/-
PankajJain, Audit Committee Chairman Sd/-
Dr.D.S. Rawat, Partner, Membership No. 083030, Bansal & Co.

LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Reg. No.001113N/N500079 Sd/-

Place: New Delhi

Date: August 22,2019

_|®]




NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

YEARLY
ACCOUNTS
2018-19

(July, 2018 to June, 2019)
(SPECIAL FUND)




ANNUAL ACCOUNTS SPECIAL FUND .“

(Slum Improvement and
Balance Sheet
Amount in T crore

National Housing Bank

Previous Year Liabilities Current Year
61.82 1. Special Fund (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) 61.82
2. Reserves:
23.31 (i) Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 24.90
3.00 (ii) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 3.00
360.87 (iii) Reserve Fund -VDS 377.28 405.18
3. Profit & Loss Account:
12.33 Add: Profit transferred from the 16.41
Profit and Loss A/c
12.33 Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund -VDS 16.41 0.00
4. Current Liabilities and Provisions:
112.09 (i) Provision for Income Tax 123.09
0.81 (ii) Provision for Standard Assets 0.71
18.29 (iif) Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 20.14
u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of Income Tax Act, 1961
50.00 (iv) Others 50.00 193.94
7.52 5. Deferred Tax Liability 7.93
637.71 TOTAL 668.87
Profit & Loss Account
Previous Year Expenditure Current Year
0.08 1. Provision for Standard Assets (0.10)
1.18 2. Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of Income Tax Act, 1961  1.85
0.78 3. Deferred Tax 0.41
7.20 4.  Provision for Income Tax 11.00
14.36 5. Balance of Profit carried down 18.00
23.60 TOTAL 31.16
2.02 6. Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 1.59
12.34 7. Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 16.41
14.36 TOTAL 18.00
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Arvind Mohit Kaul Rakesh Awasthi
Regional Manager Assistant General Manager Chief Financial Officer
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Ashwani Kumar Tripathi S.K. Hota Pankaj Jain
Executive Director Managing Director Director

New Delhi, August 22, 2019

_|®]
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Low Cost Housing Fund
asat J0th June, 2019

Awmountin T cxoxe

Previons Year Azzets Current Year

1. Cash and Bank Balances:

0.04 Current Account 0.04
2. Investments(at cost or market value whichever is less):
399.73 Treasury Bills 458.39
3. Loans & Advance:
108.21 Direct Lending 94.07
0.72 Less:Provisions for Non Performing Assets 072 93.35
4. Other Assets:
0.01 (i) Interest Receivable on Bank Deposits 0.01
4.75 (ii) Interest Receivable on Investments 2.52
104.06 (iif) Advance Tax and TDS 104.06
21.63 (iv) Amount Recoverable from General Fund 10.50 117.09
637.71 TOTAL 668.87
for the year ended 30th June, 2019 Amount in T crore
Previous Year Income Current Year
11.06 1. Interest on Loans and Advances 7.68
12.49 2. Income from Investments 23.48
0.05 3. Provision no longer required 0.00
23.60 TOTAL 31.16
12.34 4. Balance of Profit brought down 16.41
2.02 5. Transfer from Special Reserve in terms of 1.59
Section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
14.36 TOTAL 18.00

Notes forming part of Accounts

1. Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account of Special Fund have been drawn in accordance with the provisions of
National Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulation, 1993.
2. NHB (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) represent 40% of the amounts deposited by any person
voluntarily in accordance with the NHB Voluntary Deposit Scheme (VDS)
3. The Bank do not charge staff expense or other operating expense to Special Fund Account.
As per our attached Report of even date
for Bansal & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
(Dr. D. S. Rawat)
Partner, Membership No. 083030

. J@L

.
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AppendixI

Individual Housing Loans of HFCs and PSBs during 2018-19 (April 1 to March 31)

S. Slab-wise Individual Disbursements
N Housing Loan Amount % of No. of % of
(in T crore) Total Units Total
1 Upto 2 lakh 3,147 1 3,39,172 9
2 >32lakh to < 57akh 7,315 2 3,30,726 8
3 >35lakh to < 18 lakh 31,331 7 7,39,178 19
4 >310lakh to< 23 lakh 1,35,048 29 14,94,375 38
5 > 325 lakh 2,83,731 62 9,89,307 25
Total 4,60,572 100 38,92,758 100

Source: Data collected by NHB from HFCs and PSBs

Appendix II

Net Resources Mobilized by NHB during 2018-19 (July 1 to June 30)

S.No. | Instruments Amount (in X crore)
1 Taxable Bonds 5,987
2 Commercial Papers 2,955
3 Short Term Loan 4,505
4 Deposits under AHF 7,500
5 Foreign Borrowings 905

Total (rounded off) 21,852
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Appendix ITT

Resources Outstanding as on 30-06-2019

.‘

S. No. Instruments Amount (in X crore)
1 Tax Free Bonds 4,641
2 Special Series Bonds 163
3 Capital Gain Bonds (Overdue) 3
4 Other Bonds 6,037
5 Commercial Papers 2,955
6 Loan Against Deposits 0
7 Short Term Loan 4,505
8 Borrowings from RBI 0
9 Foreign Borrowings 1,941
10 Rural Housing Fund 22,500
11 Urban Housing Fund 10,500
12 Affordable Housing Fund 7,500
13 SUNIDHI Term Deposit 78
14 SUVRIDDHI Term Deposit 22
15 TREP 2,655

Total (rounded off) 63,500

Appendix IV

Refinance Disbursements during 2018-19 - Institution Category-wise

Amount (in X crore)

S.No.| Institution Category 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
1 HFCs 16,779 11,508 21,736
2 SCBs 5,696 13,283 3,300
3 Others 209 130 141

Total 22,684 24,921 25,177
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AppendixV

Refinance Disbursements during 2018-19 - Scheme-wise

Annual Report 2018-19

Amount (in X crore)

S. No.| Institution Category | Regular AHF-Urban | AHF-Rural U-LIH | Total
1 HFCs 15,118 6,074 520 24 | 21,736
2 SCBs 2,340 610 350 0 3,300
3 Others 0 50 91 0 141
Total 17,458 6,734 961 24 | 25,177
Appendix VI
Refinance Disbursements during 2018-19 - Individual Housing Loans Slab-wise
S. No.| Slab-wise Housing Amount | % of Total No. of Units % of Total
Loan (in X crore)
1 Upto 32 lakh 1,029 4 2,10,624 52
2 >32to < 51akh 698 3 20,833 5
3 >35to < 10 lakh 3,306 13 53,033 13
4 >310 to < 13 lakh 5,628 22 49,184 12
5 >315 to < 20 lakh 6,313 25 39,109 10
6 >320 to < 23 lakh 4,376 17 21,818 5
7 > 325 lakh 3,827 15 13,693 3
Total 25,177 100 4,08,294 100
Appendix VII
Cumulative Refinance Disbursements upto June 30, 2019
S. No.| Institution Category Amount (in X crore) % of Total
1 HFCs 1,19,834 51
2 SCBs 1,11,636 47
3 RRBs 2,066 1
+ Others (including Cooperatives) 3,168 1
Total 2,36,704 100
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Appendix VI

Refinance Outstanding

Amount in % crore

X

S. No. | Institution Category | 30-06-2015 | 30-06-2016 | 30-06-2017 | 30-06-2018 | 30-06-2019
1 HEFCs 34,300 29,735 40,312 38,146 50,145
2 SCBs 18,575 22,045 13,276 19,524 18,010
3 Others 1,156 1,284 1,217 1,055 940
Total 54,031 53,064 54,805 58,725 69,095
Appendix IX
Rural Housing Fund Disbursements
Amount in % crore
Year Allocation stz io
HFCs | SCBs | RRBs | Others Total No. of Units
2008-09 1,778 1,545 0 202 15 1,761 95,577
2009-10 2,000 1,795 0 185 36 2,016 70,995
2010-11 2,000 1,688 182 134 0 2,004 42,859
2011-12 3,000 2,126 721 143 13 3,003 1,26,795
2012-13 4,000 1,940 | 1,802 285 0 4,027 3,56,480
2013-14 6,000 2,326 | 1,023 94 0 3,444 5,35,299
2014-15 8,000 2,101 | 2,599 220 0 4,920 2,74,924
2015-16 0 2,943 439 370 0 3,752 58,433
2016-17 4,500 3,482 918 155 0 4,556 3,36,804
2017-18 0 894 933 1 0 1,828 49,267
2018-19* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 31,278 20,839 | 8,619 | 1,789 64 31,311 19,47,433

* Since FY 2018-19, RHF and UHF have been merged into AHF
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Appendix X

Urban Housing Fund Disbursements

Annual Report 2018-19

Amount in % crore

Year Allocation Wil
HFCs | SCBs | RRBs | Others Total No. of Units
2013-14 2,000 129 744 0 0 873 18,310
2014-15 4,000 902 | 2,769 0 30 3,700 1,26,373
2015-16 0 94 | 1,256 33 0 1,383 28,251
2016-17 3,000 1,896 278 4 50 2,228 20,238
2017-18 1,500 1,649 538 79 50 2,316 21,399
2018-19* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 10,500 4,670 | 5,584 116 130 10,500 2,14,571
* Since FY 2018-19, RHF and UHF have been merged into AHF
Appendix XI
Affordable Housing Fund Disbursements
Amount in % crore
Year Allocation Ll
HFCs | SCBs | RRBs | Others Total No. of Units
2018-19 7,500 6,594 960 91 50 7,695 1,37,176
Total 7,500 6,594 960 91 50 7,695 1,37,176
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Appendix XII

Disbhurserments under Project Finance - Year-wise

(X

Amount in T crore

Year Disbursements Cumulative Disbursements
2005-06 365 1,023
2006-07 172 1,195
2007-08 449 1,644
2008-09 35 1,679
2009-10 52 1,731
2010-11 312 2,043
2011-12 64 2,107
2012-13 93 2,200
2013-14 34 2,234
2014-15 - 2,234
2015-16 97 2,331
2016-17 75 2,406
2017-18 - 2,406
2018-19 - 2,406
Appendix XIII

Housing Finance Companies Granted Certificate of Registration in 2018-19

S. No. Name of the HFC Date of issue of CoR
1. Easy Home Finance Limited 31-Jul-18
2. Sasvitha Home Finance Private Limited 31-Jul-18
5. Varashakti Housing Finance Private Limited 28-Jan-19
4. Capital India Home Loans Ltd. 07-Feb-19
bl Nanayasurabhi Affordable Housing Finance Limited 15-May-19
6. Indie Homefin Private Limited 15-May-19
7. Aham Housing Finance Private Limited 17-Jun-19
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Appendix XIV

Sale of Equity Stake by the Bank

S.No.| Name % of Equity Amount Name of the Inflow Date
of the HFC | Shareholding | of Investments| Buying Promoter |((in% crore)| of Inflow

SEWA Mutual

1. SGRL 5.48% X2.11 crore : 34.62 Mar
Benefit Trust 50. 2019
(SMBT) ’

o Mahindra & Apr

2. MRHFL 11.00% 333.22 crore Mahindra Financial 286.78 26, 2019
Services Limited
(MMEFSL)

Appendix XV

Representation of SCs, STs, and OBCs as on 30-06-2019

Groups Number of Employees Number of appointments made during
the previous calendar year
By Direct Recruitment By Promotion# By other
Total SCs STs OBCs Total SCs STs OBCs Total SCs S Total SCs STs
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Group A 109* 13 04 29 - - - - - - - - -
Total 109 13 04 29 - - - - - - - - .

*Note: The officers” strength shown above excludes MD, ED and CVO.
#In NHB, reservation is applicable only for direct recruitment and promotion of an officer to higher
rank is made on merit basis (Selection method).




APPENDICES

Appendix XVI - City-wise HPI@Assessment Prices till Quarter Jan-Mar 2019

(X

Name of City Index Q-0-0) Y-o-¥

Mar-18 |Jun-18 | Sep-18 |Dec-18 |Mar-19 | Jun-18 | Sep-18 | Dec-18 | Mar-19 |Mar-19

VS Vs Vs Vs Vs

Mar-18 | Jun-18 | Sep-18 | Dec-18 |Mar-18

(% change) | (% change) | (% change)| (% change) (% change)
Ahmedabad 100 105 114 116 120 5.0 8.6 1.8 3.4 20.0
Bengaluru 99 102 109 110 114 3.0 6.9 0.9 3.6 15.2
Bhiwadi 99 103 112 113 121 4.0 8.7 0.9 7.1 222
Bhopal 101 101 103 104 102 0.0 2.0 1.0 -1.9 1.0
Bhubaneswar 100 102 105 107 111 2.0 29 1.9 3.7 11.0
Bidhan Nagar 100 102 105 108 107 2.0 29 29 -0.9 7.0
Chakan 100 103 104 105 97 3.0 1.0 1.0 -7.6 -3.0
Chandigarh (Tricity) 100 104 104 106 105 4.0 0.0 19 -0.9 5.0
Chennai 100 101 101 102 105 1.0 0.0 1.0 29 5.0
Coimbatore 100 101 106 110 119 1.0 5.0 3.8 8.2 19.0
Dehradun 99 100 102 107 105 1.0 2.0 49 -1.9 6.1
Delhi 100 99 98 98 98 -1.0 -1.0 0.0 0.0 -2.0
Faridabad 100 100 102 102 100 0.0 2.0 0.0 -2.0 0.0
Gandhinagar 99 106 111 115 119 7.1 4.7 3.6 Bi5) 20.2
Ghaziabad 99 100 101 104 108 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.8 9.1
Greater Noida 101 102 103 104 104 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 3.0
Gurugram 100 100 101 102 102 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 2.0
Guwahati 100 101 103 105 112 1.0 2.0 1.9 6.7 12.0
Howrah 100 102 105 105 111 2.0 29 0.0 5.7 11.0
Hyderabad 100 104 109 111 122 4.0 48 1.8 9.9 22.0
Indore 100 103 106 107 111 3.0 29 0.9 3.7 11.0
Jaipur 100 100 101 103 104 0.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 4.0
Kalyan Dombivali 100 102 105 108 109 2.0 29 29 0.9 9.0
Kanpur 99 99 100 99 106 0.0 1.0 -1.0 7.1 7.1
Kochi 100 100 101 101 94 0.0 1.0 0.0 -6.9 -6.0
Kolkata 100 103 104 104 107 3.0 1.0 0.0 2.9 7.0
Lucknow 100 101 103 103 103 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 3.0
Ludhiana 101 100 101 103 107 -1.0 1.0 2.0 3.9 5.9
Meerut 100 101 104 106 107 1.0 3.0 1.9 0.9 7.0
Mira Bhayander 100 102 104 106 109 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.8 9.0
Mumbai 100 102 104 105 105 2.0 2.0 1.0 0.0 5.0
Nagpur 100 101 102 102 105 1.0 1.0 0.0 29 5.0
Nashik 100 103 105 105 106 3.0 1.9 0.0 1.0 6.0
Navi Mumbai 100 101 104 107 108 1.0 3.0 2.9 0.9 8.0
New Town Kolkata 101 105 108 110 120 4.0 29 1.9 9.1 18.8
Noida 100 103 107 111 111 3.0 3.9 3.7 0.0 11.0
Panvel 100 102 105 107 113 2.0 29 1.9 5.6 13.0
Patna 100 100 101 104 108 0.0 1.0 3.0 3.8 8.0
Pimpri Chinchwad 101 101 103 103 99 0.0 2.0 0.0 -39 -2.0
Pune 100 104 106 107 107 4.0 1.9 0.9 0.0 7.0
Raipur 100 101 103 103 109 1.0 2.0 0.0 5.8 9.0
Rajkot 100 100 102 102 101 0.0 2.0 0.0 -1.0 1.0
Ranchi 99 101 103 112 117 2.0 2.0 8.7 45 18.2
Surat 100 101 103 103 106 1.0 2.0 0.0 29 6.0
Thane 100 103 107 107 107 3.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 7.0
Thiruvananthapuram 99 101 104 104 111 2.0 3.0 0.0 6.7 12.1
Vadodara 99 102 104 104 107 3.0 2.0 0.0 2.9 8.1
Vasai Virar 100 101 104 104 103 1.0 3.0 0.0 -1.0 3.0
Vijayawada 100 100 100 100 99 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.0 -1.0
Vizag 100 101 102 103 107 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.9 7.0

Four Quarter Moving Average Values

o
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Appendix XVII - City-wise HPI@Market Prices for Under Construction Properties till
Quarter Jan-Mar 2019

Mame of City Index Q-0-0) YooX

Mar-18 |Jun-18 | Sep-18 |Dec-18 |Mar-19 | Jun-18 | Sep-18 | Dec-18 | Mar-19 | Mar-19

VS VS Vs Vs Vs

Mar-18 | Jun-18 | Sep-18 | Dec-18 | Mar-18

(% change) | (% change) | (% change) | (% change) | (% change)
Ahmedabad 100 101 101 102 103 1 0 1 1 3
Bengaluru 100 100 101 101 101 0 1 0 0 1
Bhiwadi 100 102 104 103 102 2 2 -1 -1 2
Bhopal 100 100 100 100 100 0 0 0 0 0
Bhubaneswar 100 101 103 104 105 1 2 1 1 5
Bidhan Nagar 100 103 106 107 109 3 3 1 2 9
Chakan 100 100 100 100 100 0 0 0 0 0
Chandigarh (Tricity) 100 100 101 100 100 0 1 =1l 0 0
Chennai 100 101 102 102 103 1 1 0 1 3
Coimbatore 100 101 103 103 103 1 2 0 0 S
Dehradun 100 101 101 101 100 1 0 0 -1 0
Delhi 100 101 102 101 99 1 1 Sl 7 Sl
Faridabad 101 99 98 93 92 -2 -1 -5 -1 -9
Gandhinagar 100 102 104 106 108 2 2 2 2 8
Ghaziabad 100 101 102 102 102 1 1 0 0 2
Greater Noida 100 101 102 102 102 1 1 0 0 2
Gurugram 99 101 103 104 102 2 2 1 -2 3
Guwahati 100 101 103 106 108 1 2 3 2 8
Howrah 100 99 101 102 103 -1 2 1 1 s
Hyderabad 100 102 105 108 112 2 3 3 4 12
Indore 101 102 103 105 107 1 1 2 2 6
Jaipur 00 100 102 104 105 0 2 2 1 b
Kalyan Dombivali 100 103 106 110 113 B B 4 3 13
Kanpur 100 100 100 101 102 0 0 1 1 2
Kochi 101 101 101 101 99 0 0 0 = =
Kolkata 100 104 108 110 111 4 4 2 1 11
Lucknow 100 100 99 100 101 0 2l 1 1 1
Ludhiana 100 100 100 101 101 0 0 1 0 1
Meerut 100 100 99 98 97 0 -1 -1 -1 -3
Mira Bhayander 100 102 103 105 107 2 1 2 2 7
Mumbai 100 101 102 103 104 1 1 1 1 4
Nagpur 100 102 104 108 110 2 2 4 2 10
Nashik 100 100 101 102 103 0 1 1 1 B)
Navi Mumbai 100 101 101 103 106 1 0 2 3 6
New Town Kolkata 100 99 98 98 98 -1 -1 0 0 -2
Noida 100 102 103 101 99 2 1 2 2 -1
Panvel 100 101 101 101 101 1 0 0 0 1
Patna 99 99 100 104 109 0 1 4 5 10
Pimpri Chinchwad 100 100 100 100 99 0 0 0 -1 -1
Pune 100 101 101 102 102 1 0 1 0 2
Raipur 100 99 99 98 98 -1 0 -1 0 2
Rajkot 100 101 102 102 102 1 1 0 0 2
Ranchi 100 101 101 100 99 1 0 -1 -1 -1
Surat 100 100 100 101 102 0 0 1 1 2
Thane 100 101 102 102 103 1 1 0 1 5
Thiruvananthapuram 99 98 97 96 96 -1 -1 -1 0 -3
Vadodara 100 99 98 99 103 -1 -1 1 4 S
Vasai Virar 100 101 101 102 103 1 0 1 1 3
Vijayawada 100 101 103 102 100 1 2 -1 -2 0
Vizag 100 101 103 105 106 1 2 2 1 6

Four Quarter Moving Average Values
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Appendix XVIII

NHBE's Share Capital, Reserves and Profitability

Share Capital & Reserves (X in crore)
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Cumulative Relinance Disbursements to PLIs
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Appendix XXI
NHBE's Refinance Outstanding

Refinance Quistanding to PLIs
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Refinance Qutstanding to HFCs
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Appendix XXIIT
HFC’'s Performance
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